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FIVE YEAR FIN,
IFHBRE

2015 2016 S5 2017 2018 2019
20156 20165 20175 20184 2019%
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARETLT  ARETRT ARETR

Revenue WA 555,715 1,094,777 1,726,256 3,246,493 3,683,514
Cost of sales HEKAE (297,511) (630,681) (1,159,234) (2,357,014) (2,698,145)
GROSS PROFIT E 258,204 464,096 567,022 889,479 985,369
Selling and marketing expenses ~ $5& & & SR ¥ (65,203) (81,920) (94,978) (132,541) (200,591)
Administrative expenses AHAX (118,025) (146,029) (215,853) (294,078) (260,288)
Research and development R Y

expenses (79,763) (93,271) (130,780) (231,704) (305,366)
Finance costs BEKAE (1,534) (15,167) (22,285) (24,451) (18,866)
Share of (losses)/gains of B E AT

associates (B#8),/ W (45) (9,689) (7,129) 3,051 239

Net gains on financial assets at ~ LAA% BB E WA
fair value through profit or BarfemEE

loss WzgE — — — 4,410 3,927
Other expenses Htf % (75,188) (72,451) (65,289) (91,467) (15,347)
Other income and gains EgA RS 85,108 94,126 124,688 65,868 60,380
Profit before tax BATRE 3,554 139,695 155,396 188,567 249,457
Income tax expense FERAX (11,128) (20,962) (22,570) (14,001) (6,902)
Profit and total REEFER

comprehensive income for Hit2EW R

the year (7,574) 118,733 132,826 174,566 242,555
Profit attributable to: K
Owners of the parent BRARHEEA (7,574) 125,193 138,239 176,065 248,995
Non-controlling interests R ER — (6,460) (5,413) (1,499) (6,440)

(7,574) 118,733 132,826 174,566 242,555
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to each of our shareholders. In 2019,
the overall results of the Company maintained a rapid growth, as
payment transaction volume increased year-on-year by 21% from
RMB1,800 billion to RMB2,200 billion; revenue increased year-on-
year by 13% from RMB3.25 billion to RMB3.68 billion; gross profit
increased year-on-year by 11% from RMB890 million to RMB990
million; net profit increased year-on-year by 39% from RMB170
million to RMB240 million; adjusted net profit increased year-on-
year by 15% from RMB263 million to RMB303 million. Meanwhile,
the Company implemented its digital transformation in full swing,
took forward the implementation of various innovative projects, fully
applied the cloud-native technology, achieved cost reduction and
efficiency enhancement with platform operation and continued to
enhance compliance risk control.

1. SUBSTANTIAL REFORM IN PAYMENT
INDUSTRY AND EMERGING DEVELOPMENT
OPPORTUNITIES IN THE MARKET

Payment industry has undergone a substantial reform. Under
the impacts of establishment of NetsUnion and policy of
“replacing the direct connection with banks with unified
clearing platforms”, UnionPay and NetsUnion, as the clearing
institutions, are able to proceed all kinds of transaction
payment methods, including the transfer of bankcards and
wallets. As a licensed payment institution, Hufui Payment
entered the industrial ecosystems of Alipay and WeChat by
using the clearing and settlement systems of UnionPay and
NetsUnion.

New development opportunities have emerged in the market.
In the existing markets, including acquiring market, the digital
operation and marketing of distribution channel chains have
became the core competitiveness. Different kinds of emerging
industrial environments have been developing towards a
thorough digital transformation, reflecting online and offline
integration and digitalization of internal operations. Besides,
a large number of industry SaaS and new B2B matchmaking
platforms of sectors have been emerging. For international
business, the retail globalization presents considerable
opportunities, which leads to the urgent needs of auxiliary
systems and supports for digital payment solutions.

Huifu Payment Limited SCAEATAR2ARF  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FE i
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERWE

2. POSITIONING AS A DIGITAL SOLUTION

2 BMEUNRERBREXINANEFT

SERVICE PROVIDER WITH THE FOCUS ON
OMNI-CHANNEL PAYMENT

Under the current payment industrial pattern, clearing houses,
commercial banks, wallet issuers and payment institutions
have established clearer positions. Huifu Payment, as a
licensed institution, can efficiently integrate diverse payment
methods, including bankcards, wallets, bank accounts and cash
management tools, and deliver digital omni-channel payment
solutions for different types of merchants.

Our omni-channel payment product capacities have shown
rapid improvement. In 2019, the number of wallet’'s QR-code-
scanning transactions exceeded 2.4 billion, reaching the peak
of 13 million transactions per day.

We made efforts to upgrade SaaS from a service provider of
information and product to a transaction service provider by
strengthening the digital solution capabilities of “Payment +
SaaS”. In 2019, we have newly added 255 cooperative SaaS
institutions with accumulated number of cooperative SaaS
institutions reaching 392. Following the successful launch of
“Adapay”, which is a lightweight “Payment + SaaS"” product,
the customers’ docking time has been greatly reduced from
several weeks to three days, with 80% of the customers
achieved automatic operating services. Meanwhile, our
industrial business has been growing at a fast pace. The scale
of air travel business transactions increased by more than 42%,
and we established cooperation with more than 100 well-
known clients in the industry chain, representing a year-on-year
increase of 148% in terms of cross-border payment transaction
volume.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRME

CONSTRUCTING DIGITAL OPERATIONAL
PLATFORM, SUPPORTING RAPID
BUSINESS INNOVATION AND ACHIEVING
COST REDUCTION AND EFFICIENCY
IMPROVEMENT

We are the pioneer in constructing digital operating platform
among comparable companies thanks to our automatic, flexible
and measurable operation via process reengineering and
flexibility. In general, the Company has dramatically reduced its
operating costs as the number of staff decreased by 5% year-
on-year at the end of 2019, of which the number of operating
staff decreased by over 20%. The Company has greatly
enhanced its innovation rate, launched innovative business in
two weeks and delivered scenario solutions with the API-based
method. In addition, by launching digital operation services in
the acquiring business, the operating gross margin increased by
12.7% year-on-year.

FULLY IMPLEMENTING CLOUD-NATIVE
TECHNOLOGY TO CONSIDERABLY
ENHANCE THE TRANSACTIONS’
STABILITY, EXTENSIBILITY AND
DEVELOPMENT EFFICIENCIES

As a pioneer in fully implementing cloud-native technology
among comparable payment institutions, we realized the
flexible and extensible system support, with the system stability
reaching 99.995% and a processing capacity of 100 million
transactions per day. Through the establishment of digital tools
and methods, we have greatly enhanced the research and
development efficiency, launched all of our products into the
market, and achieved 80% of the automatic testing.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERWE

UTILIZATION OF BIG DATA TECHNOLOGY
AND SYSTEMATIC CAPACITIES TO
STRENGTHEN THE LEADING POSITION

IN THE INDUSTRY REGARDING
OPERATIONAL COMPLIANCE AND RISK
CONTROL

We established an efficient compliance system and regulatory
docking mechanism to ensure our leading position in the
industry in terms of compliance capability. Owing to our
risk control big data technology, the rate of potential frauds
remained at a lower level of 0.02BP, at a leading position in
the industry. We had no risk events as we actively tied in with
the government to handle Internet financial related businesses
in a secure and proper manner.

IMPLEMENTING THE DIGITAL

5 BRAXREEBRMMALILED -
BREREZEDNLEITEAS

HMZISRNERARMEEH RS -
REBENBRITERS - RFIRAREER
PR R BREE R A H51E 0.02BPHUTT B
ERF - BBAABARZEETBASRE
BAXT - RBELERBREMN -

2020 HFMLBEE2ERN - FE

TRANSFORMATION IN FULL SWING AND HEZHNEBFZLER
CONTINUING TO PROMOTE MARKETING

AND DIGITAL DEVELOPMENT IN 2020

Amid the outbreak of COVID-19 at the beginning of 2020, 20204 %] FHEHAEBIEE  BEREREK 5B
remote service has become a trend, creating an imminent need of # . FEMEF(LFKWEEY - RIS LA FELE
digitalization for merchants. We are the pioneer in initiating digital AR BEEHFT/ER W EE2020F TR 2 EE
transformation among comparable companies and completing the

full implementation in 2020.

Striving for digital marketing and turning
towards innovative solutions for emerging

digital scenarios

We will promote the online marketing, for example, the digital
marketing tools, and support merchants to gain from private
domain through the development of mini programs. We will
strive for emerging scenarios in relation to social e-commerce,
industrial chain SaaS and B2B matchmaking platforms and
deliver scenario solutions with the API-based method.

1 BRAOEHEF EOHFCHES
SAIFERG R

BB HEBREELHESHFTEHTA - U
RFFE B ERAEIREAAN : At
REM  EXEPESaaS » FB2BF A FH G
= AAPHER T RIS SBRT R
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRME

2. Deepening the digital operation and
enhancing technology, data processing

capabilities and management effectiveness

We will apply industry-leading mobile and cutting-edge
technologies to deeply reach scenarios and optimize the user
experience. We will also implement self-service data acquisition
and intellectual prediction to enhance data asset management
capabilities; and build a digital management system to achieve
online collaboration and management over financial, personnel
and official business.

With reference to the market situation and development
strategies, we remain optimistic about the business growth
of the Company in 2020, as it is expected that all of its
performance indicators will increase steadily. The profitability of
existing businesses is also expected to increase on a sustainable
basis, and the number of merchants and development scale
of innovative businesses will expand rapidly. Besides, various
operating costs of the Company will continue to decrease and
product development efficiency will be further improved.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board and all employees of Huifu Payment, | hereby
express my sincere appreciation to all customers. | would also like to
express my gratitude to all shareholders and stakeholders for their
trust and support for the Company. | would also like to express my
appreciation to all employees and the management team for their
dedication and efficient collaboration at work. In the future, we
will fully embrace the customer-oriented philosophy, accelerate the
digital transformation process and realize leapfrog development.

ZHOU Ye

Chairman of the Board
Shanghai, the PRC

25 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE zWED

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Payment industry has undergone a substantial reform. Under the
“replacing
the direct connection with banks with unified clearing platforms”,

impacts of establishment of NetsUnion and policy of

UnionPay and NetsUnion, as the clearing institutions, are able to
including the
transfer of bankcards and wallets. As a licensed payment institution,
Hufui Payment entered the industrial ecosystems of Alipay and
WeChat by using the clearing and settlement systems of UnionPay
and NetsUnion.

proceed all kinds of transaction payment methods,

New development opportunities have emerged in the market. In the
existing markets,
and marketing of distribution channel chains have became the core

including acquiring market, the digital operation

competitiveness. Different kinds of emerging industrial environments
have been developing towards a thorough digital transformation,
reflecting online and offline integration and digitalization of internal
operations.
B2B matchmaking platforms of sectors have been emerging. For

Besides, a large number of industry SaaS and new
international business, the retail globalization presents considerable
opportunities, which leads to the urgent needs of auxiliary systems
and supports for digital payment solutions.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We position as a digital solution provider with the focus on omni-
channel payment. Under the current payment industrial pattern,
clearing houses, commercial banks, wallet issuers and payment
institutions have established clearer positions. Huifu Payment, as
a licensed institution, can efficiently integrate diverse payment
methods, including bankcards, wallets, bank accounts and cash
management tools, and deliver digital omni-channel payment

solutions for different types of merchants.

Our omni-channel payment product capacities have shown rapid
In 2019, the number of wallet’'s QR-code-scanning
reaching the peak of 13 million

improvement.
transactions exceeded 2.4 billion,
transactions per day.

We made efforts to upgrade SaaS from a service provider of
information and product to a transaction service provider by
strengthening the digital solutions capabilities of “Payment + SaaS”.
In 2019, we have newly added 255 cooperative Saa$ institutions with
accumulated number of cooperative SaaS institutions reaching 392.
Following the successful launch of “Adapay”, which is a lightweight
"Payment + SaaS” product, the customers’ docking time has been
greatly reduced from several weeks to three days, with 80% of the
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BHEEZWED

customers achieved automatic operating services. Our industrial
solution business has been growing at a fast pace. The scale of air
travel business transactions increased by more than 42%, and we
established cooperation with more than 100 well-known clients in
the industry chain, representing a year-on-year increase of 148% in
terms of cross-border and international business payment transaction
volume.

By launching digital operation services in the integrated merchants
acquiring business, the operating gross margin increased by 12.7%
year-on-year.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s payment
volume through four main business directions for the year ended 31
December 2019 while restating payment volume for the year ended
31 December 2018 for comparison:

RITEMRATREBRRELRE  MIKEERRHHER
BWRL2%  HEBRRNZEXEBRRFEYEIE B
BMEBREBYNRFIERLIER 148% °

BMESARPRERHHETHFELRY
EBEMKRFLLIRT12.7% -

TRHEINEZ2019F 12 A3 B ILFEARERERB
TWAEBK RN NERA  FRFEMEHZE20184F
12 A3 BIEFEMNZ [ ERMAMELT

Unit: RMB in billion
B2y ARBA BT

Percentage
2018 changed
20184 BlAES
Payment Volume ZIE

— Integrated merchants acquiring — REEmPUE 1,532.7 1,284.6 19%
— SaasS service — SaaS kR 195.9 19.1 926%
— Industry solution — TERRAFR 406.5 477.4 (15%)

— Cross-border & international — BIRREEEG
business 50.1 20.2 148%
Total &t 2,185.2 1,801.3 21%

Based on the above for the year ended 31 December 2019, the
payment volume through four business directions amounted to
approximately RMB2,185.2 billion in aggregate, representing a
growth of around 21% as compared to last year. Such increase was
mainly attributable to integrated merchants acquiring, SaaS service
and cross-border & international business. Although the scale of
air travel business transactions increased by 42% year-on-year, the
increase in payment volume was partly offset by industry solution as
a result of the influence of internet financial regulatory policy.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION"AND ANALYSIS

B E 2 & am o AT

OPERATING RESULTS AND ANALYSIS

Year Ended 31 December 2019 Compared to Year

Ended 31 December 2018

The following table sets forth the comparative figures for the years

REXBENDW
BZE2019F12 831 ALLEEHE

HZ2018F 12 A1 HILFELHE
TRDBIETEH Z=20184F & 2019F 12 A31H 1t

ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, respectively: FEH L EEIE
Unit: RMB’000
By - ARKEFIT
Percentage
2019 2018 changed
2019 F 20184 2lAED
Revenue 'ON 3,683,514 3,246,493 13%
Cost of sales $HE AR (2,698,145) (2,357,014) 14%
Gross Profit EF 985,369 889,479 11%
Selling and marketing expenses PHE N LAY (200,591) (132,541) 51%
Administrative expenses 1T (260,288) (294,078) (11%)
Research and development expenses R (305,366) (231,704) 32%
Finance costs & AR (18,866) (24,451) (23%)
Share of gains of associates FEAG B & R B e 239 3,051 (92%)
Fair value gains on financial assets AR BEGENEA
at fair value through profit or loss BalemEEZ
R EEYR 3,927 4,410 (11%)
Other expenses HEmfx (15,347) (91,467) (83%)
Other income and gains E b U A R Uz 60,380 65,868 (8%)
Profit before tax i A0 RS 249,457 188,567 32%
Income tax expenses ZECY 1 (6,902) (14,001) (51%)
Profit for the year NEERE 242,555 174,566 39%
Profit/(loss) attribute to: T & EAEFIE,
(E18)
Owners of the parent [SYNSIEZF PN 248,995 176,065 41%
Non-controlling interests IEVERE S (6,440) (1,499) 330%
242,555 174,566 39%
Non-IFRS Financial Measures FEC B PR B I 3R 45 2 Al
MR R
Reconciliation of profit for the year REZFHEEBITDA
to EBITDA # R
EBITDA EBITDA 511,392 470,597 9%
Reconciliation of profit for the year NSy S| D EER
to adjusted net profit JHAE ) E R
Adjusted net profit RAEFFE 302,823 262,937 15%

Huifu Payment Limited SCA X THR AR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BHEEZWED

REVENUES

The Group's businesses continued to expand in 2019 with a recorded
revenue of approximately RMB3,683.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2019, representing an increase of around 13% as
compared to approximately RMB3,246.5 million last year. Such
increase was mainly attributable to the rapid growth in payment
transaction volume of SaaS service and cross-border & international
business and the steady increase in integrated merchants acquiring
transactions.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s
revenue through four main business directions for the year ended
31 December 2019 as compared to that for the year ended 31
December 2018:

WA

AEBEBE2019FFHERE - HZ=2019F12 A
B1TRALEFE  MAZIHARKE36835HE T
BEFHOARE3 246 5B BT RA13% © %18
EEFERFEN SaaS Rk - BERBEBREBHIAR
SERBIEE  RNGEEPRERSITEBRIEE -

TREPEHZ2019F12A31 B ILFEAEB RS
VIRZEB T MAU A4 - B3 220184 12 A 31
B I FE AU ABRLRME L

Unit: RMB’000
B ARETFT

Percentage

2019 2018 changed

2019 % 2018 F BlE L

— Integrated merchants acquiring — AP E 2,790,184 2,716,431 3%

— Saas service — SaaS iR 518,500 46,708 1,010%

— Industry solution — TERATE 338,679 453,360 (25%)
— Cross-border & international — BIR KB ER

business 36,151 29,994 21%

Total &%t 3,683,514 3,246,493 13%

The Group’s revenue amounted to approximately RMB3,683.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, representing
an increase of around 13% as compared to the year ended 31
December 2018, primarily for the reasons that: (i) revenue from the
integrated merchants acquiring maintained a steady growth; (ii) the
Group strengthened business cooperation with SaaS providers, and
supported the digital transformation of medium-small-and-micro
enterprises in terms of retail, industry chain, corporate management
as well as payment and distribution service fields, moving SaaS
service towards a rapid development; (iii) the Group recorded
an increase in the revenue from the cross-border & international
business in light of the increase of transaction volume due to the
cooperation with numerous renowned domestic and overseas
institutions and provision of full-services solutions; and (iv) as a
result of the influence of internet finance regulatory policy on the
overall industry development, the revenue from industry solution was
affected to some extent and partially offset the said increase of the
revenue.
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COST OF SALES

The following table sets forth the cost of sales of the Group by

nature for the period indicated:

TREFATHERIEEE DN ARBHERA :

Unit: RMB’000
By AT

Percentage

2019 2018 changed

2019 F 20184 BESL

Commission and fees e k&R 1,792,252 1,638,116 9%
Processing fee RIEE 673,595 444,773 51%
Depreciation of payment terminals SR ITE 191,638 225,377 (15%)
Customer identification fee BEHRE 13,697 18,986 (28%)
Cost of payment terminals ST A RS B AN 358 2,192 (84%)
Others HAith 26,605 27,570 (4%)
Total A%t 2,698,145 2,357,014 14%

The cost of sales of the Group increased by around 14% from
approximately RMB2,357.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to approximately RMB2,698.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. Such increase was primarily attributable to: (i)
an increase of around 9% in the commission and fees in light of
the increase of revenue of the Group as a result of the increase
of the payment volume acquired through ISOs; (ii) an increase of
about 51% in processing fee due to the increased payment volume

processed mainly in respect of SaaS services; and (iii) a decrease in

depreciation of payment terminals mainly due to the expiration of

certain depreciation of payment terminals.

NEEHEKRABEEZ2018F 12 A31BIEFEL
ARMB235708 B L ERN14% ZEH E2019F
12A31BILEFEHARKE2,6981HETT ° &1BIE
FERRR  (WVEEAEBRAGEMSHERE
FRIBINAI 9% + TR BBISO B =1L
FTER : (i) BRIRE I ANAIS51% » WL TR A AR 3B S
E2(EB BSaaSRH ) EMATE : K (iii) AT 4w 3T
ETRIZEZIL IMRIGITELRIAE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE2ZHNBES T

GROSS PROFIT

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's gross
profit through four main business directions for the year ended
31 December 2019 as compared to those for the year ended 31
December 2018:

EF

TREHEZ2019F 12 A3 B L FEAERRB
MAREKSEHEFPM  HEZ2018412 A 31
HIEFEMEFNPAEMELL

Unit: RMB’000

By AREFT
2019 2018 Percentage
2019 2018 F changed in
Gross Gross Gross Gross  gross profit
profit margin profit margin EFZ(
E| E E7 EF% [ERalse

Merchant Payment Services BE X R

— Integrated merchants acquiring — AP kE 718,361 25.7% 619,264 22.8% 16%
— Saas$ service — SaaS AR 78,215 15.1% 6,974 14.9% 1,022%
— Industry solution — TERRAAR 169,400 50.0% 247,071 54.5% (31%)
— Cross-border & international business — P35 [ BIF2 £ 7% 19,393 53.6% 16,170 53.9% 20%
Total At 985,369 26.8% 889,479 27.4% 1%

The Group's gross profit increased by around 11% from
approximately RMB889.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to approximately RMB985.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. Its overall gross profit margin amounting to 27.4%
during the year ended 31 December 2018 declined to 26.8% for the
year ended 31 December 2019. Such decrease in gross profit margin
was primarily attributable to the services provided by integrated
merchants acquiring and SaaS service accounted for a higher
percentage compared to last year. Meanwhile, integrated merchants
acquiring and Saa$ service with lower gross profit margin accounted
for an increase as compared with the year ended 31 December 2018.

Huifu Payment Limited SCAEATAR2ARF  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FE i
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889 S EHBETEEN11%E2HZ=2019F 12 A 31
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BHEE w0

SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES

The selling and marketing expenses of the Group increased by around
51% from approximately RMB132.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to approximately RMB200.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. Such increase was primarily attributable
to: (i) an increase in advertising and business development fees
incurred to further expand business by the Group; and (ii) an increase
in staff cost mainly including the increase in basic salaries and the
Company's share award scheme expense.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The administrative expenses of the Group decreased by around
11% from approximately RMB294.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to approximately RMB260.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. Such decrease was primarily attributable
to: (i) a decrease in professional fees of 2019 as compared to the
professional service fees mainly in relation to the global offering
and payment to professional parties for the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in 2018; and (ii) a gradual decrease
in equity-settled share option expense along with the progress of
amortization.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

The research and development expenses of the Group significantly
increased by around 32% from approximately RMB231.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB305.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2019. Such increase
was primarily due to an increase in research and development
investments, including an increase in the number of research and
development staff as the Group's business further developed.

FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs of the Group include interest expenses on bank
borrowings and interest expenses on lease liabilities. The interest
expenses on bank borrowings represent the interest the Group paid
to commercial banks for borrowings.

The finance costs of the Group decreased by around 23% from
approximately RMB24.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to approximately RMB18.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. Such decrease was primarily attributable to
respective repayments of loan amount of HK$215.0 million and
borrowings of RMB371.8 million, which correspondingly resulted in
the decrease in the average balances of the bank borrowings of the
Group.

HEREHMAX
REBEHEEREHATHEE2018F 12 A31HLE
FENARBI258ETIBRLAS51% ZEE 2019
FNRANBLEFEHARBE 2006 BET - AR
BEZHAR  (VEEREBHERESBEZN - UHEAE
B —PHRERES RG()BIKRANEN =268
FBEAT & RARR KD ER T SIFS M -

THEX

ANEBTHRESZHEEZ2018F12A31BIEFEY
ARB2941BEBTHLH 1% EEZE2019F12
A3MBILFEHARK2603FE T - EHAKRIEE
ZHRN () 2019FNEERBERY - FEZEAERR
AIEDR 2018 FEBBH AR D ATER DR ([BR
FDEREMEBRBEEMRAZEEATZIAHEE
RS E R (i) AEREENERER I EEE®EE

MR
NEEFEBEXAEEZ2018FE 12 A31 B IEFEY
ARM231.7BETTABIEMNA32% ZEHE 20194
12A3MHLEFENARKIC4EET - BHERE
FEHRHERALN  HFREABHEEER
EEEBRE—SERMA MG -

A A
AEERERASERTEROA SR AEES
BRI SR - RITERNEHLEAEAREE
RITHNEROFE -

NEFFERANAEEZ2018F 12 31 BIEEEL
ARB2458EBLRLH23% ZEHE2019F12 A
BTHIFFEHARKISIEE T - EHURIETER
MNEETERLSEA2IS0AEBITHER AR
BEARYEINSEELMER  #mED T AE
BERITERM TR -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BHEEZWED

FAIR VALUE GAINS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Change in fair value of investment of the Group at fair value through
profit or loss decreased from approximately RMB4.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB3.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019, mainly resulting from the fair
value gains of equity investment.

OTHER EXPENSES

The other expenses of the Group decreased by around 83% from
approximately RMB91.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to approximately RMB15.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. The other expense mainly include the impairment of
other receivable, foreign exchange differences and loss on disposal
of items of properties, plant and equipments.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

The Group’s other income and gains mainly include: (i) interest
income of wealth management products; and (ii) government grants.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Companies are subject to income tax on an individual legal entity
basis. Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic
of China (FEARKEMBEMEAEREL), a subsidiary of the Group
was recognised as a key software enterprise, which was entitled
to preferential corporate income tax policies and subject to the
statutory rate of 10%.

The income tax expense of the Group decreased by around
51% from approximately RMB14.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to approximately RMB6.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. Such decrease was primarily because (i)
the Company recorded an increase in research and development
expenses and certain subsidiaries of the Group were entitled to 75%
for calculation of income tax; and (ii) subsidiaries were subject to
different tax rates.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As a result of the above-mentioned reasons and changes, the profit
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 increased by
around 39% to approximately RMB242.6 million from approximately
RMB174.6 million for last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BHEE w0

NON-IFRSS FINANCIAL MEASURES

To supplement the Company’s consolidated financial statements
which are presented in accordance with IFRS, the Company also
uses three non-IFRS measures, including EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA
and adjusted net profits, as additional financial measures, which
are not required by, or presented in accordance with, IFRS. The
Company believes that these three non-IFRS measures facilitate
comparisons of operating performance from period to period and
company to company by eliminating potential impacts of items
that the management of the Company does not consider indicative
of the Company’s operating performance. The Company believes
that these measures provide useful information to investors and
others in understanding and evaluating its consolidated results of
operations in the same manner as they help in the management
of the Company. However, the presentation of EBITDA, adjusted
EBITDA and adjusted net profit may not be comparable to similarly
titled measures presented by other companies. The use of these non-
IFRS measures has limitations as an analytical tool, and the investors
and shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) should not
consider them in isolation from, or as substitute for analysis of, the
Company’s results of operations or financial condition as reported
under IFRS.

The EBITDA is defined as profit for the year adjusted by adding
income tax expense, finance costs, depreciation of property, plant
and equipment, depreciation of right-of-use assets and amortisation
of intangible assets. The adjusted EBITDA is defined as EBITDA
adjusted by adding equity-settled share option expense, share award
scheme expense and one-off listing expense. The adjusted net profit
is defined as profit for the year adjusted by adding equity-settled
share option expense, share award scheme expense and one-off
listing expenses.

IR KR EENDM KT ER E
RERARAIRB(EBETBREENZT|HEGRE
PSSR E - AARFERZEIKEBRYBEREE
BIYETE 774 - BIEEBITDA « &L FAFEEBITDA A M4
AR FHNEIERM B ER ZNER - ZEHET
(BB B S RS R AT E K+ SR BB R BT %5
WMEERDET c KRAIRAE + Z=HIKBHBRT B
WMELEADHERETEHRARTBEEERATE
RBMAQNFELERENELETLE  BARLERTE
HERTRAARREMNEZERE - XRARE %%
HEREARREEREMALTRHEEAEN  F/
EHANREEERABRGE A ABEBIL T GHELRE
EREEELE o AT - NABIFTE5IREBITDA « £ %
EBITDA Kz 4% F8 B )5 AR K w4 AT B2 H fth R R FT 251 &9
BT EEEMAL - ZFIKEBREY B REEL DG
ETEAEITIAGERRY - BEERAQTA
BRE(TRRD TEREAEB LRI BERERFIR
BAEIBR I M EER T2 REE EZE LT BEARNR
KD HT o

EBITDAEE ARNFEFEM EMEHMAYL - BEEK
KW BERIBNE FRAEEETERE
BB - ST EBITDAFESE AEBITDA M I LA
RRSEENBRERY  BROZBTERIER—X
METRAXZ - CRARFAHNEEEAEAFERFBMN L
DR EEMERERSY  RORBFERIR—
KM EWRY -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB 0T

The following table reconciles the Group’s EBITDA, adjusted  TZ&#EFIERNMALEEEBITDA « £ FHE EBITDA R
EBITDA and adjusted net profit for the year presented to the most  FHE F I H BRI BRI B M E LR T E R 275
directly comparable financial measures calculated and presented in  HIESREEZ A LSS E 5 A EER ¢
accordance with the IFRS for the periods indicated:

Unit: RMB’000
B ARETT

For the years ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
Percentage
2018 changed
20184 BlEIL

Reconcile of profit for the year AEEFBEEBITDA K

to EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA KIAEBITDAKREE

profit for the year FIE R E BR
Profit for the year IR FE I 242,555 174,566 39%
Add: pIlIgE
Income tax expense FTiSfif 6,902 14,001 (51%)
Finance costs BEAA 18,866 24,451 (23%)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB REE

equipment E 228,109 249,128 (8.0%)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELSENE 6,425 — N/A 3 A
Amortisation of intangible assets AT A B 8,535 8,451 1%
EBITDA EBITDA 511,392 470,597 9%
Add: hn
Equity-settled share option expense AR S E A BB RS #E A X2 21,129 70,800 (70%)
Share award scheme expense &% 1 82 Bh =t &I 5 52 39,139 — N/A 3
One-off listing expense — R FmHEY — 17,571 (100%)
Adjusted EBITDA RFEZEBITDA 571,660 558,968 2%
Profit for the year N ZF)E 242,555 174,566 39%
Add: pIE
Equity-settled share option expense N AR ERER X 21,129 70,800 (70%)
Share award scheme expense B SR ENET Bl 2 39,139 — N/A 7~ iE B
One-off listing expense —RME TR — 17,571 (100%)
Adjusted net profits KAEFFE 302,823 262,937 15%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BHEE w0

The EBITDA of the Group increased by around 9% from
approximately RMB470.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to approximately RMB511.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The adjusted EBITDA of the Group increased by around 2% from
approximately RMB559.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to approximately RMB571.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The adjusted net profit of the Group increased by around 15% from
approximately RMB262.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to approximately RMB302.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2019.

FINANCIAL POSITION
Current assets and liabilities and adjusted current

assets and liabilities

Due to the nature of its businesses, the Group has a highly liquid
balance sheet. Substantially all of the Group’s assets and liabilities
are due within one year. The Group receives, processes and transfers
a significant amount of funds on behalf of its clients on a daily basis.

The following table sets forth the selected financial information from
the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as of
the dates indicated:

ANEE R EBITDAMEE 2018412 A31 BIEFEL
ARBEA70.6 BETTEMNA 9% EEE2019F 12 A
3STREFEHARBSIM4BET °

AEEALHAZEBITDABRE £2018F 12 A31 51k
FEHARESS9.08ETIENL2% E2E £ 2019
FIRANBEFENARKSTITIEET -

NEERKFHZFANBHREZE2018F12 A31H1E
FEHOARB 262 9HE T INA 15% ZHZE 2019
F12A31BIEEFEHARE3028FETT ©

BB
RBEEHRAEEREARRDEERAE

MR AREEEKNEE  AEBENEERAEBERAS
BRemndt AEEEAXIEERBBER—F
WNEH - AEBHERKREP W - [EE REEKX

TERHFBEFTOBEERGA B BRARFEH
EETEER -

Unit: RMB’000
B ARETT

As of As of
31 December 31 December Percentage
2019 2018 changed

HZE2019% EHZE20184F
12A31H 12A31H gflraot
Current assets mENEE 9,418,164 8,831,113 7%
Current liabilities mEIAE 8,040,794 7,619,315 6%
Net current assets BB EFE 1,377,370 1,211,798 14%
Non-current assets EmEEE 812,218 955,037 (15%)
Non-current liabilities SERBAR 126,473 183,240 (31%)
Total equity A 2,063,115 1,983,595 4%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB 0T

The Group holds client funds in segregated accounts which are
payable to its clients, also known as the client reserve funds. The
amount of such client reserve funds fluctuates significantly from time
to time based on the clients’ business activities, payment volume,
timing of clearing and settlement and other external factors that
are largely unrelated to the financial condition of the Group but can
cause significant changes to its balance sheet. As such, the Company
believes the amount of its client reserve funds is not a meaningful
indicator of its current assets and liabilities. Therefore, the Group
presents the adjusted assets and liabilities in the following table to
exclude the effect of client reserve funds as of the dates indicated:

|
v

Adjusted current assets”
Adjusted current liabilities®”
Adjusted net current assets” i

B A

=

e e e
=

@‘Eﬁ@
ge
B

R

Notes:

Adjusted current assets equal to total current assets less receivable on behalf

of clients and cash received on behalf of clients.

Adjusted current liabilities equal to total current liabilities less payable on

behalf of clients.

Adjusted net current assets equal to adjusted current assets less adjusted

current liabilities.

The Group’s adjusted net current assets as of 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately RMB995.6 million, increased by around
56% as compared to the adjusted net current assets of approximately
RMB637.8 million as of 31 December 2018, primarily due to (i) a
decrease in current assets and current liabilities as a result of the
Group’s repayment of bank loans; and (i) the said decrease was
partially offset by the current assets as a result of the increase in
profit for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Unit: RMB’000

By AREFT

As of As of
31 December 31 December Percentage
2019 2018 changed

BZE20194F HZE20184F
12A31H 12A31H BlESE
1,647,951 1,850,030 (11%)
652,375 1,212,276 (46%)
995,576 637,754 56%

MIEE
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BERREPERNERS -

(1

( 2 ) g«<
Ig o
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Aff -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BHEE w0

The Group’'s restricted cash increased by around 42% from
approximately RMB1,610.7 million as of 31 December 2018 to
approximately RMB2,280.2 million as of 31 December 2019, primarily
attributable to an increase in client reserve funds. In addition, the
Group’s restricted cash as of 31 December 2019 also included
security deposits for letters of guarantee and other deposits relating
to its payment business.

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS

The following table sets forth the selected financial information from
the consolidated statements of cash flow of the Group for the years
indicated:

AREEZRHELHEZ2018F 12 A31BHAR
16107 BB TEMO42% ZEHE2019F12 A
3STEHNARK 2280288 L TEHREFEN
I o pHN - ANEEEE2019F 12 A31HHOF
RS ERERIRETS MNEMBEINERN

BEREDH
TRMIBZFTFEFERE AR RERPD
RIS A R -

Unit: RMB’000
Ef7 - ARETT

Percentage
2019 2018 changed
2019 % 20184 BlEIL
Net cash flow generated from KEEBERSRE
operating activities FER 458,868 719,449 (36%)
Net cash flow used in investment KREEFARESRE
activities FEE (158,077) (790,751) (80%)
Net cash flow (used in)/generated mREEE(TA) e
from financing activities BemE R (468,347) 1,208,986 (139%)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BENRESEBWORD)
cash equivalents P hilipEs-c (167,556) 1,137,684 (115%)
Cash and cash equivalents at the HEAFEHIRE R
beginning of the relevant year HEeEEY 1,514,966 304,736 397%
Effect of foreign exchange rate IEERSHH
changes, net b3 19,406 72,546 (73%)
Cash and cash equivalents at the HEEEHRARESR
end of the relevant year RE&ZEY 1,366,816 1,514,966 (10%)

The Group's cash from operating activities mainly consists of the
Group's revenue. The Group’s net cash flow from operating activities
decreased by around 36% to approximately RMB458.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 from approximately RMB719.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

REBERKEFIMBEREeETERTEREAEER
A AEBERETHMBHEeREFEAEE 2018
FNRANBEFEHOARKE719488 TH D
436% ZH E2019F 12 A3 B IEFEHARE
458 9 HETT °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BHEEZWED

The Group’s cash used in investment activities mainly consists of
the purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
property, plant and equipment and increase in placement of time
deposits with original maturity of over three months. The Group’s net
cash flow in investment activities decreased from a net cash outflow
of approximately RMB790.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to net cash outflow from investment activities of RMB158.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, primarily attributable
to net cash outflow used in investment activities and cash outflow
used in purchases of items of property, plant and equipment
amounting to approximately RMB617.1 million in 2018 while cash
outflow used in cash outflow used in purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment amounting to approximately RMB77.6 million
in 2019.

The Group’s cash used in financing activities mainly consists of
repayments of bank borrowings and payment on repurchase of
shares. The Group’s net cash flow from financing activities decreased
to a net cash outflow of approximately RMB468.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 from a net cash inflow of approximately
RMB1209.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018, primarily
attributable to (i) the repayment of bank borrowings, (ii) the payment
on repurchase of shares while (iii) the funds raised in the global
offering in 2018.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As of 31 December 2019, the total equity of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB2,063.1 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB79.5 million as compared to the beginning
of 2019, among which, (a) the equity interest attributable to the
Shareholders amounted to approximately RMB2,063.4 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB84.1 million as
compared to the beginning of 2019, which was primarily attributable
to the profit of approximately RMB249.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and the capital reserve of approximately
RMB21.1 million in respect of the pre-IPO share option scheme of
the Company and the capital reserve of approximately RMB39.1
million in respect of the share award scheme, and was partially
offset by the repurchase of shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
of RMB29.6 million and of approximately RMB222.8 million under
the share award scheme of the Company; and (b) the equity interest
of minority Shareholders decreased by approximately RMB6.4 million
due to the loss for the year ended 31 December 2019.

As of 31 December 2019, the Company had an aggregated amount
of 1,250,336,326 issued shares. The total market capitalization
of the Company was HK$3,113.3 million (calculated based on the
closing price of the Shares as of 31 December 2019).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BHEE w0

BANK LOANS

As of 31 December 2019, the aggregate balance of the Group’s
interest-bearing bank loans was approximately RMB289.1 million,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB428.1 million as
compared to that of approximately RMB717.3 million at the
beginning of 2019, primarily attributable to (i) repayment of the non-
resident account loan agreement entered into with Ping An Bank in
January 2019, amounting to approximately HK$215.0 million with
an interest rate of 2.3243% per annum; and (ii) repayment of the
liquidity loan agreements of Jiang Su Bank and China CITTC Bank
amounting to RMB98.0 million and RMB50.0 million with interest
rates of 4.9155% and 4.80% per annum, in November 2019 and
February 2019, respectively.

INTEREST RATE RISK AND EXCHANGE RATE

RISK

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not adopt
any derivatives to hedge interest risk. As of 31 December 2019,
approximately 79% of the borrowings were at fixed interest rate. To
manage our interest rate risk, we optimise our debt portfolio from
time to time.

The operations of the Group are mainly carried out in the PRC
with most transactions settled in RMB, and the Group is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the United States dollar and the Hong
Kong dollar. Therefore, foreign exchange risk primarily arose from
recognized assets and liabilities in the Group when receiving or to
receive foreign currencies from, or paying or to pay foreign currencies
to, overseas business partners. The currency of the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents are mainly denominated in Renminbi, and others are
denominated in United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar. As of 31
December 2019, the Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB. In
April 2019, the Group entered into RMB/HKD swap agreements with
a financial institution amounted to RMB100.0 million for a term of
one month. In July 2019 and October 2019, the Group entered into
RMB/USD swap agreements with a financial institution amounted
to USD15 million and USD10 million for a term of 3 months. The
arrangement was completed by the end of December 2019.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

The Company did not have any significant investment, acquisition
and disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures for the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BHEEZWED

MORTGAGE OF THE GROUP’S ASSETS
As of 31 December 2019, the Group mortgaged its group assets

as securities in favor of several banks to obtain certain loans. The
total mortgaged group assets amounted to approximately RMB350.3
million.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND INVESTMENT
The Company’s capital expenditures primarily consist of expenditures
for the purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets, investment in an associate and other long-term assets. As of
31 December 2019, the capital expenditures of the Company was
approximately RMB149.3 million, primarily attributable to (i) expenses
for the mobile POS terminals purchased last year; (i) investment in
Weimob; and (iii) capital contribution to investment in an associate.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

As disclosed in the section headed
Proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated 1 June 2018 (the
"Prospectus”), the Company intends to use approximately 20%
of the net proceeds from the global offering for pursuing selective
acquisition of, or strategic investment in, payment technology
companies, payment service providers and/or SaaS providers. The

“Future Plans and Use of

Company has been looking for proper acquisition or investment
targets during its daily operation.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT

Our treasury management functions undertake the responsibility
of cash management, liquidity planning and control, cost-effective
capital provided to the Group, liaison with banks and other related
institutions, investment in financial products, as well as mitigation
of all financial risks such as interest rates and foreign exchange. The
design of our treasury management functions aims to coordinate
with the Group’s long-term and short-term demands and comply
with the criteria of proper governance.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of 31 December 2019, the Company did not have any material
contingent liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E 2 & am o AT

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

FERBLEER

Gross margin'”
Net profit margin®

s E
BRI

Adjusted profit margin® T ER

EBITDA margin
Adjusted EBITDA margin

EBITDA R =&
(R AL EBITDA FI &

Gearing ratio" BAGEHEY
Adjusted gearing ratio® AR BEH RO

Notes:

(1

(2)

(4)

Gross profit margin equals gross profit divided by revenue and multiplied by
100%.

Net profit margin equals net profit for the year divided by revenue and
multiplied by 100%.

Adjusted net profit margin equals adjusted net profit divided by revenue and
multiplied by 100%.

Gearing ratio equals to net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.
The Group includes, within net debt, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, trade payables, contract liabilities, other payables, deposits
received and accruals and amounts due to related companies less cash and
cash equivalents. Capital represents equity attributable to owners of the
parent.

Adjusted gearing ratio equals to adjusted net debt divided by total capital
plus adjusted net debt. The Group includes, within adjusted net debt,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade payables, contract
liabilities, other payables, deposits received and accruals less payable on
behalf of clients, cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents equity
attributable to owners of the parent. N/A represents the adjusted gearing
ratio is negative which indicates the Group is in a net cash position (i.e. has
more cash and cash equivalents than its debt) which is usually taken as a
good sign.

Wi

For the For the

year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZE2019F HZE20184F
12A31H 12H31H
LFE IFEE
26.8% 27.4%

6.6% 5.4%

8.2% 8.1%

13.9% 14.5%

15.5% 17.2%

As of As of

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZE2019F HZE2018F
12A431H 12 H31H
76.7% 76.1%

N/A FiEH N/A 38 A

EFEEREFBABRABILL100% ©

M RSN AREZF R AU AT RIA 100% ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB 0T

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Amid the outbreak of COVID-19 at the beginning of 2020,
remote service has become a trend, creating an imminent need of
digitalization for merchants. We are the pioneer in initiating digital
transformation among comparable companies and completing the
full implementation in 2020.

We will strive for digital marketing and turning towards innovative
solutions for emerging digital scenarios. We will promote the online
marketing, for example the digital marketing tools, and support
merchants to gain from private domain through the development
of mini programs. We will strive for emerging scenarios in relation
to social e-commerce, industrial chain SaaS and B2B matchmaking
platforms and deliver scenario solutions with the API-based method.

We will deepen the digital operation and enhancing technology,
data processing capabilities and management effectiveness. We
will apply industry-leading mobile and cutting-edge technologies
to deeply reach scenarios and optimize the user experience. We
will also implement self-service data acquisition and intellectual
prediction to enhance data asset management capabilities; and build
a digital management system to achieve online collaboration and
management over financial, personnel and official business.

With reference to the market situation and development strategies,
we remain optimistic about the business growth of the Company
in 2020, as it is expected that all of its performance indicators will
increase steadily. The profitability of existing businesses is also
expected to increase on a sustainable basis, and the number of
merchants and development scale of innovative businesses will
expand rapidly. Besides, various operating costs of the Company will
continue to decrease and product development efficiency will be
further improved.
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DIRECTORS

Name Age Date of appointment Position

& Fir ZEEH B

Mr. ZHOU Ye 53 21 December 2017 Chairman of the Board, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer

JE 5 A 20174128218 EFEREE BOESRERHOE

Ms. MU Haijie 48 2 March 2018 Executive Director and President

BgRZ+ 201843 A2H PITEERAH

Mr. JIN Yuan 45 2 March 2018 Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and
Joint Company Secretary

SIREE 201843 A2H WITEE  BRVEERBFEARINE

Mr. CHYE Chia Chow 48 2 March 2018 Non-executive Director

BEMEE 201843 A2 H EHMITES

Mr. ZHOU Joe 58 2 March 2018 Non-executive Director

ZHOU Joe & 201843 A28 HEHITES

Ms. WANG Lihong 52 1 November 2019 Non-executive Director

FEysh &+ 2019411 A1 H JEHITES

Mr. CHEN Zhongjue 41 2 March 2018 Non-executive Director

Bk P R 5 A 201843 A2H HEHITES

Mr. LIU Jun 59 2 March 2018" Independent non-executive Director

Bl kE 201843 /287 BEMITEE

Mr. WANG Hengzhong 52 2 March 2018" Independent non-executive Director

TEREE 201843 /287 BUFNITES

Ms. ZHANG Qi 60 2 March 2018" Independent non-executive Director

R AL+ 201843 /287 BEMITEE

Note: " Effective from the Listing Date

BisE - B £ BB AR
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Mr. ZHOU Ye, aged 53, was appointed as an
in December 2017 and the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer in March 2018. He is also the chairman of the
board of directors of PnR Network, the chairman of the board
of directors and the chief executive officer of China PnR and the
chairman of the board of directors of PnR Data. Mr. ZHOU currently
serves as a director of the Management Company; a non-executive
director of PnR Holdings, PnR (Cayman), Paytech Holdings and 14
members of the Excluded Group and a limited partner of Shanghai
Huifu Internet Financial Information Venture Capital Investment
Center (Limited Partnership) ( L/BENEMETRESRBEIERE
RO (EBRAE)) ("Huifu Fintech"). Mr. ZHOU has over 30 years of
experience in computer technology, electronic payments and finance
and corporate management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. ZHOU's
previous work experience primarily includes: serving as a software
engineer in the No. 32 Institute of Electronics Industrial Ministry (&
F TR 32895 FT, currently known as the Technology No. 32
Institute of China Electronics Technology Group Corporation (FFEIE
FRIEEEARTE=+"H%F)) from June 1989 to February 1993;
the manager of the sales department, a vice president and a senior
vice president of Shanghai Huateng Software System Co., Ltd. (_£/&
ERSHRHEERAA) from February 1993 to June 2000; and an
executive director and the general manager of ChinaPay Electronic
Payment Service Co., Ltd. (E/GSHRBEFZNRBSERAR) from
June 2000 to May 2006.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENERERE

Mr. ZHOU obtained a bachelor’'s degree of science in wireless
electronics from the department of electronic engineering of Fudan
University in Shanghai, the PRC in July 1986; a master's degree
of engineering in communication and electronic systems from the
department of wireless electronics of Shanghai University of Science
and Technology (/&RIEZH T AE, currently known as Shanghai
University) in Shanghai, the PRC in June 1989; and a master’s degree
in business administration from China Europe International Business
School in Shanghai, the PRC in April 2002. Mr. ZHOU graduated
from the DBA Global Finance Program of Shanghai Advanced
Institute of Finance of Shanghai Jiao Tong University in Shanghai,
the PRC and obtained a doctor’s degree of business administration
in Global Financial Management from Arizona State University in
May 2015. In July 2019, Mr. Zhou was qualified as a senior engineer
in artificial intelligence by the committee of Shanghai Engineering
artificial intelligence (LM IR RIIA L EEESABHEITE
8 )Mr. ZHOU was awarded the “Leading Talent of Shanghai City
for the Year of 2011 (2011 L)8M4%8FE AA) " by the Organization
Department of CPC Shanghai Committee (7 #t G ZE4A4%6) and
Shanghai Municipal Human Resources and Social Security Bureau (_E
BHANEBRMAERER) in December 2011 and the “Top Ten
Financial Innovation Figures for the Year of 2012 (2012 F+ A%
BhEIFT A®) " jointly by Xinhua News Agency Shanghai Bureau (¥t
#3859 1t), Shanghai Financial Association (/8@ B A S
and institutions in December 2012. In 2018, Mr. ZHOU was awarded
the “Siyuan contribution award of outstanding alumni” by Shanghai
Jiaotong University (/R BASBHHKEBIRER D). In 2020,
Mr. ZHOU was appointed as a member of the First International
Advisory Committee of Oceanwide International Finance College
of Fudan University (BB X2)Z/8EKRcmBRE —EHEEBNRE
B®Z%8). Mr. ZHOU currently serves as a member of the Internet
Finance Committee of Asset Management Association of China;
a vice chairman of the Association of Shanghai Internet Financial
Industry; an executive director of Shanghai Finance Institute; and a
part-time professor of the Shanghai National Accounting Institute.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. ZHOU directly held 60% equity
interest in China PnR, which was pledged to PnR Network under
the Contractual Arrangements; and he directly held 30,000 ordinary
shares in the Management Company, a substantial Shareholder.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENERERERE

Ms. MU Haijie, aged 48, was appointed as an executive Director
and the President of the Company in March 2018. She is also a
director of PnR Network, PnR JH Tech Co., Ltd. ( F/BEE#HE 8
FAiAR AR ), Shanghai Yifu Cloud Information Technology Co.,
Ltd. ( H/ESNEEFEERE AR AF) and Nanjing Dechen Information
Technology Co., Ltd. (I RERE B FIMEMR A A ); a director
and the president of China PnR; and a director and the general
manager of PnR Data. Ms. MU currently serves as a director of the
Management Company; a director of PnR Holdings, PnR (Cayman),
Paytech Holdings and four members of the Excluded Group. Ms.
MU has over 25 years of experience in financial and accounting,
electronics payment and corporate management. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. MU’s previous work experience primarily includes:
at Shanghai Xingda Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (/88K
EEZEAMRAR) from August 1993 to November 1996; finance
manager of Nike Sports (China) Co., Ltd. ({72825 (FhE)ERAA])
from October 1996 to September 2000; and finance manager and
assistant general manager of ChinaPay Electronic Payment Service
Co., Ltd. (L/BEME T HIEERAF) from October 2000 to May
2006. Ms. MU served as a senior vice president of China PnR from
July 2006 to March 2018.

Ms. MU graduated in international finance from Shanghai Finance
College (HB&RIEEHRIZRK) (currently known as the Shanghai
Lixin University of Accounting and Finance) in Shanghai, the PRC, in
July 1993; and obtained an Executive Master's degree of Business
Administration from China Europe International Business School
in Shanghai, the PRC in October 2013. Ms. MU was awarded the
"EMBA 2011 Outstanding Graduate Award” by China Europe
International Business School in October 2013 and the “Shanghai
Pioneer Award for Conversion of High-Tech Achievements ( /&5 %
BT R L5082 AWHE)” jointly by the Technology Venture Centre
of Shanghai ( &M EHLA|ZEF L) and the Talent Service Centre
of Shanghai (/&M AA RS Ly) of Shanghai in October 2017.
Ms. MU currently serves as a standing member of the council of the
Payment & Clearing Association of China.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Ms. MU directly held 10% equity
interest in China PnR, which were pledged to PnR Network under
the Contractual Arrangements; and she directly held 10,000 ordinary
shares in the Management Company.

Huifu Payment Limited SCAEATAR2ARF  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FE i

BEBLt 485 N2018F3 AEZ T AARRAR
WITESREH - BAAAEMELL - EEEMRES
EERMERAR - EESNEEEREERAR
FEREREERNERARNES  BENXTH
EERBEHEARENSENESRELE - BE
BRI E & EE A E F LA KPR Holdings * PnR
(Cayman) * Paytech Holdings & PO & 3E | 71 & B A
BMES BRIENBERS BFXFREE
ERFEEFB2SFHEER - MAXEER - B
THIRECEEZRE  B1993F 8 A% 199
FMNABRBA LSRR AREEZXEERAQA B
1996 £ 10 A £ 2000F 9 AEIM s (T &) A
PRABIR B 530 4c 3 ¢ LA K B 20004 10 A &= 2006
FOoAEELBRBEEFINTREER QAT
IR R BN IRABACIE - B2r T H 200657 A& 2018
FIARTEGRTHSRIBAE -

BEXLTRI19B3F7TAEXENFR L EN L ESR
SEERERABLESIESHERER)BEE
BhEE LARA2013FE10 BT E EENTEE
BRINSERESSRIMERBT2M B2 LR
2013F 10 BB BB T2 EaEm 20114
EMBAEBEFEEAS]  KHR2017F10 BB LE
mRhR A RO E EET AL RGP O A BEN
[ LR MK RE(LEAME] - BLLTHE
FEYTEEHECESSEHKIEE -

HESRATES BLIRENXTEEESR
10% A s - MENRXTERBANZHERT
PE (T 4845 WA ERN B I EH %A 10,000 I8 @
A% o



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENERERE

Mr. JIN Yuan, aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director
and a Joint Company Secretary in March 2018 and the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company in December 2017. He is also
the chief financial officer of China PnR and a director of PnR
Network and from December 2019, an independent nonexecutive
Director of Shanghai Ganglian E-Commerce Holdings Co.,Ltd. (I
EMEFEBRHOAERAT) (@ company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 300226). Mr. JIN has over 21 years
of experience in financial and accounting, capital operation and
corporate management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. JIN's previous
work experience primarily includes: consecutively serving as the
financial manager, financial controller and board secretary, and a
vice president and the chief financial officer of Shanghai Huateng
Software System Co., Ltd. ( E/EERIHHZRHFERAF) from July
1997 to December 2011; and general manager of the financial
management center of Chinasoft International Co., Ltd. (FR#IEER
AR /A7) and the chief financial officer of its professional service
group from January 2012 to April 2014. Mr. JIN served as an
independent director of Shanghai Tong Shi Network Corporation, a
company listed on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations
(stock code: 833377), from May 2016 to June 2019. Mr. JIN joined
the Group in April 2014 and has consecutively served in several
positions, including as vice president of Shanghai Huifu Technology
Ltd. (_ EBEMARHEARAE) from April 2014 to January 2015 and
as financial controller of China PnR since February 2015.

Mr. JIN obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics in Shanghai, the PRC in July
1997; and a master’s degree in professional accountancy from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in December 2006.
Mr. JIN obtained the qualification of Senior Accountant from the
Shanghai Municipal Human Resources and Social Security Bureau
in December 2013. Mr. JIN is currently an expert consultant of
the National Technical Committee on Accounting Information of
Standardization Administration of Ministry of Finance (Bf X #f &
B et 8 biZELFEMEZEE), a member of the Accounting
Information Committee of the Accounting Society of China; a council
member of the Accounting Society of Shanghai( E)/8M&:tE2<);
a part-time postgraduate tutor at Shanghai National Accounting
Institute; and a part-time postgraduate tutor at the Management
School of Shanghai University.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENERERERE

Mr. CHYE Chia Chow, aged 48, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company in March 2018. He is also a non-executive
director of PnR Holdings and PnR (Cayman). Mr. CHYE currently
serves as a director of Trixen Enterprises Ltd and a director of Net1
International Holdings AS, a company listed on the OTC of Oslo Stock
Exchange (ticker symbol: NET1). In addition, he serves as a non-
executive director in several companies involved in various industries,
including agriculture, property, forestry and telecommunications.
Mr. CHYE has over 23 years of experience in finance, investment
and corporate strategy and management. Mr. CHYE’s previous work
experience includes: serving as a manager in Tokai Bank, Ltd from
June 1996 to October 1999; and consecutively serving as several
positions in Boston Consulting Group from October 1999 to April
2007, including serving as the principal.

Mr. CHYE obtained a bachelor’s degree of business with first-class
honors from Nanyang Technological University in Singapore in June
1996. Mr. CHYE obtained the qualification of Chartered Financial
Analyst from the Association for Investment Management and
Research in June 1999.

Mr. ZHOU Joe, aged 58, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company in March 2018. He also serves as a non-executive
director of PnR Holdings, PnR (Cayman), Paytech Holdings and
two members of the Excluded Group. Mr. ZHOU has served as a
managing partner at Keytone Ventures, a China-focused venture
capital partnership, since 2008. Before founding Keytone Ventures
in 2008, he served as the chief representative of Softbank China
Venture Capital Beijing Office from the end of 1999 to October
2001, and as a managing partner of KPCB China from early 2007 to
April 2008. He also formerly served as a partner of SAIF Partners.

Mr. ZHOU obtained a bachelor’s degree of engineering from Beijing
University of Technology (dbFR T Z.KZ) in Beijing, the PRC in July
1982; and a master’'s degree in electrical engineering from New
Jersey Institute of Technology in the State of New Jersey, the United
States in September 1990. Mr. ZHOU was awarded the “Top 20
Venture Capitalists of the Year of 2001 (2001 4/ Bl &/& By AR
& AN )" jointly by Digital Fortune Magazine (Zi5F 8 E#ts54t) and
Zero2lIPO, Ltd.; and the “Top 10 Most Active Venture Capitalists of
the Year of 2005 (PR ASERAIZIEEA)", the “Top 10 Most
Active Venture Capitalists of the Year of 2006 (B + A/EREAIZEE
& A)" and “Top 10 Venture Capitalists of the Year of 2007 (2007
FhEAI¥IEER1098) " by Zero2IPO, Ltd., respectively. He was
accredited the “Venture Capital Professional of the Year 2010 (2010
FEERMIKER)" by Asian Venture Capital Journal (AVC)) in
November 2010.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENERERE

Ms. WANG Lihong, aged 52, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company in November 2019. She is currently serving
as the chairwoman and CEO of RISE Education Cayman Ltd, a
company listed on the NASDAQ (stock code: REDU). Ms. WANG has
over 13 years of experience in private equity industry. Ms. WANG
served in Bain Capital Asia, LLC from July 2006 to December 2019
and has served as a managing director from January 2011. Ms.
WANG is mainly responsible for private equity investment in Greater
China and Asia Pacific region. Before she joined Bain Capital Asia,
LLC, she has spent eight years in the investment banking industry
in Asia and the United States. She served as an executive director in
Morgan Stanly Dean Witter Asia Limited from March 2005 to July
2006, a vice president in J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited
from October 2001 to March 2005 and worked at Credit Suisse
First Boston (US) prior to joining J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific)
Limited. Ms. WANG also served as a non-executive director of Gome
Electrical Appliances Holding Ltd., a company listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code:
493), from May 2010 to January 2015.

Ms. WANG is currently a director of Columbia Business School
Board of Overseers. Ms. WANG received a Master degree in Business
Administration from Columbia Business School in 1999 and a
Bachelor of Science degree from Fudan University in 1990.

Mr. CHEN Zhongjue, aged 41, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in March 2018 and resigned on 1 November 2019. He is
also a non-executive director of PnR Holdings and PnR (Cayman).
Mr. CHEN is currently a managing director of Bain Capital, LP; a
director of ASIMCO Technologies Group Limited, RISE Education
Cayman Ltd. (a company listed on NASDAQ, stock code: REDU)
and Trans Maldivian Airways (Pvt) Ltd. Mr. CHEN has over 14 years
of experience in private equity industry, and his focus is on the
technology, education, business and financial services sectors. Mr.
CHEN's previous work experience includes: serving as an associate
consultant in Bain & Company from August 2001 to July 2003; and
serving in the headquarters of Bain Capital Private Equity in the
United States from September 2005 to July 2007.

Mr. CHEN obtained a bachelor’'s degree of arts (magna cum laude) in
economics from Harvard College in June 2001, and a master’s degree
in business administration from Harvard Business School in June 2005
in the State of Massachusetts, the United States, respectively.
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Mr. LIU Jun, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company in March 2018, effective since the
Listing Date. He currently serves as a professor in the Rady School
of Management of the University of California, San Diego. Mr. LIU
has over 20 years of experience in research and studies in finance.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. LIU’s previous work experience
includes: serving as an assistant professor in the Anderson School
of Management in the University of California, Los Angeles from
July 2000 to June 2005; an associate professor of the Rady School
of Management of the University of California, San Diego from July
2005 to June 2014 and promoted to full professor in July 2014; a
professor of finance in Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business
(EIm2B7) from September 2007 to August 2009; a professor of
finance in the Shanghai Advanced Institute of Finance (/&5 f &
RbEZp7) of Shanghai Jiao Tong University from July 2012 to August
2016. He was the dean of the Finance School of Southwestern
University of Finance and Economics from April 2007 to April
2016; and an associate dean of the Institute of Financial Studies of
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics from January
2010 to December 2015. Mr. LIU also served as an independent non-
executive director of Insigma Technology Co., Ltd. (I RABHTEHR
& AR AR]) (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600797) from June 2009 to June 2015.

Mr. LIU obtained a bachelor’'s degree of science from Peking
University in Beijing, the PRC in February 1982; a doctor’'s degree
from the University of Texas at Austin in the State of Texas, the
United States in August 1988; and a doctor’s degree in finance
in Stanford University in the State of California, the United States
in August 1999. Mr. LIU was awarded the “BGlI/Michael Brennan
Best Paper” by the Review of Financial Studies in 2005. He was
granted the title of “Cheung Kong Scholars Program (&;I£%)"
by the Ministry of Education of the PRC in 2006 and a member
of the “Recruitment Program of Global Experts (F A&t&l)" by
the Organization Department of the Central Committee of the
Communist Party of China (FR A RABALEET) .
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. WANG Hengzhong, aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company in March 2018, effective
since the Listing Date. Mr. WANG currently serves as the in-charge
partner of Shanghai Branch Office and a member of the fourth
session of the quality control committee of Grant Thornton Certified
Public Accountants (special general partnership) (B [E&5tEI =4
FriEmE®ma®)). Mr. WANG has over 21 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and management. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. WANG's previous working experience includes: serving as the
chief accountant in Shanghai Jiahua Accountancy Co., Ltd. (_F)&1E
ESHMERMERATF) from August 1998 to December 2007;
the legal representative of Shanghai Junfu Pan Chen Zhang Jiahua
Accountancy Co., Ltd. (BB ZEERREEFEAIEBFAT) from
December 2007 to September 2009; a partner of Jingdu Tianhua
Accountancy Co., Ltd. (Shanghai Branch) (REBRESHMEKTA
[RAE) &5 FT) from September 2009 to July 2012; an independent
non-executive director of Great Wall Movie and Television Company
Limited (R FERM AR A 7)) (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 002071) from December 2015 to August
2016; an independent non-executive director of ArtGo Holdings
Limited (a listed company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock
code: 3313) from December 2013 to June 2017; and an independent
non-executive director of Shanghai Ganglian E-Commerce Holdings
Co., Ltd. (E/BHMEE FRBKRMNHEMRAF) (@ company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 300226) from May
2014 to November 2019. Mr. WANG was a council member of the
sixth session of the Shanghai Young Entrepreneurs Association (
BHEFLCEXRBE),; and a member of the fifth session of the
Shanghai Jiading District Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (FBIARBUAHEEZ ST R TEFERE

=2 &FEg
ZE2Z%8).
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Mr. WANG obtained a master’'s degree in professional accountancy
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in
December 2006, and an executive master's degree of business
administration from Shanghai Advanced Institute of Finance of
Shanghai Jiao Tong University in Shanghai, the PRC in 2015. Mr.
WANG obtained the qualification of Certified Public Accountant in
the PRC from the Shanghai Certified Public Accountant Association
in September 1994, and the qualification of International Accountant
from the Association of International Accountants in the United
Kingdom in September 2014. He was accredited the certificate of
independent director qualification from the Shanghai Stock Exchange
in April 2013. Mr. WANG is currently a member of the Jiusan Society
and the Shanghai Economic Special Committee of the Jiusan Society
(=Bx bEm&EHEMELE=®), and a member of the disciplinary
committee of the Association of Certified Public Accountants of
Shanghai ( HEFME MBS LEENEZES).

Ms. ZHANG Qi, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company in March 2018, effective since
the Listing Date. Ms. ZHANG has over 42 years of experience in
finance, business operations and corporate management. Ms.
ZHANG's previous work experience primarily includes: consecutively
serving in several positions in the Nanjing East Road Banking sub-
office of the Huangpu District Office of the Shanghai Branch of
the PBOC from October 1977 to July 1987, including as a clerk
and a vice director of the third depository; consecutively serving
in several positions in the Huangpu District Office of the Shanghai
Branch of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (the “ICBC")
from July 1987 to September 1992, including as a vice director of
Nanjing East Road Banking the third sub-office and a deputy head
of the Deposit Division; serving as a vice president of the Huangpu
Sub-branch of the ICBC from September 1992 to February 1996;
consecutively serving in several positions in the Jing’an Sub-branch
of the Shanghai Branch of the ICBC from February 1996 to January
2000, including as a vice president and the president; consecutively
serving in several positions in the Shanghai Branch of the ICBC from
January 2000 to March 2008, including as the director of the Retail
Banking Division and the Securities Settlement Business Division, an
assistant president, the general manager of the Personal Finance
Business Department and a vice president; and serving as the general
manager of the Private Banking Department of the ICBC from March
2008 to June 2012. Ms. ZHANG served as the chairman of the Joint
Meeting of Private Banking of China Banking Association from July
2011 to November 2012. Ms. ZHANG served as the vice chairman
and an executive director of Red Star Macalline Group Corporation
Ltd (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange under the stock code of 601828 and 1528,
respectively) from June 2012 to October 2018.
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Ms. ZHANG obtained a master’s degree
University of Finance and Economics in Shanghai, the PRC in June
1998; and an executive master's degree of business administration
from the Executive Master of Business Administration program
cosponsored by the Shanghai National Accounting Institute and the
Arizona State University in June 2005. She graduated from the DBA
Global Finance Program of Shanghai Advanced Institute of Finance
of Shanghai Jiao Tong University in Shanghai, the PRC, and obtained
a doctor’s degree of business administration in Global Financial
Management from Arizona State University in May 2016. Ms. ZHANG
obtained the qualification of Senior Economist by the ICBC in August
1997. She was accredited the certificate of independent director
qualification from the Shanghai Stock Exchange in September 2012.

Ms. ZHANG was awarded the title of “National Financial Woman
Pace-Setter (2B & ATETF )" by the PBOC in April 1981; the
“Model Award of ‘Shanghai Woman Pace-Setter’ for the Years
2003-2004 (2003-2004 4 B MI = NALHEF JIZ &£ 458) " by the
Shanghai Women's Federation ( /&M iF% 4 € ) and the Shanghai
Municipal Human Resources and Social Security Bureau (_ & A J
EREMHERER) in March 2005; and “Shanghai Financial Talent
(E/B& @ AA2€)" by the Shanghai Financial Work Committee
of Communist Party and Shanghai Financial Services Office of the
Central Committee of the CPC (R )G ERMIEZEE S LIG™
SERISHAZE) in March 2004.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Date of joining

Name Age the Group Position Responsibility
MAXER
®E Fike BB B BE
Mr. ZHOU Ye 53 July 2006 Chairman of the Responsible for convening and chairing
Board, Executive general meetings and Board meetings;
Director and Chief and responsible for overall management
Executive Officer and deciding major strategies and the
development and investment plan of the
Group
] 5 A 20067 A EREGIRE T BEARRERBRRREREFESE K
EEFEENTE BEAEERREE RS REEIREAR
BERRIEEE
Ms. MU Haijie 48 July 2006 Executive Director and Participating in formulation of business
President plans, strategic and major decisions;
overseeing the day-to-day business and
operations of the Group and work of the
vice Presidents; and directly reporting to
the Chief Executive Officer
BERL L 200647 A PITEERAH SHG|EEBTE  BRRREAR &
EARSEBBEBMESALEIZERNT
B WEERERHATEER
Mr. JIN Yuan 45 April 2014 Executive Director, Participating in the formulation of business
Chief Financial plans, strategic and major decisions;
Officer and Joint responsible for the overall corporate
Company Secretary financial, audit and capital management,
investor relations and company secretarial
matters; and directly reporting to the
Chief Executive Officer
BIREE 20144 A8 WITESF  BEIKE 2SHEMTEHTE BBEEXORE: 88
FEBFEARWE FEBBRBUE  FARERER - KE
EHERRLATMERE  WEEMERH
TEER
Mr. JIANG Jingyu 49 March 2014 Vice President Responsible for technology and data
operations management of the Group;
and directly reporting to the President
EEFRAE 201443 A BlAEE BEAEENRNTREBELER WEE
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Date of joining

Name Age the Group Position Responsibility
IAFRER

®E Fie HBHH B BE

Mr. HUA Lei 38 February 2013 Vice President Responsible for operation of the Group;
and directly reporting to the President

fEExE 201342 A BlAa BEAKENES  WHEREIER

Mr. MA Long 45 August 2019 Vice President Responsible for risk management and
compliance of the Group; and directly
reporting to the President

SRERE 20194 8 A Bl BEAEENRARERRERERT  WHE

For the biography of Mr. ZHOU Ye, Ms. MU Haijie and Mr. JIN Yuan,
please refer to “Directors” in this section.

Mr. JIANG Jingyu, aged 49, was appointed as a vice President of
the Company in March 2018. He is also a vice president of China
PnR and a vice president of PnR Data. Mr. JIANG has over 26 years of
experience in software and technology development and operation
and corporate management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. JIANG's
previous work experience primarily includes: consecutively serving
in several positions in Shanghai Huateng Software System Co., Ltd.
(FEERBHHFZRZLERAE) from November 1993 to February
2006, including as a project manager, manager of the development
department and a vice president; and as a deputy general manager
of Shanghai NTT Data Synergy Software Co., Ltd. (/&2 EE0E
ZEMEERAT) from March 2006 to March 2014. Mr. JIANG
joined the Group in March 2014 and has consecutively served in
several positions, including as a deputy general manager of the No.1
development department of Shanghai Huifu Technology Ltd. and the
general manager of the information center of PnR Data. He served
in PnR Data as the chief technology officer from January 2015 to
December 2015, and as a vice president since January 2016.

Mr. JIANG obtained a bachelor’s degree of engineering in computer
applications in Shanghai Jiao Tong University in Shanghai, the PRC in
July 1992.

[F) 4825 EE ¥

FHEELL BERLLIRESREENEE &
SHAHNIEE] -

EWBFRE A9 R2018F3ABLZTAAR
RIBIAE - HINAEMNKT 245 MIE S SIE2
B ZnEARGEBMABUREERTEERE
FEEEB26FKEH  c EMAREE ZA] - =54
WATESEEERE  B1993F 11 AR 20064
2AREBEBREHRABRAFLEETZER
7 - BRIEEERRE  AZEIMLCERIBES

20063 A& 2014F3 AEE L EEBHBEIEEE
RHEERDBFBLIE - ZHRER2014F3 AMNA
AEE - WhEBETZERN - 215 LFEMEH
BRAFAE —MBIBLCELEMEBESF LR
KIE - HEH2015F 1 AE 2015512 AETEN
BHOEERME  B2016F 1 ARETRIER -

EHEER1992F7 AEBUNTE LEN E83E
REHEREREXRTSELEM -

Huifu Payment Limited LA KT AT ANNUAL REPORT 2019 #E#keE

41



42

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENERERERE

Mr. HUA Lei, aged 38, was appointed as the vice President of the
Company in March 2018. He is a vice president of China PnR, a vice
president of PnR Data. He also serves as a non-executive director
of Paytech Technology Ltd. and Paytech (Hongkong) Technology
Limited. Mr. HUA has over 11 years of experience in strategy
consulting, marketing and sales and corporate management. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. HUA's previous work experience primarily
includes: consecutively serving in several positions, including as a
technician, a facility supervisor and a deputy head (in charge of
operations) of the factory division of Cold Rolled Section Steel Plant
Construction Engineering Design & Research Institute (F 2L T2
REH TSR A S AVHE) (currently known as Shanghai Baosteel Steel
Co., ltd. (H)BEMASHNARAR)) from August 2003 to August
2009; and the senior consulting manager of Adfaith Management
and Consulting Co., Ltd. (IEBE$95RE IR A0/ A)) from June 2011 to
June 2012. Mr. HUA consecutively served in several positions in China
PnR and PnR Data from February 2013 to December 2016, including
as a director of the business planning department of China PnR, and
the general manager of the business management center, general
manager of the micro and small channel business department, the
general manager of the payment business department and as an
assistant president of PnR Data.

Mr. HUA obtained a bachelor’s degree in automation (computer
control) from Donghua University in Shanghai, the PRC in July
2003, a master’s degree in business administration from Antai
College of Economics and Management of Shanghai Jiao Tong
University in Shanghai, the PRC in June 2011, and an EMBA degree
at China Europe International Business School in Shanghai, the PRC
in November 2018. He was awarded the “New Long March Pace-
Setter (FiEIFZREF )" of Baosteel Group Corporation ( -/GE e
B2 &F], currently known as China BaoWu Steel Group Corporation
Limited (FPEIERINEEBABRAF])) for the Year of 2004 by the
Committee of Youth League of Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation
in April 2005.
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Mr. MA Long, aged 45, was appointed as the vice President, the
general manager of compliance department and financial cooperation
department of the Company in August 2019, he is also the director
of PnR JH Tech Co., Ltd. ( EBEIRHBEERKMABRAF). Mr. MA
has over 23 years of experience in payment settlement, supervision
on the banking and business operations management. He holds the
qualification as senior management in financial institutions. Mr. MA’s
previous work experience includes: serving in several positions in the
People’s Bank of China from August 1996 to July 2012, including
as the section chief and the deputy division director; serving as the
head of liaison office in Beijing of Shanghai Rural Commercial Bank
and the vice president of the Beijing Fangshan SRCB Rural Bank
from August 2012 to May 2015; serving as the general manager of
business operations department in E-Capital Transfer Co., Ltd. and
the general manager of Shenzhen Sharelink Network Technology
Company OFIITHEEE B4R 2 7]) from June 2015 to October
2018.

Mr. MA obtained a bachelor’'s degree in financial statistics from
Hunan University of Finance and Economics in July 1996. He attended
the on-the-job postgraduate course in Southwestern University of
Finance and Economics from April 1998 to April 2000. He has been
studying the EMBA programme in the Zhejiang University from May
2016. In 2016, he was awarded the title of “Outstanding Communist
Party Member in Shanghai Pudong New Area”.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. JIN Yuan

For the biography of Mr. JIN Yuan, please refer to “Directors” in this
section.

Ms. SO Shuk Yi Betty

Ms. SO Shuk Yi Betty, was appointed as a Joint Company Secretary
of the Company in May 2018. Ms. SO currently serves as the vice
president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited
(a professional services provider specializing in corporate services),
responsible for managing company secretarial work for several listed
companies. Ms. SO has over 22 years of experience in the corporate
secretarial field.
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Ms. SO received a Master of Law degree fror ht'é"f’?/ Univers
Hong Kong and a Master of Business Administration degree from
the University of Leicester in 2004 and 1999, respectively. She is an
associate member of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known
as the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) in the
United Kingdom since 1997.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21
December 2017 as an exempted company with limited liability. The
Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 15
June 2018 through the Global Offering.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES AND ACTIVITIES

The Group is a leading independent third-party payment service
provider in China, focusing on four business directions which are
integrated merchants acquiring, SaaS service, industry solution
as well as cross-border & international business respectively. The
Company acts as an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
Group's activities during the year ended 31 December 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are provided
on pages 11 to 28 of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is provided on pages 27 of this annual report. Details of
the capital structure of the Company is provided on page 24 of this
annual report. Details of the significant capital investment of the
Group is provided on page 26 of this annual report.

In addition, information of the Company’s environmental policies and
performance can be found on page 110 to page 149 of this annual
report. The Company’s compliance with relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group are provided in the
section headed “Compliance with Laws and Regulations” of this
report of the Directors. In addition, description of possible risks and
uncertainties that the Group may be facing is set out in the section
headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” of this report of the
Directors. The Company's relationship with its employees, customers,
and suppliers is disclosed in the section headed “Relationship with
Stakeholders” of this report of the Directors.
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As at the date of this report, there are no material events subsequent
to 31 December 2019 which could have a material impact on the
Group's operating and financial performance.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income on pages 157 to 158. The financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2019 is set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on pages 159 to 160.
The consolidated cash flow of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out in the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows on pages 162 to 164.

Discussion and analysis about the operating performance and
significant elements affecting the results of operations and financial
condition of the Group during the year are set out in Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report on pages 11 to 28.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy of the Company, adopted by the Board on 29
November 2018, is set out as follows:

Subject to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the
Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Company in general
meeting may declare dividends in any currency but no dividends shall
exceed the amount recommended by the Board.

The Board may, before recommending any dividend, set aside out of
the profits of the Company such sums as it thinks fit as a reserve or
reserves which shall, at the discretion of the Board, be applicable for
meeting claims on or liabilities of the Company or contingencies or
for paying off any loan capital or for equalizing dividends or for any
other purpose to which the profits of the Company may be properly
applied, and pending such application may, at the like discretion,
either be employed in the business of the Company or be invested
in such investments (including in the repurchase by the Company
of its own securities or the giving of any financial assistance for
the acquisition of its own securities) as the Board may from time
to time think fit, and so that it shall not be necessary to keep any
investments constituting the reserve or reserves separate or distinct
from any other investments of the Company. The Board may also
without placing the same to reserve, carry forward any profits which
it may think prudent not to distribute by way of dividend.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE

OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The AGM will be held on Wednesday, 27 May 2020. The register of
members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 22 May 2020
to Wednesday, 27 May 2020 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered.

In order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, unregistered
holders of the Shares shall lodge share transfer documents with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration before 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 21 May 2020.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2019, the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$380,000, divided into 3,800,000,000 shares of
HK$0.0001 each. Details of movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in
note 31 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee
comprises three members, namely Mr. WANG Hengzhong, Mr. LIU
Jun and Ms. ZHANG Qi. Mr. WANG Hengzhong is the chairman
of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
Group’s 2019 annual results announcement, this annual report and
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 prepared in accordance with the IFRS.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the amount of reserves available for
distribution of the Company to the Shareholders was approximately
RMB 1,431,552,000.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company and
its subsidiaries made charitable donations of approximately RMB
1,656,000.

BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings and other borrowings of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are set out in note 30 to
the financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 15 June 2018.
The net proceeds raised from the Global Offering were approximately
HK$1,592.5 million. During the Reporting Period, there was no
change in the intended use of net proceeds as previously disclosed in
the Prospectus.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company has utilised HK$1,096.1
million of the net proceeds from the Global Offering. For the
amounts not yet utilised, the Company will apply the remaining net
proceeds in the manner set out in the Prospectus. As at the date of
this report, pursuant to the Prospectus, the remaining proceeds shall
be utilized within the next 3 years.
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The following table sets forth a breakdowr llisation of e ;'"IT%%%WJZO OF 12 A31 BHATSRIEFEE AR
proceeds as at 31 December 2019: SLRRA
Unit: HK$ million
By - gE¥T
Net proceeds Utilization
from the as at
Global 31 December Unutilised
Offering 2019 amount
"2019 4
2RBEME 12A31H
MIEFE ceEAeH KBRS
Enhancing technology 58 BT R4 &
systems and research and et aE
development capability 477.8 204.6 273.3
Pursuing selective acquisitions ¥ ¥ flT A7) -
of, or strategic investments X fIIRFEIRGER K
in, payment technology 5% SaaS IR ETTIE
companies, payment EHIE S EEIRE
service providers and/or
Saa$ providers 318.5 95.4 223.1
Investing in the Group's REREBRFARH—=
direct sales channel in the B THEHERE
tier-one and tier-two cities AHEE S R E R E AT
in China, to facilitate the ¥EZRFPHERK
acquisition and the support X
of key clients in selected
industrial verticals 159.2 159.2 0.0
Further recruiting and E—SPRERBEAS
cultivating talents and AR AEE RN R
continuing to offer FREREAEHRF
competitive compensation 7789 %7 B
to the Group's existing
employees 159.2 159.2 0.0
Fully repaying the principal BHEEETRITER
amount and interests of RS RFE
certain bank borrowings 318.5 318.5 0.0
Working capital and general B ERE —HRPE
corporate uses B 159.2 159.2 0.0
Total Fie 1,592.5 1,096.1 496.4
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, purchases from the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for 33.7% of the Group’'s total
purchases. In addition, purchases from the Group’s single largest
supplier accounted for 20% of the Group’s total purchases during
the same period.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group'’s total revenue.

As at 31 December 2019, Huifu Fintech, a member of the Excluded
Group, owned 9% equity interests in Golden Union Technical
Services Co., Ltd (& BARITRIEAREZEAR]), formerly known as
Guizhou Golden Union Data Services Co. Ltd (B /N4 B A EIEREE
fR/A&]), one of the Group’s largest suppliers in 2019. Mr. ZHOU Ye,
an executive Director, owned 6.3% equity interests in Huifu Fintech.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2019,
to the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
close associates, or Shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the number of issued Shares of
the Company) had interests in the five largest suppliers or customers
of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, ACQUISITION
AND DISPOSAL

The Company did not have any significant investment, acquisition
and disposal for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in property, plant and equipment of the Company
are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHOU Ye (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. MU Haijie

Mr. JIN Yuan

Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHYE Chia Chow

Mr. ZHOU Joe

Ms. WANG Lihong'

Mr. CHEN Zhongjue®

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. LIU Jun

Mr. WANG Hengzhong

Ms. ZHANG Qi

Notes:

Ms. WANG Lihong has been appointed as a non-executive Director with
effect from 1 November 2019.

Mr. CHEN Zhongjue has resigned as a non-executive Director with effect
from 1 November 2019.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Board comprises nine Directors in total. For details, please refer
to the paragraph headed “Directors” above. There are six members
of senior management in total, including Mr. ZHOU Ye, Ms. MU
Haijie, Mr. JIN Yuan, Mr. JIANG Jingyu, Mr. HUA Lei and Mr. MA

Long.

Information about the details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company is set out in the section headed
"Directors and Senior Management”.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has entered into service contracts or appointment
letters with all Directors for a term of three years following each
Director’s respective appointment date or until the third annual
general meeting of the Company since the Listing Date, whichever
ends earlier, or which shall be terminated pursuant to relevant terms
of respective contracts or letters of appointment.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which was not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for service contracts and the Contractual Arrangements, there
were no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business, to which the Company, its
holding company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which none of the Directors or its connected entities
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, as at 31
December 2019 or during the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2019.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN BUSINESSES
COMPETING WITH THE COMPANY

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors had
any interest in any business which directly or indirectly competes or
is likely to compete with the business of the Group as at the Latest
Practicable Date.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including those taken or deemed as their interests and short
positions in accordance with such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register kept by the Company referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(i) Interest in Shares of the Company

EENBETRAERAQTREME
BEBZRG  HEROREEES
BEEaRAR

M2019F 12 A31H EERAREERITRAER
RARR REAREAE (T A(EHFRBERN)E
XVER) 2B fn - B s EREF T A RE(EFH
FEREIEFINE XV ERE 7 R 8 EpAME A7) KRB
RETMERRA R (BERB(EFRBEEN)ZE
HMEWEEXRIEEA 2 EELAR) - HABB(GE
% M EREIEHI)E 352 KRR ERTE AR A AR Z &R
EEEMNELMANERS AR - SiRBIZESTA
BMERNRARREZAOERABIT

(i) RAEDFRMDHER

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director or Number of derivative interest in
chief executive Nature of interest Shares Shares the Company
EESRBSTHRAER RAERTERE
A ERtE RGHEE TTERDHE WBRN B D
Mr. ZHOU Ye Interest in controlled 142,200,000 — 11.37%
corporations"”’
AR A ZrEAEER
Beneficial owner®” — 93,217,622 7.46%
BHEEAY
Mr. ZHOU Joe Interest in controlled 128,077,180 — 10.24%
corporations®
ZHOU Joe % & ik E g
Ms. MU Haijie Beneficial owner? — 38,337,404 3.07%
BeRZ+ BExBEAAY
Mr. JIN Yuan Beneficial owner? — 14,967,642 1.20%
SRzE EXBEAAY
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Management Company directly held 142,199,998 Shares and indirectly
held 2 Shares (through PnR Holdings, its wholly owned subsidiary), all of
which were ordinary Shares. Management Company is owned as to 60%
by Mr. ZHOU Ye. Therefore, Mr. ZHOU Ye is deemed to be interested in the
142,200,000 Shares directly and indirectly held by Management Company

for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

ENEIREEFA 142,199,998 AR () BB H 2 & I
JEXAEPnR Holdings M#E#iB 2 RIRM (9 REBR) -
ENERAERLEEE60% - Fit - H(ELRHAE
TEBINEXVET S « B AR AREMERERER
RIEE A #9 142,200,000 B 1) h A #ERE ©

(2) These interests are derived from the share options granted under the Pre- (2) HERRNKABRARBEERBRETZETNREN
IPO Share Option Scheme, details of which are set out in the section headed FEARRE - SRR BR AR ERTEIRE S —6 -
"“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”.

(3) Keytone Ventures, L.P. was directly controlled by Keytone Capital Partners, (3) Keytone Ventures, L.P.H Keytone Capital Partners,
L.P. as the general partner, which was in turn controlled by Keytone LP.(EREMAR AN)EEEH - fKeytone Capital
Investment Group, Ltd. as the general partner. Keytone Ventures I, L.P. was Partners, L.P.FH Keytone Investment Group, Ltd. (E&
directly controlled by Keytone Capital Partners Il, L.P. as the general partner, LBEEAN)EH - Keytone Ventures I, L.P. F Keytone
which was in turn controlled by Keytone Investment Group II, Ltd. as the Capital Partners Il, LP. (fERE@ERAN)EEZES -
general partner. Keytone Investment Group, Ltd. and Keytone Investment Keytone Capital Partners I, L.P. f Keytone Investment
Group II, Ltd. were wholly owned by Mr. ZHOU Joe. Therefore, Mr. ZHOU Group Il, Ltd. (fE & % B & % A ) = #l - Keytone
Joe is deemed to be interested in the 128,077,180 Shares collectively and Investment Group, Ltd. }2 Keytone Investment Group
directly held by Keytone Ventures, L.P. and Keytone Ventures II, L.P. for the Il, Ltd. BZHOU Joe e E2E A - At - B(EH R H
purpose of Part XV of the SFO. BIEHIEXVEME + ZHOU Joe 5 £ 115 A Keytone

Ventures, L.P. % Keytone Ventures Il, L.P. & & & HEH#
B1#9128,077,180 RAR D B 1 -
(ii) Interest in associated corporations (i) AMEBZENER
Percentage of
shareholding in
Name of Director or Nature of Number of the associated
chief executive interest Associated corporations shares held corporation
EEgES RIEEEE
THRABHS ERME HABEE RHEE RENE D
Mr. ZHOU Ye Beneficial Owner Management Company" 30,000 60%
JEIE S A BRERA EfEE
Beneficial Owner  China PnR® 60,060,000 60%
ERBEBA R T
Ms. MU Haijie Beneficial Owner Management Company" 10,000 20%
BERL L BRERA e
Beneficial Owner  China PnR® 10,010,000 10%
ERBEBA AR
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Notes: B e -

(1) Management Company is a business company incorporated in the BVI (1) ENEEAN20065F8 A24HTE HE 4R B
with limited liability on 24 August 2006, and one of the substantial S BREAEAR  LATERRZ
shareholders. —

(2)  China PnR is a company incorporated under the laws of the PRC on (2) ENXKTABREFBIAEN2006566A23HFE
23 June 2006 with limited liability, and one of the operating entities MERZHERAT - ARAREEERz— H
of the Company. Its financial results have been consolidated and PEEEEN(Eh iR EMRTREFMAR
accounted for as subsidiaries of the Company by virtue of the series AINH—BRANLH  BARRWEBAF TR
of contractual arrangements entered into by, among others, China GRAEFTE R ARG -

PnR and its registered shareholders.
Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware, as at B EXXFEEEIN  mEEFA - R 20194F

31 December 2019, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company and their respective associates had any interest or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which will be required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register kept by the Company, or (ii) which will be required to

be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) had an interest or
short position in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company,

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

029

12A31H  MBEESIARFAESTHRAR
PHEZLABEARARNRQRSEREER(E
# A EE R EEHNEXVED) 2B - 18R
A% 1 R (B4 25 P B AR () AR IBCGE 5 R A
EIEHIE 32 KRR ARFFENELM
A SR () AR IBIZE ST B E AN QR R A
FTH R sA R -

FERRRKRD REBER G ERR

HE2019F 128318 WTFTAL(FFEZRA
NEREITERA B )RR MD RAA G HEERDPHEES
RENIRIECES LB )E 336 6 A RATR
BEMETMARNERSSKAR -

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding in

Name of shareholder Nature of interest Shares held the Company

RAERQEEE

REREE BB EEMtE FERGEA MR E D

Management Company'” Interest in controlled corporation 2 0.00%
P RYEEE R

Management Company'” Beneficial interest 142,199,998 11.37%

B

It

£ 1de

B

Bk
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Approximate

percentage of

Number of shareholding in

Name of shareholder Nature of interest Shares held the Company
NN £

BEEE BB EEMtE FrsRGBEE WA B DL
Trixen Enterprises Limited Beneficial interest 307,800,000 24.62%
Trixen Enterprises Limited oy o
Mr. Putera Sampoerna‘” Interest in controlled corporation 307,800,000 24.62%
Putera Sampoerna g4 REEE
Eight Roads Holdings Limited® Interest in controlled corporation 71,684,931 5.73%
Eight Roads Holdings Limited® S EE RS
Eight Roads Investments® Beneficial interest 71,684,931 5.73%
Eight Roads Investments® Bl
Keytone Ventures II, L.P.*” Beneficial interest 109,780,440 8.78%
Keytone Ventures II, L.P. EmiEn
Keytone Capital Partners I, L.p.@ Interest in controlled corporation 109,780,440 8.78%
Keytone Capital Partners II, L.P.?Y ZEEEER
Keytone Investment Group II, Ltd.? Interest in controlled corporation 109,780,440 8.78%
Keytone Investment Group II, Ltd."” R EEE R
Bain Capital PnR Cayman Limited® Beneficial interest 230,416,159 18.43%
Bain Capital PnR Cayman Limited® BEmiEm
Bain Capital PnR Holdings, L.P.®’ Interest in controlled corporation 230,416,159 18.43%
Bain Capital PnR Holdings, L.P. RYEAEERS
Bain Capital Asia Fund I, Lp® Interest in controlled corporation 230,416,159 18.43%
Bain Capital Asia Fund II, L.P.®’ ZEEEER
Bain Capital Partners Asia Il, L.P.® Interest in controlled corporation 230,416,159 18.43%
Bain Capital Partners Asia II, L.P.® ZEAERER
Bain Capital Investors, LLC® Interest in controlled corporation 230,416,159 18.43%
Bain Capital Investors, LLC® ZEEEER
Zedra Trust Company (Cayman) Limited®  Trustee 77,434,800 6.19%
Zedra Trust Company (Cayman) Limited®  S:EA
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Notes:

(1

(2)

Management Company directly held 142,199,998 Shares and indirectly held
2 Shares (through PnR Holdings, its wholly-owned subsidiary) (all of which
were ordinary Shares).

Trixen Enterprises Limited was wholly-owned by Mr.
Therefore, Mr.
307,800,000 Shares held by Trixen Enterprises Limited for purpose of Part
XV of the SFO.

Putera Sampoerna.

Putera Sampoerna is deemed to be interested in the

Eight Roads Investments is wholly-owned by Eight Roads Holdings Limited.
Therefore, Eight Roads Holdings Limited is deemed to be interested in the
71,684,931 Shares directly held by Eight Roads Investments for purpose of
Part XV of the SFO.

Keytone Ventures Il, L.P. was directly controlled by Keytone Capital Partners
I, L.P. as the general partner, which was in turn controlled by Keytone
Investment Group I, Ltd. as the general partner. Therefore, Keytone
Investment Group Il, Ltd. and Keytone Capital Partners Il, L.P. are deemed to
be interested in the 109,780,440 Shares directly held by Keytone Ventures Il

L.P. for purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Based on the information provided by Bain Capital PnR Cayman Limited
("Bain PnR"), each of the following entities are deemed under the SFO
to be interested in the Shares to be held by Bain PnR as described herein:
(i) Bain Capital PnR Holdings, L.P.,
which holds a 100% interest in Bain PnR; (ii) Bain Capital Asia Fund II, L.P.,
a Cayman Islands limited partnership, which holds a 65.05% interest in Bain

a Cayman Islands limited partnership,

Capital PnR Holdings, L.P. as a limited partner; (iii) Bain Capital Partners Asia
I, L.P., @ Cayman Islands limited partnership, which is the general partner
of Bain Capital Asia Fund I, L.P. and holds a 0.16% interest as well; and (iv)
Bain Capital Investors, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, which is the
general partner of Bain Capital PnR Holdings, L.P and Bain Capital Partners
Asia ll, L.P..

Each of Haoran Co. Ltd and Wanzhi Co. Ltd is owned by ZedraTrust
Company (Cayman) Limited in its capacity as trustee of Haoran trust and
Wanzhi trust. Therefore, Zedra Trust Company (Cayman) Limited is interested
in 17,852,400 Shares held by Haoran Co. Ltd and 59,582,400 Shares held by
Wanzhi Co. Ltd for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2019, no person (other
than the Directors whose interests are set out in this annual report)

had any interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying

Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

FEAEREEREH 142,199,998 AR RiBBH 2 EH
B2 PnR Holdings H#E A 2 lkix i (B AL @) -

Trixen Enterprises Limited g3 Putera Sampoerna %t &2
BEHE - At MEFRBEBKRO)EXVEM S
Putera Sampoerna st 4 #% 18 /& R Trixen Enterprises
Limited 575 #9 307,800,000 A% A& {5 % A 4 o

Eight Roads Investments i Eight Roads Holdings
Limited 2 & HEH « Ft - RIBGESF R BB HEHI)EXV
&6+ Eight Roads Holdings Limited #1% &5 Eight Roads
Investments B FF B H) 71,684,931 IRAR R A #E L ©

Keytone Ventures I, L.P. 1 Keytone Capital Partners
I, LP.(EREBAEBA)EEES
Partners Il, L.P. Fg Keytone Investment Group II. Ltd. (1
REBABAES - Bt - SCGEF KB GRHI)E XV
&S  Keytone Investment Group II, Ltd. & Keytone
Capital Partners Il, L.P.#4% &R Keytone Ventures Il
L.P. E#H5H 19 109,780,440 IR A% 15 Hh e A 4% o

M Keytone Capital

E A Bain Capital PnR Cayman Limited ([Bain PnR)J)
FrRt &R RIB(EFRAERI) AT EEBHE
WAL Pl Bain PRRIGH A MMM R HEA R « ()
Bain Capital PnR Holdings, L.P. (FSEEARAED
%¥) - E6BBain PnR 100% A% ¢ (i) Bain Capital
Asia Fund Il, LP.(H2#BEREERE) - EERER
4% A¥5A Bain Capital PnR Holdings, L.P. 65.05% )
#% ¢ (iii) Bain Capital Partners Asia Il, L.P. (2S5
BRABNLE)  HABain Capital Asia Fund II, L.P. A9
EBEEAREAF016%M % K&(v) Bain Capital
Investors, LLC (—XREFRZEMABRARF])ABain Capital
PnR Holdings, L.P. & Bain Capital Partners Asia I,
LPOEBEBA -

Haoran Co. Ltd xWanzhi Co. LtdE ZedraTrust
Company (Cayman) Limitediz E AHaoran{s 5t &
WanzhifE 7B R EAFOHES - Bt - RIBEGEHF K
HE (&) ) S XV EL - Zedra Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited 7 Haoran Co. Ltd#5%&#17,852,400 fxfstn &
Wanzhi Co. Ltd # 8 #) 59,582,400 & AR 7 G #E 2w ©

BAHTIREEI - HZE2019F 128318 @ #E

AT(EFES - EESHNAFR)RNEMDHAR
RIMERAR Y P  EARENREB(EFLBE {|7|<1§U>>
F3I6HEARAAFENECMANEMNEER

B o
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company were granted to any Directors or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate during the year ended 31 December 2019.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

The Company did not enter into any equity-linked agreement during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Memorandum and Articles of Association and
subject to the applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain in or about
the execution of their duty in their offices. Such permitted indemnity
provision has been in force during the Reporting Period.

The Company has maintained appropriate liability insurance for
its Directors and senior management. The permitted indemnity
provisions are set out in such liability insurance.

LOAN AGREEMENTS OR FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company did not provide any financial assistance or guarantee
to its affiliated companies during the Reporting Period, which
gives rise to a disclosure under Rule 13.16 of the Listing Rules. The
Company did not enter into any loan agreement with covenants
relating to specific performance of its controlling Shareholder or
breach the terms of any loan agreements during the Reporting
Period.

Huifu Payment Limited SCAEATAR2ARF  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FE i

EEREROIEEFTOER

BRAFHABEEEN  BERTANESIHESAE
BB BRI 18 A F AR L E B E A QR 3K
BEEIMESHZNER  HETETEEMNZS
R MART REFEMMBAR N BT LML
B FREFAFEESAMEMBIARMISHEMNTFL
RELZE2019F 12 A 31 B IEFE BT &4 E
ABBRESZEER -

P RE 4 83 17 =
AATREE2019F12 A3 BILFEIWEET L E
R A% HE S 7 5 o

BEFRERX
RIBEABESRAEREPIIOERT 8ES
B EEREE M — ABITEBREEMELER
SRzMBHRBER - RE BX BERAX
BARRBZEEMREN P ESRE MERR LML
SEAEE - WEREFRERXABREHE —&
R e

ARREREZERAESREBASRBEENAE
RER o BOERTREGXORERNZFEERRA -

p=1U3

RRTNE =R B E B

RIRE R - AR F IR E B QR R ER
RIBEETRANE 1316 TUHKE 2 M EEBRIE
R e R E MR - AR B ARFTSZAEMM SR QE
EERBRRETABETHBROZERBEIER
EfTE R R o



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
SER RS

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was approved and adopted by
the Board on 20 January 2018, which became effective immediately
before the Listing. The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was established
for the purpose of replacing the pre-IPO share option schemes of
PnR Holdings as approved by the board of directors of PnR Holdings
due to the Group’s reorganization for the purpose of the Listing. The
terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are exactly the same as
those in PnR Holdings’ pre-IPO share option schemes.

The terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are not subject to
the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules as the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme does not involve the grant of options by the
Company to subscribe for new Shares subsequent to the Listing.

As at the date of this report, all the share options under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme, being 301,923,937 Shares and representing
approximately 24.15% of the issued share capital of the Company,
have been granted. The details below set out the movement of the
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during
the Reporting Period:

BXABEEERESE
BRAARBEERBRETEN2018F1 A207 &
EEOWERRE ENBEEMATER - RYE
RAFEER ERERTEE A THAPIR Holdings
EEg AAEER EmETSHAMMEITHPAR
Holdings R AF B ERTERET 8 - B AR
E R SIM G E PR Holdings K& X AR
BEABBRET KT EE o

MR ERAFEENBREFT ST RARAR LT
BETARBERRODOBERE  HERIMEEN
BRI T Z(ETRAINE T EENEX
R

RARERR  BXAMEEABREEETH
BB B R HE (BN 301,923,937 A% fp » (h AR A& 2 3
TIRAL24.15% ) EERH - THFBAREHA
BRIBEEAXAFREEBRETZS MR HMBREY
BENEMR

Number of underlying Shares comprised in share options

BREFESEBRONHE
Exercised Cancelled Forfeited
Balance  during the  during the during the Balance  Exercise
Date of as at Reporting Reporting Reporting asat price
Name of grantee grant 01/01/2019 Period Period Period  31/12/2019  per Share Option period
R2019% I i iy #2019%
1A18 BEHE HE0H BEHH 128318 SRRHWY
REALS RUAH ke Bk BaH BRY e TEE BRENM
Directors
Bz
Zhou Ye 06/01/2014 29,165,323 — — - 29,165,323 US$0.18 Ten years from the date
of grant
JEI e 0.18%TT ERLART10F
18/12/2017 15,192,871 — — — 15,192,871 US$0.55 Ten years from the date
of grant
0.55%7T BRMARE10F
20/01/2018 40,739,455 — — — 40,739,455  US$0.78 Ten years from the date
of grant
0.78%7T BRMARE10F
20/01/2018 8,119,973 — — — 8,119,973  HK$7.5 Ten years from the date
of grant
1587 ERLARE10F
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Exercised Cancelled Forfeited
Balance  during the  during the during the Balance  Exercise
Date of as at Reporting Reporting Reporting asat price
Name of grantee grant 01/01/2019 Period Period Period  31/12/2019  per Share Option period
H20195 R S R R2019%
1818 BE0H BE0H BERE 128318 EBRRHH
ARALS R BH E3 B BH# BRK e TEE BRESE
Mu Haijie 06/01/2014 7,063,481 — - — 7,063,481 US$0.18 Ten years from the date
of grant
{24 0.18%TT BRMARE 106
18/122017 6,844,211 — — — 6,844,211 US$0.55 Ten years from the date
of grant
0.55%7T BRI HEE 105
20/01/2018 20,928,120 - - — 20,928,120  US$0.78 Ten years from the date
of grant
0.78%7T BRI HEE 105
20/01/2018 3,501,592 — — — 3,501,592 HK§7.5 Ten years from the date
of grant
1581 BRI ERE 105
Jin Yuan 04/04/2014 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000  US$0.18 Ten years from the date
of grant
&R 0.18%7 BRI HRE 105
18/12/2017 4,661,084 — — — 4,661,084 US$0.55 Ten years from the date
of grant
0.55%7T BRI HRH 105
20/01/2018 7,328,915 — — — 7,328,915 US$0.78 Ten years from the date
of grant
0.78%7T BRI HRH 105
20/01/2018 1,977,643 — — — 1,977,643 HK$7.5 Ten years from the date
of grant
1587 ERIHRH 105
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Exercised Cancelled Forfeited
Balance  during the  during the during the Balance  Exercise
Date of as at Reporting Reporting Reporting asat price
Name of grantee grant 01/01/2019 Period Period Period  31/12/2019  per Share Option period
R2019% R R 7 R2019%
1818 BEHH Bl BEHH 128318 ERRHH
ARALE R BH Bt B BH# BRY e TEE BRESE
Senior management
BREEE
Senior management  06/01/2014 1,154,491 - — - 1,154,491  US$0.18 Ten years from the date
(in aggregate) of grant
BRERE 0.18%7 BRMAR 105
(&3t) 25/03/2014 400,000 100,000 - - 300,000 US$0.18 Ten years from the date
of grant
0.18%7T BRI AR 105
18/122017 7,149,723 — — — 7,149,723 US$0.55 Ten years from the date
of grant
0.55%7T BRI HRE 105
20/01/2018 8,434,066 — — — 8,434,066  US$0.78 Ten years from the date
of grant
0.78%7T BRI HRH 105
20/01/2018 988,822 — — — 988,822 HK$7.5 Ten years from the date
of grant
1587 ERILHRH 105
Employee
&8
Other employees 06/01/2014 56,414,940 8,015,140 — 711,182 47,688,618  US$0.18 Ten years from the date
of grant
HiblEg 0.18%7 BEHARHI10F
18/12/2017 55,487,591 — — 8,947,603 46,539,988  US$0.55 Ten years from the date
of grant
0.55%7T ERMHRH 105
20/01/2018 15,635,017 — — 279,196 15,355,821  US$0.78 Ten years from the date
of grant
0.78%7 B FRE 106
20/01/2018 8,678,365 — — — 8,678,365  HK$7.5 Ten years from the date
of grant
75581 AEHBEH10F
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Vesting Period

The options with an exercise price of US$0.18 have a vesting period
of five years: 10%, 15%, 20%, 25% and 30% of the shares subject
to the options shall vested at the first, second, third, fourth and fifth
anniversaries of the vesting commencement date, respectively. The
vesting commencement date should be determined by grantees for
each grant agreement.

The options with an exercise price of US$0.55 have a vesting period
of four years, 25%, 25%, 25% and 25% of the shares subject to the
option shall vested at the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries
of the vesting commencement date, respectively. The vesting
commencement date should be determined by grantees for each
grant agreement.

Among the options with an exercise price of US$0.7846 and
HK$7.50, 55%, 20%, 20% and 5% of the shares subject to the
options shall vest when certain vesting conditions are met.

Further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, including the
exercise of options during the year ended 31 December 2019, are set
out in the Prospectus and note 32 to the financial statements.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Share Award Scheme was approved by the Board on 28 May
2019 and adopted by the Board on 16 August 2019. The Share
Award Scheme does not constitute a share option scheme within the
meaning of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Purposes and objectives

The objectives of the Share Award Scheme are to recognize and
motivate the contributions by the employees and give incentives
thereto in order to retain them, as well as to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

Administration

The Share Award Scheme will be subject to the administration of
the Board, the Remuneration Committee as authorised by the Board
or the committee appointed by the Remuneration Committee (the
“Committee”).

The trustee(s) (the “Trustee(s)”) appointed by the Company for
the purpose of the trust(s) (the “Trust(s)”) constituted by the trust
deed(s) to service the Share Award Scheme will hold the Shares and
the income derived therefrom (if any) in accordance with the Share
Award Scheme and subject to the terms of the trust deed to be
executed by the Company.
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Duration

The Share Award Scheme will be valid and effective for a term of 4
years commencing from the effective date, which is subject to the
finalization of the Share Award Scheme.

Maximum Limit

The Shares in the share pool under the Share Award Scheme will be
purchased from the secondary market. The maximum amount of the
fund to be contributed by the Company for purchasing the Shares is
set at RMB400,000,000.

At no time shall the Trustees be holding more than 10% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue under the Share Award
Scheme.

Eligible Persons for the Share Award Scheme
Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the Board or the Committee
may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion select any
participant for participation in the Share Award Scheme (the
“Participant”), to be a selected Participant and grant certain number
of RSU(s) to such selected Participant during the Term, after taking
into account various factors (including contribution made by such
Participant to the Company’s performance) as it deems appropriate.

Operation

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the Committee may from time
to time instruct the Trustee to purchase issued Shares (on-market
and/or off-market). The Shares so purchased shall form part of the
capital of the trust fund.

The balance of the contributed amounts shall be returned by the
Trustees to the Company forthwith after completion of the purchase.

The Shares so purchased shall be allocated to each selected
Participant at such time and at such amount and with such vesting
conditions as the Committee may from time to time determine and
notify to the Trustees in writing accordingly.

Vesting and lapse

The Board or the Committee may from time to time while the RSUs
is in force and subject to all applicable laws, determine such vesting
criteria and conditions or periods for the award to be vested. All of
such vesting criteria and conditions (if any) and periods (including the
vesting date) shall be set out in the relevant notice of grant issued to
each grantee.

HARR

P tn 22D AT 8155 R A R B B R B 17 2R BT 810 &
RER)EFTAFRNEREEBRN

R fREE

FED 82t 81 T 2 B R MR D S B — R i5E
B ARBIRBEROBLENGESEETAAR
# 400,000,000 7T, ©

R REFET  XEARERAFREAEHAE
RRBEHEITRMABE10% A L -

FETEINEERAL

RARGEMI - EFAAEADEEEARL R
gomRh R AT EBRENSERE(RE2
REHAARERERSMORE)E | A28
BEREENLEE((8RE DRREELRE
3 5 HARR PO A 550 7 £ B2 3 IR — T SRR A0 IR )
Bt BT

& 1F

RBERDRBE ZEEAUTHRERIEABE
EBTROBGARIHIH) - R EE KRN 1§
BRERESEAN—&7 -

ANEHHE S BNRBEER

BUBENRNDSRBAZE S TREELAER
R BAZEANEH R BARBREEE GRS
Ry&EELEE -

BEREAM

TS IR B ) B2 A A R K A P B S DA B D AR
B %%A?%TATT%%% %J;'E’]féﬁbfﬁ
ERRBEERN NG ERE - rEEBREER
KAt (oA ) S HfE (R 45 8 J%EIE@)/,\%ZEAF?X%
AR ANBEHZ BERHBAA

Huifu Payment Limited LA KT AT ANNUAL REPORT 2019 #E#keE

63



64

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

For the purposes of vesting of the RSU(s), the Committee may direct
and procure the Trustees to release from the Trusts the RSU(s) to the
selected Participants by transferring the number of the RSUs to the
selected Participants in such manner as determined by it from time
to time. The Committee shall inform the Trustees the number of the
RSU(s) being transferred and released to the selected Participant in
the manner as determined by the Committee.

Restrictions

A grant must not be made after a price sensitive event has occurred
or a price sensitive matter has been the subject of a decision until
such price sensitive information has been announced in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules. In particular, during the
period commencing one month immediately preceding the earlier of:

(@) the date of the meeting of the Board (as such date is first
notified to the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Listing
Rules) for the approval of the Company’s results for any year,
half-year, quarterly or any other interim period (whether or not
required under the Listing Rules); and

(b)  the deadline for the Company to publish an announcement of
its results for any year or half-year under the Listing Rules, or
quarterly or any other interim period (whether or not required
under the Listing Rules), and ending on the date of the results
announcement, no award may be granted. Such period
will cover any period of delay in the publication of a results
announcement.

No Assignment of the RSUs

Unless otherwise approved by the Company in writing (to the extent
permitted by law), an award shall be personal to the grantee and
shall not be assignable or transferable by the grantee provided that
following the grantee’s death, RSUs may be transferred by will or by
the laws of testacy and distribution.

Voting Rights
Trustees shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any Shares
held under the Trusts.

Termination
The Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the
expiry of the period of four years from the adoption date; or (ii) such
date of early termination as determined by the Board or Committee
provided that such termination shall not affect any subsisting rights
of any grantee.
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and other employees under the Share Award Scheme:

Number
of Shares Number of
underlying RSUs Shares
RSUs granted vested and RSUs RSUs underlying
and vested exercised cancelled forfeited RSUs
during the during the during the during the outstanding
year ended year ended year ended year ended as at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Name Date of Grant 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019’
HZE20195F
12A31A8 HZE20195% HZE2019F
LEEER 12A31H BZE2019%F BZ2019F 12A31H
REEH LEE 12A31A8 12A31R8 EFER K
SREIR G EREBR LEE LFEE  TEHNZRE
BAEREH TEZRE SEEIRE ERUIRE ROBEMHEE
HHB ZE B BB EE R 5 E {2 RGO EA R BN BROE#A'
Directors’
B’
Other employees 3 December 2019 to 15,330,416 767,600 0 0 14,562,816
26 December 2019
Hitfg 8 2019612 A3R=Z
2019 12 A 26 H
Total 15,330,416 767,600 0 0 14,562,816
a5
Notes: Fisx -
1. Including the RSUs which had been vested but the Shares in relation to such 1. BEDRBEEEEXESZRERMEHEMR2019
RSUs had not been transferred to the Grantees as at 31 December 2019 12 B 31 B REE T AEANZR RGBT o
2. No RSUs had been granted to Directors as at 31 December 2019. 2. MN2019412 A31 AV EAE L LB SR B -

SR HIB D B

NEBAERTESLHEMBERD
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
a public float of no less than 25% of the issued shares as at the
Latest Practicable Date, which was in line with the requirement under
the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, the Company exercised its powers
under the general mandate to repurchase the Shares granted by the
shareholders of the Company to the Board, which shall expire on the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company (the
“Share Repurchase Plan”), and repurchased a total of 7,610,400
Shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of
HK$30,396,588. All of these repurchased Shares were subsequently
cancelled.

The Board considers that the then trading price of the Shares did not
reflect their intrinsic value and the business prospects as perceived by
investors and that it presented good opportunities for the Company
to repurchase Shares. The repurchases reflect the confidence of
the Board and the management team in the long-term strategy
and growth of the Company. Moreover, the Company believes that
actively managing the capital structure and implementing the Share
Repurchase Plan will optimize the Company’s capital structure,
enhance earnings per Share and overall shareholder return. The
Board considers that the Share Repurchase Plan is in the best interest
of the Company and the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Purchase price per Share

BRBEE
Number of
Shares Aggregate
Month repurchased Highest Lowest consideration
2BeE

At R & B BaE RIEE BRE

(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)

(BT) (%) (&)

January 2019 294,400 3.20 3.03 925,188
201941 A4

February 2019 6,000 3.29 3.25 19,676
201942 A

March 2019 1,231,600 3.93 3.76 4,780,776
201943 A

May 2019 3,237,600 4.15 3.94 13,185,980
201945 A

June 2019 2,840,400 4.28 3.64 11,483,672
20194 6 A

September 2019 400 3.24 3.24 1,296
201949 A

Total 7,610,400 30,396,588

#Et

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Memorandum
and Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION AND PENSION

SCHEME

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 1080 full-time employees
(31 December 2018: 1142), the majority of whom are based in
Shanghai, China.
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In compliance with the CG Code, the Remuneration Committee was
set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Group, having regard to the Group’'s operating results,
individual performance of the Directors and senior management and
comparable market practices.

The Company offers the executive Directors and senior management
with remuneration in the form of salaries, allowances, benefits in
kind, performance-related bonuses, share based payments, pensions,
and other social insurance benefits. Non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors receive compensation according
to their duties (including serving as members or chairmen of the
Board committees).

In line with the performance of the Group and individual employees,
the Group strives to offer a good working environment, a diversified
range of training programs as well as an attractive remuneration
package to its employees. The Group endeavours to motivate its
staff with performance-based remuneration. On top of basic salary,
the Group will reward staff with outstanding performance by way
of cash bonuses, share options, honorary awards or a combination
of all the above to further align the interests of the employees and
the Company, to attract talented individuals, and to create long-
term incentive for its staff. Employees of the Group are eligible
participants of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the details of which
are set out in the section headed “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” in
this report of the Directors.

Remuneration of the Directors is determined based on their roles
and duties and with reference to the Company’s remuneration policy
and the prevailing market conditions, subject to the approval of the
Shareholders general meetings. Details of remuneration of Directors
and the five highest paid individuals of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

After the Reorganization, the Directors consider that there is a clear
delineation between the business of the Group and Excluded Entities,
each of PnR (Cayman) and Paytech Holdings has provided a non-
competition undertaking on 20 May 2018 in favor of the Group (the
“Non-competition Undertaking”), pursuant to which, each of PnR
(Cayman) and Paytech Holdings has irrevocably undertaken, among
other things, that each of PnR (Cayman) and Paytech Holdings will
not and will procure that the Excluded Group would not, directly or
indirectly, engage in any business which is or may be in competition
with the business of any member of the Group from time to time.

Each of PnR (Cayman) and Paytech Holdings has confirmed in
writing to the Company of its compliance with the Non-competition
Undertaking for disclosure in this report during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Non-competition Undertaking and had determined that neither PnR
(Cayman) nor Paytech Holdings has been in breach of the Non-
competition Undertaking during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) did not make any decisions in relation to
whether to exercise or terminate an option for purchase and take up
or waive any new business opportunity.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining and promoting stringent
corporate governance. The principle of the Company’s corporate
governance is to promote effective internal control measures, uphold
a high standard of ethics, transparency, responsibility and integrity in
all aspects of business, to ensure that its business and operations are
conducted in accordance with applicable laws and regulations and
to enhance the transparency and accountability of the Board to all
Shareholders.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company has complied
with the applicable code provisions of the CG Code during the
Reporting Period.

SR

BB EFRR AEEEFLITEENE
%2 B FERES S PnR (Cayman) & Paytech
Holdings#J 27201844 5 A 20 AR — AU KREH
AZmANTHFRE(THRBAE] - B PR
(Cayman) } Paytech Holdings 2 7~ AJ f $i5 & 5 (&
FE4E) : PnR (Cayman) & Paytech Holdings ¥~ &
Wi REIF EMEBT S HEEIEERETRER
SEEMKERFNERFEXAIEFERFNE
fA] 275 o

PnR (Cayman) X Paytech Holdings%QEﬁﬂ$’/}ﬂ
EAMAENRERBETIRFIAZE - UHHRA
HEANELKRE -

BUFNTEFSEMN TR FE A - LIEFPR
(Cayman) 8¢ Paytech Holdings A ¥R&EHARI 58 F &
RS SFAGEE o

RI|BEHHE - EF(BHEES é‘E%ﬂh%%)i’[ﬁ?ﬁ%
BITHERRLBE RN REEAFEBEE
B EFDRE o

BFEERTA

RRBHANRHER RETEBOEEER AR
B bR ER R A AR R A BB 5 E@Fﬁ

BEEBRBHFS/KTIRERRE  BHE A
DRBE - BREBREEETHIETERNE

BORR  PAULINSa E = H (7 P A B R Y5 A7 & A
RAEM -

CRIREERE AR
AIfige e

Huifu Payment Limited LA KT AT ANNUAL REPORT 2019 #E#keE

69



70

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company.

Having made specific enquiry to all the Directors, all the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period. The Board has
also established written guidelines to regulate dealings by relevant
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information of
the Company in respect of securities in the Company as referred to
in code provision A.6.4 of the CG Code.

AUDITORS
The Company has been engaging Ernst & Young as the Company’s

auditor since the commencement of the preparation for its Global
Offering. This financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM.

The Company will propose a resolution to re-appoint Ernst & Young
as the Company’s auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Summary of the Company’s connected persons

PnR (Cayman) does not fall into the definition of connected person
under the Listing Rules. In order to ensure that the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole, as disclosed in the Prospectus, the
Company voluntarily treats it as its connected person and chooses to
comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Paytech Holdings was owned as to 71.19% by China PnR Holdings
Limited, which is in turn owned as to 39.89% by Trixen, being
one of the substantial Shareholders. As such, Paytech Holdings is a
connected person of the Company by virtue of being an associate of
a substantial Shareholder under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the following transactions of the
Group constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company during the Reporting Period. For further details, please

KERERS
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refer to the section headed “Connected Transactions — Non-exempt  &f °

Continuing Connected Transactions” of the Prospectus.

Property Leasing Framework Agreement

The Company entered into a property leasing framework
agreement with PnR (Cayman) and Paytech Holdings on 20
May 2018 (the “Property Leasing Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which, the Group may lease properties as offices
and/or other work places to the Excluded Group, for which the
Company may charge rental, property management fees, utility
charges, device fees and other charges. The Property Leasing
Framework Agreement is valid for a term commencing from
the Listing Date to 31 December 2020 and can be renewed
for another three years upon its expiry as agreed by relevant
parties to the agreement.

Pricing policy

In accordance with the Property Leasing Framework Agreement,
the rental and other charges to be paid to the Group by the
Excluded Group will be determined based on the following
pricing policies:

(i)  the rentals and property management fees paid to the
Group by the Excluded Group will be determined and
reviewed based on arm’s-length negotiations between
both parties with reference to the prevailing market
rate (including but not limited to factors such as the
geographical location, the standard of construction and
the surrounding area), and is consistent with the market
practice; and

(ii)  (all utility charges, device fees, maintenance and repair
fees and other miscellaneous expenses will be charged
based on actual costs incurred in using the relevant
properties during the term of the lease, in accordance
with the relevant government guidance prices (for utility
charges) or market prices.
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Business Collaboration and Services

Framework Agreement

The Company entered into a business collaboration and
services framework agreement with PnR (Cayman) and Paytech
Holdings on 20 May 2018 (the “Business Collaboration and
Services Framework Agreement”), respectively, pursuant
to which, the Group and the Excluded Group will mutually
provide services from time to time, and service fees will be
paid to the other party in respect of such service. The Business
Collaboration and Services Framework Agreement is valid for a
term commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020
and can be renewed for another three years upon its expiry as
agreed by relevant parties to the agreement.

Pricing policy

The service fees to be paid to the Group by the Excluded
Group will be determined on the basis of arm’s-length
negotiations between the relevant parties and be determined
with reference to prevailing market prices and shall not be
lower than the prices at which the Group provide similar
services to independent third parties. The Company will also
make reference to the applicable historical prices of similar
services to ensure that the terms of supplying such services to
the Excluded Group are fair and reasonable.

The service fees to be paid by the Group to the Excluded Group
will be determined on a fair and reasonable basis and shall not
be higher than the prices at which the Excluded Group provide
similar services to the independent third parties. The Company
will also make reference to the applicable historical prices of
similar services from the independent third parties to ensure
that the terms of purchasing such services from the Excluded
Group are fair and reasonable.
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Annual caps and actual transaction amounts for the above
continuing connected transactions of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:

HZE2019F12A31BIEFE » AAa Lt
SEHERINFELRLEBR S SEM
—F:

Unit: RMB million
B AREEHE T

Annual caps

Actual
transaction

Connected transactions under for 2019 amounts in 2019
20195 FE 2019

UTHBETZBERS EBR BERRZLHE

Property Leasing Framework Agreement 8.8 0.6

YEHEERT R

Business Collaboration and Services Framework Agreement:

EBSERBRBERDGS

— Total service fees paid to the Group by the Excluded Group 11.8 0
EFMERAAREELNHRE S B

— Total service fees paid by the Group to the Excluded Group 16.2 6.6
REEMIE LT EE SRR B EE

Confirmation from the independent BIUFHITESZER

non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
these transactions:

(1) were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group;

(2) were either on normal commercial terms, or, in the
absence of similar transactions to judge whether the
terms are normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favorable to those adopted for transactions between the
Group and independent third parties;

(3) were in accordance with the terms of such transaction
agreements, which are in the interest of the Group and
the Shareholders as a whole, and fair and reasonable;
and

(4) did not exceed the annual cap amounts.
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Confirmation from the auditor

The auditor of the Company has been engaged to report
on the continuing connected transactions of the Company
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
assurance report containing their conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has provided a copy of the auditor’s assurance report
to the Stock Exchange.

Others

Except for the above and the Contractual Agreements set out
in the section headed “Contractual Agreements” below, the
Group did not enter into any other connected transactions
which should comply with the reporting, announcement
and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Reporting Period.

For certain material related party transactions disclosed in note
36 to the financial statements which were also connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules of the
Company, the Company had made disclosure as required under
the Listing Rules.

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

To comply with PRC laws and regulations, the Group conducts
substantially all of its business in China through of the Contractual
Arrangements, which enable the Group to (i) have the power to
direct the activities that most significantly affect the economic
performance of the Operating Entities; (ii) receive substantially all of
the economic benefits from the Operating Entities in consideration
for the services provided by the WFOE; (iii) have an exclusive option
to purchase all or part of the equity interests in the Operating
Entities when and to the extent permitted by PRC law, or request any
Registered Shareholder to transfer all or part of the equity interest
in the Operating Entities to another PRC person or entity designated
by the Group at any time at its discretion; and (iv) have the pledged
equity interests in China PnR to ensure the performance of the above
items.
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The following simplified diag‘raﬁf-iﬂ

benefits from the Operating Entities to the Group stipulated under — £&EF|zEmRM
the Contractual Arrangements:

Notes:

The Company

denotes the control by the WFOE over the Registered Shareholders and the [—]
Operating Entities through (i) powers of attorney to exercise all shareholders’

rights in China PnR, (i) exclusive options to acquire all or part of the equity
interests in China PnR, and (iii) equity pledges over the equity interests in

China PnR.

FiN/NS)|
100%
\
PnR Network (WFOE) Registered Shareholders
MRS (OB ERE) BRRE
Management and Service fees 100%
consultation service RisE
BIE MM R
\/ \ 4
China PnR
ERRT
v 100%
PnR Date
EANEE7ES
B &
" denotes direct legal and beneficial ownership in the equity interest. [-] ERIEETHEELIERE=BEARE -
" denotes contractual relationship. [-] BEHER-

B EBELERB () ITERN KT B RREN R
RE () RBENRT BB BRAERNBRES
R T (i) BE A R TS BRAS 2 ) e AR B 9 R R 1 B RD A
RIEL RS -
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A brief description of each of the specific agreements that comprises
the Contractual Arrangements is set out as follows:

Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement

Pursuant to the exclusive business cooperation agreement dated
2 March 2018 between China PnR and the WFOE (the "“Exclusive
Business Cooperation Agreement”), the WFOE agreed to be
engaged as the exclusive provider to the Operating Entities of
technical support, consultation and other services for a monthly
service fee, including the following services: the use of any relevant
software and trademarks legally owned by the WFOE; development,
maintenance and updating of software in respect of the Operating
Entities’ businesses; design, installation, daily management,
maintenance and updating of network systems, hardware and
database; providing technical support and professional training
services to relevant staff of the Operating Entities; providing
assistance in consultancy, collection and research of technology and
market information (excluding market research business that wholly
foreign-owned enterprises are prohibited from conducting under
PRC laws); providing business management consultation; providing
marketing and promotional services; providing customer order
management and customer services; providing relevant investment,
financing and risk control services; providing financial and legal
consultative support services; assisting China PnR with the transfer,
leasing and disposal of equipment and properties; and other relevant
services requested by the Operating Entities from time to time to the
extent permitted under PRC laws.

Under the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement, the service fee
shall be of reasonable prices in accordance with the nature of the
services, shall be further stipulated in separate service agreements,
and shall consist of 100% of the total consolidated profit of the
Operating Entities, after deduction of any accumulated deficit of the
Operating Entities in the preceding financial year(s), working capital,
expenses, taxes and other statutory contributions. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the WFOE may adjust the scope and amount of
service fees according to PRC tax law and tax practices, and China
PnR will accept such adjustments.

The validity period of the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement
commenced from 1 January 2015, and it shall remain effective unless
terminated (a) in accordance with the provisions of the Exclusive
Business Cooperation Agreement; (b) in writing by the WFOE; or
(c) if renewal of the expired business period of either the WFOE or
China PnR is denied by relevant government authorities, at which
time the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement will terminate
upon expiration of that business period.
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Exclusive Option Agreement

Pursuant to the exclusive option agreement dated 2 March 2018
among China PnR, the WFOE and the Registered Shareholders (the
"Exclusive Option Agreement”), the Registered Shareholders
irrevocably agreed to grant the WFOE an exclusive right to acquire,
or designate one or more persons to acquire, from the Registered
Shareholders any or all their equity interests then held in China PnR,
in whole or in part at any time, for a total consideration of RMB100
million, which is equivalent to the total loans owed to the Registered
Shareholders by the WFOE. If the WFOE exercises its option right
to acquire part of equity interests held by certain Registered
Shareholder(s) in China PnR, the purchase price shall be calculated
in proportion to the equity interests being transferred. Furthermore,
where the above purchase prices are higher than the lowest price
permitted by the then PRC laws at the time of exercising options, the
lowest price permitted by PRC laws, regulations and relevant rules
shall be applied.

The validity period of the Exclusive Option Agreement commenced
from 1 January 2015 and it shall remain effective unless terminated
in the event that the entire equity interests held by the Registered
Shareholders or their successors or the transferees in China PnR have
been transferred to the WFOE or their appointee(s).

Equity Pledge Agreements

Pursuant to the equity pledge agreement dated 2 March 2018
entered into between the WFOE, China PnR and each of the
Registered Shareholders (collectively, the "Equity Pledge
Agreements”), the Registered Shareholders agreed to pledge
all their respective equity interests in China PnR that they own,
including any interest or dividend paid for the shares, to the WFOE
as a security interest to guarantee the performance of contractual
obligations and the payment of outstanding debts.

The pledge in respect of China PnR took effect upon the completion
of the change of registration with the relevant administration for
industry and commerce and shall remain valid until after all the
contractual obligations of the Registered Shareholders and China
PnR under the relevant Contractual Arrangements have been
fully performed and all the outstanding debts of the Registered
Shareholders and China PnR under the relevant Contractual
Arrangements have been fully paid.
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Powers of Attorney

Each of the Registered Shareholders has executed a power of
attorney dated 2 March 2018 (collectively, the “Powers of
Attorney”). pursuant to which each of the Registered Shareholders
irrevocably appointed the WFOE and its designated persons (including
but not limited to the Directors and their successors and liquidators
replacing the Directors but excluding those who are non-independent
or who may give rise to conflict of interests) as his or her attorney-
in-fact to exercise on his or her behalf, and agreed and undertook
not to exercise without such attorney-in-fact’s prior written consent,
any and all right that he or she has in respect of his or her equity
interests in China PnR.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other new contractual
arrangements entered into, renewed and/or reproduced between the
Group and the Operating Entities during the Reporting Period.

There was no material change in the Contractual Arrangements
and/or the circumstances under which they were adopted during
the Reporting Period. During the Reporting Period, none of the
Contractual Arrangements had been unwound on the basis that
none of the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Contractual
Arrangements had been removed. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group had not encountered interference or encumbrance from
any PRC governing bodies in operating its businesses through the
Operating Entities under the Contractual Arrangements.

The revenue of China PnR and PnR Data and their respective
subsidiaries amounted to RMB 3,636 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, representing an increase by 12.1% from RMB 3,242
million for the year ended 31 December 2018. For the year ended 31
December 2019, the revenue of China PnR and PnR Data and their
respective subsidiaries accounted for approximately 98.7% of the
revenue for the year of the Group (2018: 99.9 %).
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Reasons for Adopting the Contractual

Arrangements

From the perspective of operating the Group’s existing business
in a manner that is in compliance with applicable PRC laws and
regulations, given the current policy of the relevant PRC government
authorities and as advised by PRC legal advisors, the Company is
currently unable to hold a shareholding interest in the Operating
Entities, which hold the license and permit required for the fintech
enabling services and payment service business.
Company, as a foreign investor under the current regulatory regime,
to maintain its business operations while complying with the PRC
laws and regulations, the WFOE, China PnR and the Registered

In order for the

Shareholders entered into the Contractual Arrangements. For details
of the foreign investment restrictions relating to the Contractual
Arrangements, please refer to the sections headed “Contractual
Arrangements — PRC Regulatory Background”
Arrangements — Development in the PRC Legislation on Foreign
Investment” of the Prospectus.

and “Contractual

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
are of the view that the Contractual Arrangements and the
transactions contemplated therein are fundamental to the Group’s
legal structure and business, that such transactions have been and
will be entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group, are on normal commercial terms and are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole. Accordingly, notwithstanding that the transactions
contemplated under the Contractual Arrangements and any new
transactions, contracts and agreements or renewal of existing
transactions, contracts and agreements to be entered into, among
others, by any of the Operating Entities and any member of the
Group (the “New Intergroup Agreements”
“New Intergroup Agreement”) technically constitute continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the
Directors consider that, given that the Group is placed in a special
position in relation to the connected transactions rules under the
Contractual Arrangements, it would be unduly burdensome and
impracticable, and would add unnecessary administrative costs to

and each of them, a

the Company if such transactions are subject to strict compliance
with the requirements set out under Chapter 14A of the Listing
including, among others, the reporting, annual review,
announcement and the independent Shareholders’
requirements.

Rules,
approval
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Risks Relating to the Contractual Arrangements
There are certain risks that are associated with the Contractual
Arrangements, including:

If the PRC government finds that the agreements establishing
the structure for operating the businesses of the Group in
China do not comply with applicable PRC laws and regulations,
or should these regulations or the interpretations change, the
Group could be subject to severe consequences, including
the nullification of the Contractual Arrangements and the
relinquishment of its interests in the Operating Entities.

The Group relies on the Contractual Arrangements for its
business operations in China, which may not be as effective in
providing operational control or enabling the Group to derive
economic benefits as through direct ownership of controlling
equity interest. The Operating Entities or the Registered
Shareholders may fail to perform their obligations under the
Contractual Arrangements, which could adversely affect the
results of operations and financial condition of the Group.

The Group may cease to benefit from assets and licenses held
by the Operating Entities that are critical to the operation of its
business if the Operating Entities were to declare bankruptcy or
become subject to a dissolution or liquidation proceeding.

The Registered Shareholders may potentially have a conflict of
interest with the Group, and they may breach or attempt to
amend their contracts with the Group in a manner contrary to
the interests of the Group.

The Contractual Arrangements with the Operating Entities may
result in adverse tax consequences to the Group.

Substantial uncertainties exist with respect to the enactment
timetable, interpretation and implementation of the Draft PRC
Foreign Investment Law and how it may impact the viability
of the current corporate structure, corporate governance and
business operations of the Group.

If the Group exercises the option to acquire the equity
ownership and assets of the Operating Entities, the ownership
or asset transfer may subject the Group to certain limitations
and substantial costs.

Huifu Payment Limited SCA X TAMR2AF  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 iR

HENRHEERNER
BENZHARNETRREE

fhep B AT R A B3 o B e T
RIBOHETHABATRARLR - A

EHRARBURET  AEHYAFERE
£R - BEAHEREHRRREEEERS
S -

REBETEFRESEBERBENTH - HER
I8 12l R AN &R B BB R 25 75 AR %
MEEREEFIMRARER —RAEM - BEE
B BRI RERBITREEAOTHT
RIS - AlRE A S BRI E EE RSN
HERRAF R -

MR ES MR RIFRIER
TEXaRNELBEEMERRY
BREZNEEMTAE °

K%%%T%ﬁ$ﬁlfﬁﬂ*“ﬁ'ﬁﬂﬁ
R RAHAE N S AEEF SR

;JfBZ#,\$EI;J_LE’]A%’J
HELERUMNANLTHE A sEE A KB H R

2E
THEBIFER ©

(PESMNEIREVE(BZR))MBMEHR - B
MERLEATEHAREARBEERE X
EEREBELNAITHEKNNTE  FEE
APFEEN

WASEETERREEEEETRORBENE
E AR EESEAASAEEESS
FRHIGEEEERA -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
SER RS

For further details, please refer to the section headed "“Risk
Factors — Risks relating to Our Contractual Arrangements” of the
Prospectus.

The management of the Company works closely with the external
legal counsels and advisors to monitor the regulatory environment
and developments in PRC laws and regulations to mitigate the
risks associated with the Contractual Arrangements. Besides,
the Company has adopted the following measures to ensure the
effective operation of the Group with the implementation of the
Contractual Arrangements and the compliance with the Contractual
Arrangements:

o major issues arising from the implementation and compliance
with the Contractual Arrangements or any regulatory enquiries
from government authorities will be submitted to the Board, if
necessary, for review and discussion on an occurrence basis;

. the Board will review the overall performance of and
compliance with the Contractual Arrangements at least once a
year;

° the Company will disclose the overall performance and
compliance with the Contractual Arrangements in annual
reports; and

o the Company will engage external legal advisors or other
professional advisors, if necessary, to assist the Board
with reviewing the implementation of the Contractual
Arrangements, and review the legal compliance of the WFOE
and the Operating Entities to deal with specific issues or
matters arising from the Contractual Arrangements.

Listing Rules Implications and Waivers from the

Stock Exchange

The transactions contemplated under the Contractual Arrangements
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules as certain parties to the Contractual Arrangements,
namely the Mr. ZHOU Ye and Ms. MU Haijie (the Directors) and Mr.
LIU Gang (a director of a subsidiary of the Company), are connected
persons of the Company.
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In respect of the Contractual Arrangements, the Company has
applied to the Stock Exchange for, and the Stock Exchange has
granted to the Company, a waiver from strict compliance with (i) the
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Rules 14A.04 and 14A.105 of the Listing Rules, and (i) the
requirement of setting an annual cap for the transaction under the
Contractual Arrangements under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules
subject to the following conditions:

(a)

(b)

(@]

No change to the Contractual Arrangements (including with
respect to any fees payable to the WFOE thereunder) will be
made without the approval of the independent non-executive
Directors.

Save as described in paragraph (d) below, no change to the
agreements governing the Contractual Arrangements will be
made without the independent Shareholders’ approval.

The Contractual Arrangements shall continue to enable
the Group to receive the economic benefits derived by the
Operating Entities through (i) the Group’s option (if and when
so allowed under the applicable PRC laws) to acquire all or
part of the entire equity interests and assets at a consideration
which shall be the higher of (A) a nominal price or (B) the
lowest price as permitted and applicable under PRC laws, (ii)
the business structure under which the profit generated by the
Operating Entities is retained by the Group (after deduction
of any accumulated deficit of the Operating Entities in the
preceding financial year(s), working capital, expenses, taxes
and other statutory contributions), such that no annual cap
shall be set on the amount of service fees payable to the
WEFOE by the Operating Entities under the Exclusive Business
Cooperation Agreement, and (iii) the Group’s right to control
the management and operation of, as well as the substance of,
all of the voting rights of the Operating Entities.
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(d) On the basis that the Contractual Arrangements provide
an acceptable framework for the relationship between the
Company and its subsidiaries in which the Company has a
direct shareholding, on the one hand, and the Operating
Entities, on the other hand, that framework may be
renewed and/or reproduced upon the expiry of the existing
arrangements or in relation to any existing or new wholly
foreign-owned enterprise or operating company (including
branch company) engaging in the same business as that of the
Group which the Group might wish to establish when justified
by business expediency, without obtaining the approval of the
Shareholders, on substantially the same terms and conditions
as the existing Contractual Arrangements.

(e) The Company will disclose details relating to the Contractual
Arrangements on an on-going basis.

Annual Review by the Independent Non-Executive

Directors and the Auditor
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Contractual Arrangements and confirmed that:

(@) the transactions carried out during the Reporting Period had
been entered into in accordance with the relevant provisions of
the Contractual Arrangements;

(b) no dividends or other distributions had been made by the
Operating Entities to the holders of its equity interests which
were not otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to the
Group;

(c)  no new contracts had been entered into, renewed and/or
reproduced between the Group and the Operating Entities
during the Reporting Period; and

(d) the Contractual Arrangements had been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, are on
normal commercial terms and are fair and reasonable and in
the interest of the Group and the Shareholders as a whole.

(d)
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The Auditor has confirmed in a letter to the Board (with a copy to
the Stock Exchange) confirming that the transactions carried out
pursuant to the Contractual Arrangements during the Reporting
Period had received the approval of the Directors, had been entered
into in accordance with the relevant Contractual Arrangements,
and that no dividends or other distributions had been made by the
Operating Entities to the holders of its equity interests which were
not otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company was not
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance
and no litigation or claim of material importance is known to the
Directors to be pending or threatened against the Company.

TAX ALLOWANCES

The Company is not aware of any particular tax allowances granted
to the Shareholders due to their interests in its securities.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognizes the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with such requirements
could lead to the termination of operating licenses. The Group has
allocated system and staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance
with rules and regulations and to maintain good relationships with
regulators through effective communications. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group has complied, to the best of
its knowledge, with all relevant rules and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Financial Risks

The Group’s principal business activities are exposed to a variety of
financial risks including credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, and
currency risk. Details of the aforesaid key risks and risk mitigation
measures are elaborated in note 39 “Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies” to the financial statements of this annual
report.
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Risks in our business

1.

Uncertainties arising from changes in the

competitive landscape
The Group is currently running its business in a competitive
market with rapid evolvement of industry structure, customers’
demand as well as product and service content.
competitors in such market may have more abundant capital
and resources, a wider customer base and more aggressive
pricing strategies. Therefore,

Some

if the Group fails to effectively
cope with competition, our business development and financial
position may be adversely affected. In this connection, the
Group will take more proactive steps to cope with competition
and adopt proactive and effective competitive strategies in
response to changes in the market from time to time, so that

the impacts brought by the relevant risks can be mitigated.

Uncertainties in the collaboration with third-
party infrastructures such as UnionPay and

NetsUnion

The Group’s business relies on the technology, service and
infrastructure support provided by China UnionPay, NetsUnion,
issuing banks and telecommunication operators. The Group is
not in a position to assess and control the effectiveness of the
relevant services provided by these parties. In this connection,
the Group will communicate with the aforementioned parties in
a timely manner while taking sufficient contingency measures
on our technology solutions and customer services. Meanwhile,
we will take responsive actions before any change in the
relevant policies of NetsUnion so as to reduce possible risks of
loss.

Uncertainties in the collaboration with channel

partners such as ISO and Saa$S

The development of most of the Group’s customers hinges on
such channel partners as ISO and SaaS. However, the existing
collaborations are not exclusive. More resources will need to be
devoted if important partners are lost due to various reasons.
if the Group is unable to implement effective
monitoring and management over the appropriateness of the
promotion services of channel partners, our risk control and
reputation may be adversely affected. In this connection, the
Group will enhance our effective monitoring and management

Moreover,

with various channel parties and devise a risk response plan,
with a view to reducing the adverse impact brought by risks
such as the loss of customers due to the aforementioned
circumstances.
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4. Uncertainties arising from the technological

advancement in the industry

There is a need for the Group to keep abreast of innovative
technologies such as mobile internet, big data, artificial
intelligence, cloud calculation and 5G for its business
development. Application of new technology may incur a
considerable amount of costs and time. There is no assurance
that innovative products and technology development are
to create commercial value. Failure to effectively respond
to market demand and technology development may cause
adverse impacts on the business prospects of the Group.
In this connection, the Group will continue to enhance
the investment-output ratio in technological research and
development and proactively initiate strategic cooperation with
industry-leading enterprises, with a view to mitigating the risks
and impacts of underlying uncertainties.

5. Uncertainties arising from changes in the

regulatory environment

The regulatory framework governing the Group’s business
include such aspects as payment settlement, exchange
settlement, sale and payment, cross-border payment remittance,
anti-fraud, anti-money laundering and commercial factoring.
Any change in the relevant regulations may lead to an increase
in compliance cost. If the Group fails to comply with applicable
rules and regulations, it may be liable to different kinds of
punishments. In this connection, the Group will continue to
enhance its effort in compliance by giving response to and
implementing regulatory requirements in a timely manner and
enhancing the standards on compliance management, with a
view to mitigating possible risks and impacts.

Fraud risks

Fraudulent transactions may pose severe challenges to the risk
management capabilities of the Group. Failure to identify fraudulent
transactions and effectively manage relevant risk may cause adverse
impacts on the Group’s business, financial position and results
of operation, or lead to regulatory restrictions and penalties.
The Group has established and implemented an effective risk
management system characterized by the principle of “One Center
This data-centric technology-driven system
continuously enhances risk management capabilities. It helps the

+ Three Mechanisms”.

Group reduce or avoid the adverse impacts on its business, financial
position and results of operation or the consequential regulatory
restrictions and penalties due to fraudulent transactions by effectively
identifying fraud risks.
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Anti-money laundering risks

The Group is subject to the laws and regulations on anti-money
laundering. These laws and regulations require the Group to establish
sound internal control policies and procedures with respect to anti-
money laundering monitoring and reporting obligations. The anti-
money laundering policies and procedures the Group has adopted
may not be effective in protecting its services from being exploited
for money laundering purposes. Failure to comply with the relevant
laws and regulations or the exploitation of the payment services
of the Group by law-breakers who engage in money laundering
activities will subject the Group to fines or other penalties levied
by regulators, which may negatively affect its results of operations.
In this connection, subject to anti-money laundering laws and
regulations, the Group monitors its risk exposure arising from money
laundering in its daily operation by formulating policies for and
operational flows in money laundering, establishing a monitoring
system on money laundering risks and maintaining an anti-money
laundering taskforce in order to mitigate risks.

Information risks

The Group is subject to increasingly stringent laws and regulations on
information security. In this connection, the Group has incorporated
information security risks into the scope of the risk management
committee and established specialized organizations and departments
for liaison with regulators, to study and interpret regulatory
requirements in a timely manner as well as actively implement various
safety regulations and regulatory requirements within the Group.
The Group has established a sound information security management
and technical protection system that undergoes constant inspection,
optimization and improvement, so as to effectively reduce the risk
regarding information security compliance. Malfunctions of our
technology systems, errors in software, hardware, and systems,
or human errors in operating these systems could disrupt and
jeopardize the Group's businesses. In this connection, the Group has
a comprehensive set of R&D and management processes in place
for its system to ensure the continuity of its operation. The Group
continuously increases the investment in technical development,
such as adding advanced equipment and recruiting outstanding
talents, in order to enhance the capability of information technology
development.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLIC-ES AND
PERFORMANCE

With an environmentally responsible attitude, the Group strictly
abides by the laws and regulations on environmental protection.
The Group promotes green office policies, advocates environmental
protection and energy and water conservation awareness through
effective control measures, and encourages employees to travel with
low carbon footprint. The Group pays close attention to the use
of resources such as electricity and water during its operations to
minimize the consumption of resources. Moreover, the Group carries
out waste sorting management in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, helping accelerate the effective utilization of solid waste
resources.

For a specific introduction and details of the Group’s environmental
and social policies and performances, please refer to the annual
environmental, social and governance report of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group acknowledges the importance of stakeholders to
corporate development and always pays attention to matters of
concern to stakeholders including the government and regulators,
shareholders and investors, employees, business partners, customers
and the community. The Group maintains transparent and bilateral
exchange, strengthens mutual trust and cooperation and establishes
harmonious relationship with its stakeholders.

Huifu Payment Limited SCAEATAMR2ARF  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FE i

RAHREABTNEE  AREBREETRERE
FHEEERER  BBARNERERELEZEHR
ANHBK - SERENEEEKER - BB TEHX
HiT - AEBEEELRRETPEHES KELRER
MERRSEDRE RURRDBERER - It
S REBETRE RO BEERIANETHEBERE
B BIINREIBEM B RN ERER -

EE§$§E1§¢*&ﬁﬁE& EEEEEEEZE:%@ NAEE
£ FLAAEEFECGRE  HERERWME)

R0 ENRE
AEBRBHAEHAVREOERM - HEIE
BRASERE  RENREE BT BEAE

B BP HESHOEMBEOCHERE  BHER
FEFRBERNBBN  MREFEE - EIMGE
RA1R °



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
SER RS

The Group has always treated compliance with laws and regulations
as a basic requirement for operations, and maintains good
communication with the government and regulatory agencies
through voluntary reporting, cooperating with reviews and
investigations, and recommending industry standard improvement.
The Group treats the realization of the interests of Shareholders
and investors as an important business objective, establishes
communication channels such as shareholder meetings and timely
announcements, and delivers sound financial performance to
Shareholders and investors. The Group regards employees as
valuable assets, motivates employees with a competitive salary
and transparent promotion mechanism, and provides them with
a fair working environment. The Group also supports their career
development skills with various forms of training support. The Group
is engaged in regular visits, communication and industry exchange
with its business partners, and maintains real-time interaction in
daily operations with them in order to develop long-term and stable
cooperation. The Group innovates to meet customers’ needs and
is committed to providing customers with high-quality and reliable
services. The Group provides various online and offline channels to
enable timely and accurate communication with customers, assisting
them in their long-term development. The Group also maintains a
sound communication mechanism with the community, develops
innovative models, strengthens school-enterprise cooperation,
conducts public welfare activities, and promotes the stable
development of the community.

For a specific introduction and details of the Group’s relationship
with stakeholders, please refer to the annual environmental, social
and governance report of the Group.

By order of the Board
Huifu Payment Limited
ZHOU Ye

Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC

25 March 2020
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of
the Company for the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF
THE COMPANY

The Company is committed to maintaining and promoting stringent
corporate governance. The principle of the Company’s corporate
governance is to promote effective internal control measures, uphold
a high standard of ethics, transparency, responsibility and integrity
in all aspects of business, to ensure that its business and operations
are conducted in accordance with applicable laws and regulations
and to enhance the transparency and accountability of the Board
to all Shareholders. The Company’s corporate governance practices
are based on the principles and code provisions as set out in the CG
Code.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has been in compliance with
the code provisions set out in the CG Code during the Reporting
Period.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’'s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance, and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to the management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place. The Board has delegated
to the Board committees responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference.

Delegation of Management Function

The major powers and functions of the Board include, but are not
limited to, convening the general meetings, reporting its work at
the general meetings, implementing the resolutions passed at the
general meetings, considering and approving the operating plans
and investment plans of the Company, formulating the Company’s
strategic development plans, formulating annual financial budgets
and final accounts plans, formulating profit distribution plans
and plans on making up losses, and exercising other powers
and functions as conferred by the Memorandum and Articles of
Association.
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All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of
the Company and advices from the joint company secretaries and
senior management of the Company and may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Board is responsible for making decision with respect to the
strategic plans, major investment decisions and other significant
operational matters of the Company, while responsibilities with
respect to the implementation of the decisions of the Board, day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the Company are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained

from the Board prior to entering into any significant transactions.

Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises nine Directors, including three
executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. A list of members of the
Board, their positions and dates of appointment, and each Director’s
biography have been set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management”.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors, have brought
a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in

the interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and this annual report, there is
no relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship(s)) between the Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and performed by
different individuals.
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Up to the date of this annual report, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company were not separated and Mr.
ZHOU Ye currently performs these two roles. The Board believes
that vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer
in the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership
within the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning for the Group. The Board believes that the
balance of power and authority for the present arrangement will
not be impaired and is adequately ensured by current Board which
comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with sufficient
number thereof being independent non-executive Directors.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Reporting Period, the Company has three independent
non-executive Directors in compliance with the Rules 3.10(1) and
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The number of independent non-
executive Directors accounts for one third of the number of the
Board members.

According to the Rule 3.13 of Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have made confirmations to the Company
regarding their independence during the Reporting Period. Based
on the confirmations of the independent non-executive Directors,
the Company considers each of them to be independent during the
Reporting Period.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code states that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal

of Directors are laid down in the Memorandum and Articles of
Association.
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Each of the executive Directors have entered into a service contract
with the Company pursuant to which they agreed to act as executive
Directors for an initial term of three years with effect from the Listing
Date or until the third annual general meeting of the Company since
the Listing Date (whichever ends earlier). Either party has the right
to give not less than three months’ written notice to terminate the
agreement.

Each of Mr. CHYE Chia Chow and Mr. ZHOU Joe, being non-
executive Directors, has entered into an appointment letter on
20 May 2018 with the Company with an initial term for three
years or until the third annual general meeting of the Company
since the Listing Date, and Ms. WANG Lihong has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 1 November 2019 until the third annual general
meeting of the Company, whichever ends earlier, subject to re-
election as and when required under the Memorandum and Articles
of Association unless terminated in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the appointment letter or by either party giving to the
other not less than one month’s prior notice in writing.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company on 20 May 2018 with an
initial term for three years or until the third annual general meeting
of the Company since the Listing Date, whichever ends earlier,
subject to re-election as and when required under the Memorandum
and Articles of Association unless terminated in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the appointment letter or by either party
giving to the other not less than one month’s prior notice in writing.

In accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association,
all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and any new director appointed to fill a causal vacancy
shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the
first general meeting after appointment. Any director appointed
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.
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In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Memorandum and Articles
of Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one
third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at the general
meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated office.
Accordingly, Mr. JIN Yuan, Ms. WANG Lihong and Mr. CHYE Chia
Chow will retire by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
for the Directors to conduct securities transactions. After making
specific enquiry to all the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the Reporting Period.

Training and Continuous Professional Development

of Directors

Each newly appointed director shall be provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well
as his/her responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and
regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars to provide
Directors with updates on latest development and changes in the
Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements
from time to time. The Directors are also provided with regular
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties. Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The joint company secretaries of the Company have from
time to time updated and provided written training materials relating
to the roles, functions and duties of a director.

During the Reporting Period, all Directors has attended training
session arranged by the Company which was provided by the
professional advisers relating to the continuing obligations of
listed companies and its directors, disclosure obligations of listed
companies and update on the Listing Rules which was provided by
the professional advisers.
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Herebelow is a summary of training received by the Directors for the
year ended 31 December 2019:

EENEZE2019F 12 A31 BIEEERESEIN
BMESZWT :

Name of Directors Training
EEHS £
Mr. ZHOU Ye AR v
Ms. MU Haijie BEZLL V
Mr. JIN Yuan REE v
Mr. CHYE Chia Chow EES A v
Mr. ZHOU Joe ZHOU Joe %t 4 Vv
Ms. WANG Lihong THEsAZ T V
Mr. LIU Jun 2B k- vV
Mr. WANG Hengzhong FEARLE vV
Ms. ZHANG Qi R+ v

Mr. JIN Yuan has also attended the training on the best practices of
performing the duties of company secretary.

Liability Insurance of Directors and Senior

Management

The Company has purchased insurances for all Directors and
members of the senior management to minimize risks that may be
incurred in their normal performance of responsibilities.

Directors’ Responsibility on Financial Statements
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2019.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements of the Company with a view to ensuring that
such financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The Board has received from the senior management the
management accounts and such accompanying explanation and
information as necessary to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment for approving the financial statements.

ERAENTEHFARABTARMEREZRER
FEEET] o

EEREAEEBNSEERR

ARAREREREFNSNEREKERBRRE
AR EERIERBITREBES AL EL MR R

ERIE -

EEHHMBEBRRNESE
BEEMRHEAQFEE2019F 12 A31 B IEFH
FEVBRRNGRAEGEET -

EXTAREEARAMBRERORE - UBRZF
MBHRRENEEA T REAEBHEBAKR -
ARERTEEBEEREERENIER G E
A

EXSCNSREEEESNERRE RAFHNRE
MEgEREN  NEESERILAMBRREIFL
HIEEZ o

Huifu Payment Limited LA KT AT ANNUAL REPORT 2019 #E#keE

95



96

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ﬁé%k’v a #& =

Board Meetings and General Meeting

During the Reporting Period, the Company held 5 Board meetings in
total and one general meeting. The Company has fully complied with
the requirement under the code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code to

EEgEeRBRREAE

RIBEEHE - ARG HEBOTTARESTEERENK
—ABRRARE - ARRICE2EETEESETAE

ANNERRTE  BFELBRNAEETESH

convene Board meetings at least four times a year at approximately #)FEFE— K o
quarterly intervals.
The attendance of the above meetings by each Director is as follows: SEEHF ez BRI
2019 AGM 2019 Board Meeting
Attended/ Attended/
No. of Eligible No. of Eligible
Name of Directors “°*** to attend to attend
2019 F 2019 F
CHE AERLE BHE SEKLE
EEpghe BREFKE EEEER Y
Mr. ZHOU Ye IR e 11 5/5
Ms. MU Haijie BERZL 1/1 5/5
Mr. JIN Yuan EREE 1/1 5/5
Mr. CHYE Chia Chow EEHEE 1/1 5/5
Mr. ZHOU Joe ZHOU Joe L4 11 5/5
Ms. WANG Lihong' TEpshzz+! 0/0 1/1
Mr. CHEN Zhongjue B o U % A 2 11 4/4
Mr. LIU Jun BBk A 11 5/5
Mr. WANG Hengzhong FERLEE 171 5/5
Ms. ZHANG Qi SR+ 1/1 5/5
Notes: AT -
1. Ms. WANG Lihong has been appointed as a non-executive Director with 1. FTEARTEEZERIERITESE - 52019F 11 A1
effect from 1 November 2019. HHEAER ©
2. Mr. CHEN Zhongjue has resigned as a non-executive Director with effect 2. RPEEECBERIFNITESE  B2019F11 11

from 1 November 2019.

Notices for all regular Board meetings and the agendas and
accompanying Board papers will be given to all Directors at least
three days before the meetings in order that they have sufficient
time to review the papers. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint
company secretary with copies circulated to all Directors or Board
committee members for information and records. Directors who have
conflicts of interest in a board resolution have abstained from voting
for that resolution.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by
the Board and the Board committees and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by the Directors/Board committee
members. Draft and final versions of the minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting are sent to the Directors/
Board committee members for comments and records respectively
within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is
held. Minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by
Directors. All Directors shall obtain information related to the Board
resolutions in a comprehensive and timely manner. Any Director can
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense after
making reasonable request to the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. WANG Hengzhong, Mr. LIU Jun and Ms.
ZHANG Qi. Mr. WANG Hengzhong, who holds the appropriate
professional qualifications as required under Rule 3.10(2) and
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, serves as the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are:

o to propose the appointment or dismissal of the external auditor
of the Company, and approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor;

o to discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of
the audit and relevant reporting obligations and to facilitate
communications and monitor the relationship between the
internal audit department and the external accounting firm;

o to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

o to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual reports and accounts, half-year reports and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant
reporting judgments contained therein;
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o to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems, discuss the risk management and
internal control systems with the senior management;

o to review the Company’s financial and accounting policies and
practices; and

o other matters required by laws, regulations, regulatory

documents, the rules of the securities regulatory authority of

the place where the Shares are listed and the requirements

of the Memorandum and Articles of Association, and as

authorized by the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings,
at which the Group’s annual results for 2018, interim results for
2019 and the relevant accounting principles and practices adopted by

the Group were reviewed and discussed with the external auditors.

Code provision C.3.3(e)(i) of the CG Code provides that the terms
of reference of the Audit Committee shall have the terms that the
members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the Board and
senior management and the Audit Committee must meet at least
twice a year with the auditor. The Company has included such terms
in relevant terms of reference, and thus complied with the Code
provision C.3.3(e)(i) of the CG Code since the Company’s listing.
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The attendance of the meetings by each member is as follows: EREMNHFEEZMBROT ¢
Attended/
No. of Meetings
Name of Members REHH EHE SBAE
Mr. LIU Jun IR 2/2
Mr. WANG Hengzhong FlERKLE 2/2
Ms. ZHANG Qi R A+ 2/2
Remuneration Committee FMEES

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing
Rules and the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee consists of
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. ZHANG Qi,
Mr. WANG Hengzhong, and one executive Director, namely Mr.
ZHOU Ye. Ms. ZHANG Qi currently serves as the chairwoman of the
Remuneration Committee.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration C ittee are:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for the Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policy;

o to review the remuneration of individual executive Directors,
senior management and non-executive Directors;

° to review the Company’s policy on expense reimbursements for
the Directors and senior management; and

o other matters required by laws, regulations, regulatory
documents, the rules of the securities regulatory authority of
the place where the Shares are listed and the requirements
of the Memorandum and Articles of Association, and as
authorized by the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held
3 meetings, at which (i) the performance and remuneration of
the executive Directors and senior management of the Company
was reviewed; (ii) detailed rules of the Share Award Scheme was
formulated and the trustees of the Share Award Scheme were
appointed; and (iii) the remuneration of Ms. WANG Lihong, a non-
executive Director, was approved.

The attendance of the meetings by each member is as follows:

s HEFRARRASGREREZHFMBERNE
B AR ERFMBRRELLRERZRERF
MEESELZE

o REMERNITEE  SRERENIFNTES
i -

o BRUEFERAATSREEERHSEELIE
®

o AR ER - BEXM B LTHESEER
EEBNRAINRAGERRZRMA R ERAR
HE RREEERBNEMETR -

RBEHE FMEZEeRTT=ZREgx 2L
BEMRAATESTRARASREEENRE L
B i) B E B SRR ET B R RIS - YR ERD
RETEOZTEA R BRIFRTESTRLL
THYFE o

BEREBHFEEZNBERMOT -

Attended/

No. of Meetings

BHE/

Name of Members RE®HE BRXE
Ms. ZHANG Qi SRELZ L 3/3
Mr. WANG Hengzhong TlERLE 3/3
Mr. ZHOU Ye ] B 5 3/3
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set
forth the total remuneration of the Directors and members of senior
management categorized by remuneration group for the year ended
31 December 2019:

Group (Note)

Remuneration (RMB)

SfE - TRE}EIEE2019

BT REB.
ENANBLEERGMANBDNEERSR
G B E A -

Number of Individuals

A 5 (BHEE) FH(ARR) AB
0 - 2,000,000
2,000,001 - 5,000,000 3
Above 5,000,001 A
Notes: MieE -

Group 1 includes 7 Directors (among whom Mr. CHEN Zhongjue resigned as a non-
executive director in November, 2019 and Ms. WANG Lihong was appointed as a
non-executive director on the same day) and 2 members of senior management of
the Company.

Group 2 includes 2 Directors and 1 member of senior management of the Company.

Group 3 includes 1 Director of the Company.

Further details of the Directors’ emoluments and the top five
highest paid employees required to be disclosed under Appendix 16
of the Listing Rules are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial
statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. LIU Jun, Ms. ZHANG Qi and one
executive Director, namely Mr. ZHOU Ye. Mr. ZHOU Ye currently
serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are:

. to formulate procedures and standards for the election of
Directors and senior management, and make recommendations
to the Board on the proposed procedures and standards;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession plans for Directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive officer;

o to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
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o to preliminarily examine the eligibility of candidates for
directorship;

o to recommend to the Board concerning the membership of the
Company’s audit and remuneration committees, in consultation
with the chairmen of those committees; and

o other matters required by laws, regulations, regulatory
documents, the rules of the securities regulatory authority of
the place where the Shares are listed and the requirements
of the Memorandum and Articles of Association, and as
authorized by the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held 2
meeting, at which matters in relation to composition of the Board,
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and retirement by rotation of Directors were discussed, and the
resignation of Mr. CHEN Zhongjue as a non-executive Director and
appointment of Ms. WANG Lihong as a non-executive Director was
considered.

According to the Nomination Policy, in evaluating and selecting
any candidate for directorship, the Nomination Committee would
consider the following criteria, including, among other things,
character and integrity, qualifications (cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy), any
potential contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in terms
of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and diversity, and
willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s).

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon receipt of
the proposal on appointment of new director and the biographical
information (or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship. The Nomination
Committee should then recommend to the Board to appoint
the appropriate candidate for directorship with a ranking of the
candidates (if applicable) by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and reference check of each candidate.
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The attendance of the meeting by each member is as follows:

BEREBLFEEZNBERAT

Attended/

No. of Meetings

Bk

Name of Members REHSE BBRE
Mr. LIU Jun Bk e 272
Ms. ZHANG Qi RE A+ 2/2
Mr. ZHOU Ye JEIRE S A 2/2

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy. In designing the
Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee has considered
Board diversity from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional experience. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Company considers the Board possesses a good gender diversity
with three women on the Board. It also believes the Board has a
well-balanced cultural background, educational background, industry
experience and professional experience where members of the
Board have diversified branch of learning and working experience in
different countries and regions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors which include:

o to formulate and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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. to formulate, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. SO Shuk Yi Betty, of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited, has been engaged by the Company as a joint
company secretary of the Company, and is responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring that Board
policy and procedures, and applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

Mr. JIN Yuan, an executive Director and a joint company secretary
of the Company, is the primary contact person of Ms. So at the
Company.

During the Reporting Period, the joint company secretaries of
the Company, Mr. JIN Yuan and Ms. SO Shuk Yi Betty, actively
participated in studies and updated their professional knowledge
related to the Listing Rules and corporate governance to continuously
improve their professional skills as company secretaries. They had
complied with the requirements on taking no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training as set out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

AUDITOR

Financial statements contained in this report have been audited by
Ernst & Young. Service fees which shall be paid by the Company to
Ernst & Young for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
RMB2,699,800 (value added tax and other related tax excluded).
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Fees Payable (RMB)

Service rendered FriR AR 75 ENERARY)
Audit service EET R 2,400,000
Non-audit services"*® EE RGN 299,800
Total st 2,699,800

Note: Non-audit services primarily comprise advisory services.

sk : JEmEHIRIE B BEH MR -

Huifu Payment Limited SCAATAR2AF  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FE# &

103



F GOVERNANCE F
X -

S R R S
The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements is
set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 150 to 156.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Company is committed to establishing high level risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
Company’s interests and shareholders’ investment. The Company
has established robust, comprehensive and technology-driven risk
management to effectively manage and mitigate risks inherent in the
business to protect the Company, its clients and partners, as well
as to meet regulatory obligations. The Board assumes the ultimate
responsibility for the Company’s risk management, internal control
and compliance.

Risk Management

The Company’s risk management activities are undertaken and
monitored by a risk management committee and supplemented
by risk management department, legal department, compliance
department, internal audit department, IT department and other
business departments. The Company’s risk management committee
is responsible for identifying, controlling and preventing major
risks across our organization, as well as promulgating and ensuring
compliance with risk management policies. The Company’s
compliance department and risk management department, as well
as legal department and internal audit department, IT department
have expertise in legal and regulatory, finance and internal audits,
information systems to oversee its daily risk management activities.

104 Huifu Payment Limited SCAATAR2AE  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FE &

AR AN AR R A B TS R R AT
BHFNE 1502 156 AN BIUZEEIRE | -

a2 B o T % PO R 42

RRABBRARE BKERNRRE R RAPEHE
B REBARAERRBRORE - RABRLT
B 2EEARTESORRERRERERER
BREXBEAERR UREADRF  ARFEP
REERHY  YRTEERY EFGARARE
B NERERIRARHREEE -

EkREE
ApRMERERZETHHEAREEZREGEBLE
B XmEAREEE ORBEF - AR R
AR AT EPPT - BB EBPI R B AR A BRPTE T
FoARRMERERZBE B AR - R
HREAMNERAR - W HEMRBRETERE
EBEK - ARARANEREREREEEF  EH
K AEEF AP - BEARRESPIABEBE REE
MHEEAMBET EREZROTENERMAH - UE
BRRRREREY -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERMSE

The Company has established its principal business flow and adopted
various risk management procedures as the guidelines for its
business. Meanwhile, to establish and maintain a comprehensive and
effective risk management and internal control system, the Company
persistently maintains the independence of its risk management
and internal audit sector, and exercise ex-ante, concurrent and ex-
post control over and prevention against risks according to the
fundamental procedure of our business. In order to provide timely
and effective response to the occurrence of risks such as complaints
lodged by merchants, assistance in external investigations and
contingencies, the Company has set up a contingency response
system comprising the risk management department, the operation
department, the business unit, the system and architecture
department, financial operation department and the compliance
management department and legal affairs department, in order to
ensure the occurrence of risks are immediately responded and dealt
with, reduce the escalation of risk events and losses of investors due
to a delay in tackling the risks as well as cooperate with the relevant
authorities which investigate into and deal with risk events.

The scope of risk management and internal audit covers all
businesses, departments and staff of the Company. Led by the risk
management department, all business units will prepare a manual
on departmental business risk for all significant and core businesses
and conduct self-assessment and recognition on an annual basis
to ensure that the Company’s risk management is effective in all
of our business sections, including decision making, execution,
supervision and feedback. Moreover, with a risk-driven approach and
taking into account the probability of risk occurrence and the level
of its impacts, the Company’s internal audit department assesses
the appropriateness, effectiveness and accuracy of the Company’s
significant business activities, principal financial procedures and
internal control procedure and system on a regular basis. If any
material flaw in our internal processes or defect in our governing
systems, the internal audit team shall, after thorough discussion with
the management, continuously supervise and urge the management
to implement corrective measures, while encouraging all parties
concerned to revise and improve the rules and regulations, so as
to provide a valid and reasonable guarantee that the Company’s
business activities, key processes and control systems are
continuously effective.
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The Company’s risk management and internal control system
comprises three lines of defense:

First Line of Defense

The Company’s business units play the role of first line of defense by
assessing, identifying, managing, reporting and controlling risk. The
Company’s business units manage their business risk exposure while
conducting their business activities.

Second Line of Defense

The Company’s operation department, compliance management
department and risk management departments are the second line
of defense. The second line of defense is responsible for managing
general and specific risks.

Third Line of Defense

The Company’s internal audit department serves as the third line of
defense, which provides independent assurance regarding the key
risks to the organization, including an independent assessment of its
risk management committee and risk management departments.

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness and such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Board, as supported by the Audit
Committee, which would review and consider relevant report made
by the risk management committee of the Company, reviewed
the risk management and internal control systems, including the
financial, operational and compliance controls periodically and
considered such systems are effective and adequate.
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Internal Control

The Company establishes an internal audit department with
corresponding supervision and audit responsibility. The major roles
of the internal audit department in respect of its auditing and
internal control are conducting internal audit and internal control on
business, operation and financial procedure of the Group, including
but not limited to business procedures such as sales, procurement,
expenditure, financial reporting, fixed assets, contract management,
human resources and remuneration, as well as investment and
financing, supervising the soundness and implementation of internal
control procedure and system, performing accountability auditing
or off-office auditing on the Company’s key responsible persons
or relevant staff involved in conflicts of interests, investigating into
significant suspected corruption or fraud cases, providing advisory
services and evaluation in respect of relevant matters in all economic
activities of the Company, as well as reporting the findings on all of
the abovementioned incidents to the Company’s senior management,
the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Company has formulated an information disclosure policy
governing the procedures and internal control for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, in which the utilization of
confidential or inside information for securities dealing is strictly
forbidden. An information disclosure working group is established
to monitor and evaluate the risks of leakage of inside information,
and to handle and disseminate inside information as appropriate in
accordance to the information disclosure policy.

The Board conducts review on the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control system annually.
In 2019, the Company conducted a review on its risk management
and internal control system. The method, findings, analysis and
results of the evaluation have been reported to the risk management
committee and the Board.

The Board discussed and considered the risk management and
internal control system of the Company and was of the opinion that
the risk management and internal control system of the Company
was adequate and effective.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

General Meetings and Shareholders’ Rights

The Company shall in each year hold a general meeting as its
annual general meeting in addition to any other meetings in that
year and shall specify the meetings as such in the notices calling
them. The extraordinary general meetings are convened irregularly.
In accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association,
an extraordinary general meeting shall be convened either by the
Board or on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board or any one of the joint company secretaries for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

There are no provisions in the Memorandum and Articles of
Association or in the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for
putting forward proposals of new resolutions by Shareholders at
general meetings. Shareholder(s) who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting in
accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.
For proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to the
“Procedures for Shareholders to Nominate a Person for Election as a
Director” posted on the Company’s website.
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Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information, which will enable
Shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company makes up-to-
date information and updates on the Company’s business operations
and developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information available in the websites of the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.huifu.com)
for public access.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum and an
important channel for communication between the Board and the
Shareholders. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
in their absence, other members of the respective
committees and, where applicable, are available normally at the
annual general meetings and other relevant shareholder meetings

Committee or,

to answer questions. Shareholders are also encouraged to attend
general meetings held by the Company and are invited to express
their views and raise questions thereat.

Shareholders should direct their inquiries about their shareholdings to
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong. Investors may also write to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong or China for
any enquiries.

The Company sets out the following contact details for Shareholders
to communicate with the Company:

Mailing address: Building C5, No. 700 Yishan Road, Shanghai, China
Telephone number: 86-21-33323999
E-mail address: ir@huifu.com

AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

There had been no changes in constitutional documents of the
Company during the Reporting Period.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Overview

This report is the environmental, social and governance (ESG) Report
of Huifu Payment Limited, which mainly discloses the Company’s
management approach, practice, and performance on responsible
management, corporate governance, customer service, business
partnership, employee development, social contribution, etc., to our
stakeholders.

Reporting Period and Release Frequency

This report covers the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2019 (the “reporting period”). Part of the contents that are beyond
this period will be otherwise noted. This report is released on an
annual basis starting from 2019.

Reporting Scope and Boundary

This report covers Huifu Payment Limited, its subsidiaries and
operating entities. For ease of reference, this report refers to Huifu
Payment Limited as “Huifu Payment”, the “Company” or “We".

Data Source

All policies, information, and data contained in this report are
derived from the official documents, statistical reports or public
information of Huifu Payment Limited and have been reviewed by
relevant departments. The Company undertakes that this report
is free from false or misleading statements and is responsible for
the authenticity, accuracy, and completeness of its contents. The
Company uses consistent statistical and disclosure methods so that
meaningful comparison of KPIs can be performed. Unless otherwise
specified, the currency used in this report is RMB.

Basis of Preparation of This Report

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide, Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
includes determining the boundary and scope of the ESG report,
identifying and prioritizing key stakeholders, performing materiality
assessment, collecting relevant information and evidence, preparing
this report based on the information, and verifying the data included
in the report.

Preparation of the report
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Confirmation and Approval
After confirmation by management, this report was approved by the
Board of Directors on 25 March 2020.

Huifu Payment attaches great importance to the opinions and
suggestions of stakeholders and welcomes readers to contact us
through the following channels. Your comments will help us further
improve this report and our overall ESG performance.

E-mail: ir@huifu.com
Mailing address: Building C5, 700 Yishan Road, Shanghai, China

RESPONSIBLE MANAGEMENT
ESG Concept

Powered by its top-notch technologies and excellent operations,
Huifu Payment provides payment processing and account settlement
services in the digital age. While safeguarding the security of our
clients’ digital assets, we also sustainably create values for them.
We continue to enhance compliance efforts and improve our
core competitiveness, and support the development of payment
infrastructure and seek to change people’s lifestyle with a strong
sense of responsibility. Moreover, we promote the development of
inclusive finance and digital technology and transforms business
models and the ecosystem, with our hopes placed on not only driving
our own digital transformation to fuel a leapfrogging development
of our businesses, but also empowering all walks of life with our in-
depth payment services to engage more individuals and enterprises
in the waves of fintech and digitization, and join hands to build a
new ecosystem that is open, convenient, cooperative, reciprocal, fair
and inclusive, to create a new future that is imaginative, digital, and
sustainable.

ESG Management

Huifu Payment has always been locking its eyes on five aspects,
i.e. corporate governance, customer service, business partnership,
employee development and social contribution, as the very core of its
ESG management. During the reporting period, we have optimized
our responsibility management system, which is firstly guided by the
Board of Directors and then implemented by the ESG Working Group
for ensuring our systematic top-down ESG management mechanism
to operate more efficiently.
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As the highest accountable body for the matter of ESG work, the
Board of Directors is responsible for managing ESG risks in an overall
sense, including reviewing and approving ESG policy documents and
reports, and authorizing the management to initiate guidance on
ESG work. On the other hand, our ESG Working Group is responsible
for implementing specific ESG work, collecting ESG information,
preparing ESG report, and regularly reporting to the management
and the Board of Directors on the status of task management and
any material issues.

BESEAESGHBIIENER s ERE
PEESGAHREE R B2 Eﬁ%%ﬁtESGE&%W#&#&% :
WREESEERBESGHAEEIIE  ESGITIEN
HEBEWITESGHEBM AR TIE - WEESGEET
WEESGHRE B IEERBRMEREAETHM
EHEREESER -

ESG Concept
ESGER

ESG Management Strategies
ESG B HE KAk

Corporate Governance
AREA
Customer Services

EP IR

Business Partnership
KEEE1E

Employee Development
BT #R

Social Contribution

==Y

ESG Management Structure
ESGEEEE

Board of Directors
EEg
v
Management
B
v
ESG Working Group
ESG T{E/ME
v

All Employees
FIBEET

ESG Report
ESG &

BFESH

Stakeholder Engagement
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Key stakeholder communication and feedback

In hope that stakeholders can participate in the ESG management
and development of the Company, Huifu Payment maintains
close contact with stakeholders through effective and normalized
communication channels in order to understand the issues of
concern of stakeholders and regularly review the effectiveness of our
ESG management, so that we can make timely adjustments to better
reflect the expectations and opinions of stakeholders. During the
reporting period, a total of 243 questionnaires were distributed and
returned, 3 interviews with external stakeholders were conducted,
and the concerned issues of key stakeholders identified last year
were updated as follows:
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Stakeholders’ Major Issues of Communication and

Stakeholder Group Concern Response Channels Frequency
B EAR FHOEBRINEIERE BERESR /N |
Shareholders/Investors Economic performance — Shareholders’ meeting  Shareholders’ meeting is
Legal compliance — Investor meeting held at least once a year
Risk management — Results presentation Investor meetings and on-
— Press release/ site visits are organized
announcement on an irregular and
— On-site visits frequent basis
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Government/Regulatory Legal compliance — On-site visits Irregular and frequent
Bodies Information security — Discussion

Anti-corruption

Prevention and control of
economic crime

Transformation and innovation
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Stakeholder Group
B & AR

Stakeholders’ Major
Concern

FOERINETERE

‘Communication and
Response Channels

BERELN

Frequency

B RY

Business Partners

BIERBH

Industry Clients and Micro
and Small Merchants

TEEPRHIEEP

Employees

Media

Ree

Public Communities

HERAR

Intellectual property
management

Information security

Transformation and innovation

Industry exchange
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$ 7Y B AT

TER

Information security

Service response and efficiency

Customer development support
Sensitive user data management

ERRR

EE TIPSRV ES
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Compensation and benefits

Employee health and safety

Employee development and
training
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Legal compliance

Inclusive finance

Impact of business activities on
society

BEER

TESH

¥BEtangE

Community contribution
Charity
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
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Materiality Assessment

To identify the material issues of Huifu Payment for the current year
and determine the main content of the ESG report, we performed a
materiality assessment following rigorous and effective processes and
developed the materiality matrix.

We identified 17, 9 and 7 material issues with high/medium/low
importance respectively. This report focuses on high and medium
material issues.

BRI
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TERE  ROBBEE ARNRFETTER
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Materiality Matrix of Huifu Payment
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Category of the Issue No. Name of the Issue

BEER B REEE
Economic and 1 Business performance and economic performance
Governance Issues EBRARKBEN
RERERRE 2 Impact on inclusive finance
HEBoRNTE
3 Impact on China and industry development
HERLITEEROTE
4 Industry exchange and benign competition
TEIRRRMEEF
5 Brand value and image
mEEERER
6 Compliance with laws and regulations
AEREREE
7 Risk management and control
[ e 4
8 Information security management
EREREER
9 Corporate integrity building
NEARBER

10 Prevention and control of economic crimes (such as anti-money laundering,
anti-fraud, counter-financing of terrorism and etc.)
RELEHPE(WMREE - REFF - REBRMES)

11 Supplier management (ESG related requirement towards suppliers)
g R E I (Y B R ESGABRAM Z3k)

12 Supply chain risk management

1 JE L P B 1R
Environmental Issues 13 Use of energy and resources
RERE B IR B E R A
14 Pollutant (such as wastewater, exhaust gas and etc.) and solid waste management
ERM(REK - ERE)MEBEZYNE R
15 Greenhouse gas emission management
RERBOPNE R
16 Climate change risk management
R B B2
17 Environmental indicator target management

REEZEEER
18 Environmental protection publicity and practice
BRREEREE
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Category of the Issue No. Name of the Issue
BEEER Fi BEER
Employment Issues 19 Employee compensation and benefits
EERE BIHMBER
20 Occupational health and safety
BERERLTE
21 Employee occupational development and training
ETHxBREEE
22 Employee diversity and inclusion
EIZnit BRI
23 Employee caring and retention
ETHERRE
24 Child labor and forced labor
BEIRBELH
Community Issues 25 Community contribution (such as promoting local employment and supporting
HERE economic growth)
HEEM (NS T E  RELEER)
26 Charity
27 Impact of business activities on society (such as payment business, digital
technology service and etc.)
EBRBEHENHE (XTES - HFERERBSE)
Product and Services 28 Product and service quality (such as convenience, compatibility, reliability,
Responsibility security and etc.)
EmRERBEE EmRBREEE(EEY REM - TEM - 224%)
29 Service response and efficiency (such as complaint handling efficiency and
etc.)
REERREERR(RFEEHESE)
30 Customer development support (such as enhancing payment service,
improving the turnover of capital and etc.)
EFERXB(REXARE  ReESAENEXSE)
31 Sensitive user data management
EFBRBEERER
32 Intellectual property management
HABEREEE
33 Transformation and innovation (digital transformation, technology and
model innovation)
BREAAN(BFBE - RIirEEXAIE)
Note: bolded issue represents an issue of high materiality SIS EASEEESSE
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DATA-DRIVEN AND STANDARDIZED
MANAGEMENT

In 2019, Huifu Payment’s ecological development provided a strong
guarantee for the steady growth of various business lines. We
continued to strengthen the regulatory ecosystem and improve the
system development. Meanwhile, we explored and applied digital and
technological methods, so as to enhance the compliance operation,
risk management and information security, thus achieving stronger
bottom-line management.

Risk Management

Development of Regulations
As a payment technology company, Huifu Payment adopts a
sound and

"risk-
oriented” approach to establish a comprehensive,
technology-driven risk management system. It develops and adopts
a set of risk management regulations.

continuously refining regulatory business rules,

Besides, based on the
it regularly tracks,
updates, issues and complies with relevant risk management policy
documents. It has evaluated risk categories and developed sound
risk management regulations and implementing rules for different
businesses based on their mature, to ensure that the Company’s risk
management is effective in all of our business sections, including
decision making, execution, supervision and feedback and to ensure
the prevention and control of fraud risks, money laundering risks,
legal and compliance risks, IT risks, liquidity risks and any other

operational risks.

Anti-money Laundering Initiatives

In strict compliance with laws and regulations, including Anti-
Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Measures for Anti-Money Laundering and Anti-terrorism Financing
of Payment Institutions, and Management Measure on Large and
Suspicious Transactions Reporting for Financial Institutions, we
set up the Anti-Money Laundering and Anti-terrorism Financing
Commission and developed over 10 anti-money laundering
internal control policies. In addition, during the reporting period,
we streamlined the anti-money laundering and anti-terrorism
financing internal control policy, completed the review, approval
and announcement procedures in relation to anti-money and anti-
terrorism financing under the supervision and guidance of the
Anti-Money Laundering and Anti-terrorism Financing Commission,
to further enhance our anti-money laundering works.
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Risk Management System Development of New Retail Business

In view of the rapid development of the new retail business, we
established various systems, including investigation processes
for merchants’ risk in QR-code-scanning business and solutions
for merchants’ risk in new retail during the reporting period,
with the aims to conduct a comprehensive rationalization of
the focus for the new retail business, establish relevant risk
management categories, determine feedback and processing’s
time requirements, building an all-around risk management for
new retail business.

System Management

Leveraging on the well-established risk management system,
Huifu Payment focused on both online and offline business, and
built the risk control system for payment business covering prior
examination, ongoing monitoring and subsequent processing works.
It continued to develop a unified risk control system —
risk control platform”. Taking modular system as the development
core, each module upheld the development ideas of productization

"centralized

and microservices which provided support for future intelligent risk
control.

On the basis of promoting the centralized risk control platform,
we established decision centre, enquiry centre, work flow engine
and monitoring centre during the reporting period, so as to ensure
integration among different modules when implemented separately
and develop a comprehensive risk control capability. The specific
operating results are as follows:

o Established the decision-making centre to achieve closed-loop
process and significantly reduce the risk control docking time

J Established a fully-configured rule engine and blacklist system
to realize the immediate launch of risk control strategies

o Accelerated the automation process and achieved a qualitative
leap in a systematic management process

o Innovated and introduced new technologies to maximize the

efficiency of big data
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Technical Control
Driven by digital transformation, Huifu Payment continued to
implement risk control with cutting-edge technologies and enhance
comprehensive control.

During the reporting period, we applied ADB' technology to deal
with the batch calculation of massive data and enhanced the real-
time risk control capabilities based on Alicloud Technology:

o Functions have been summarized and classified, which reduces
the access time of a single risk control business by 67%, and
reduces the online time of risk control rules from 2 weeks to
30 minutes

o For system performance, the existing technology and structure
have been adapted and upgraded, which significantly improves
the system processing capabilities, achieves multi-zone
deployments on the Alibaba Cloud and supports the rapid
processing capabilities of various high-profile businesses

o For a single transaction, the average response time of the
system is 20 milliseconds, and 99.9% of the transactions can
complete all risk control decisions within 50 milliseconds and
provide feedback on findings

To boost the efficiency of risk identification, we implemented
the feature combination of table data automatically by applying
automatic feature crossing (AutoCross), improved the forecasting
ability of machine learning algorithms, and enhanced the efficiency
and effectiveness. In addition, we carried out improvements on
the ability to quickly deploy new business/product rules and the
timeliness of the deployment of monitoring rules of new business’s
suspicious transactions, gradually realizing the automation of rule
deployment. We also improved the accuracy of identifying risky
customers and reduced the possibility of missing identification by
conducting big data analysis and Al machine learning to optimize
transaction monitoring models.

In 2019, the rate of potential frauds of Huifu Payment decreased by
0.01BP? as compared with 2018, at a leading position in the industry.
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Rate of potential frauds B\ B FE =&

! ADB: AnalyticDB, the analytical database (PostgreSQL)

? 1BP represents one in ten thousand
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Compliance Operation

Huifu Payment strictly abides by important laws, regulations and
regulatory requirements issued by regulatory bodies including
the People’s Bank of China, the State Administration of Foreign
Exchange, China Securities Regulatory Commission, and National
Development and Reform Commission of China on the custody of
clients’ reserves, bankcard acquiring and online payment, such as
the Administrative Measures on Non-Financial Institutions Payment
Services, Administrative Measures on the Online Payment Business
of Non-Banking Payment Institutions, Administrative Measures on
Bankcard Acquiring Services and Measures for the Custody of Clients’
Reserves of Payment Institutions. We have obtained relevant licenses,
permits, approvals or consent, and are closely following the latest
regulatory requirements for the third-party payment industry to get
ready for implementation.

To fully implement the latest requirements issued by regulatory
bodies, Huifu Payment has not only optimized, but also enriched the
contents of its internal management system during the reporting
period. Heeding the relevant requirements of the Notice by the
People’s Bank of China of Matters Concerning Further Strengthening
Administration of Payment and Settlement to Prevent New Types
of Telecommunications and Online Illegal and Criminal Activities
(No. 85 [2019] of the People’s Bank of China), we have amended
our Measures for the Administration of the Inquiry, Freeze and
Deduction of Deposits to specify various rules regarding the
allocation of positions, assignment of duties and report of changes
of the emergency contact. Furthermore, we have developed
the Measures for the Administration of the Rating of Business
Customer to specify the rating standards of the Five-level Risk
System applicable for business customers, and the corresponding
audit measures for account opening and measures for risk-control.
We have also completed a far-reaching transformation of our
management platform for overseeing risk events posed by all new
types of telecommunications and online illegal and criminal activities,
and had it passed the acceptance check. Apart from these, on the
foundation of our Closed-loop Complaint Management Mechanism,
we have added the Measures for the Administration of the Handling
of Financial Customer Complaints in accordance with the Notice
of the General Office of the People’s Bank Of China on Carrying
out and Implementing the Pilot Program for the Guidelines for the
Handling of Financial Institution Customer Complaints (for Trial
Implementation), which in turn bettered our management mechanism
for categorizing complaints, and so did it to our administration of
complaints.
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In 2019, Huifu Payment commenced the construction of its digital
compliance system. While deliberately building and boosting up
its compliance system, the Company indulged its enthusiasm for
ensuring the interface between such system to those of businesses,
which in turn favored the drop of error rate of manual processing,
the surge in efficiency, and the rise in transparency and security level
of business data.

We attach great importance to the compliance awareness training
for our employees. During the reporting period and in light of the
latest regulatory requirements, we focused primarily on using the
means of individualized study on online course platforms and offline
group learning. By means of new staff training, regular training
and specialized training, we provided training for all our employees
on topics covering the background, concepts and objectives for
compliance work, and all relevant laws and regulations to cultivate
our employees’ compliance awareness and further deepen their
knowledge of the significance of compliance work.

Incorruptibility and Integrity

Strictly observing the laws and regulations including the Company
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Criminal Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Audit Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Huifu Payment has established extensive internal
audit system, regulatory review system, as well as a whistleblowing
and punishment system. During the reporting period, following the
update of Huifu Payment’s Code of Business Conduct for Employees
and the Declaration and Management of Conflict of Interests
Policy, we kick-started a string of training activities about anti-
bribery among employees and internal audit in order to continuously
improve our internal management system for honest and ethical
business operations. Along with it, we have adopted a commitment
system to prevent commercial bribery, requiring all our employees to
sign an Incorruptibility and Self-discipline Commitment, and sign an
Anti-commercial Bribery Agreement which has been updated during
the reporting period with parties such as our clients, suppliers,
service providers, or incorporate anti-commercial bribery provisions in
agreements.
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In hope of sharpening the Company's investigative skills for
combating internal bribery, we have extended special invitations
to professional consulting firms to give chalk talks and guidance
in respect of anti-bribery investigation work during the reporting
period. Meanwhile, we have also started our learning and training
modules for all employees in connection with the newly launched
Huifu Payment’s Measures for the Administration of Internal Audit,
Huifu Payment’s Code of Business Conduct for Employees and the
relevant supporting rules, with a total of 1,171 employees having
completed the online learning and examinations, and a total of 173
employees participating in 3 offline trainings.

To encourage employees and business partners to report fraud and
corruption, the Company has established a mailbox with an e-mail
address for whistle-blowing purpose and informers may receive a
certain amount of reward according to the situation. Our Legal and
Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing independent
investigation into the reported cases, with every aspect of which
including case acceptance and investigation being handled in the
strictest confidence to ensure our whistleblowers are well protected.
Any breach of rules and regulations will be stopped or dealt
with immediately once they are detected and the suspect will be
transferred to the judiciary.

During the reporting period, there was no legal proceeding instituted
or concluded due to the corruption of the Company and our
employees. We have also assisted in the investigation of relevant
authorities of at least 68 cases of fraud and terrorism financing.

Information Security

Information security is the cornerstone for securing the rapid and
sustainable development of Huifu Payment’s operations. We strictly
abide by the laws and regulations, including the Cybersecurity
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Standards of Graded
Protection of Information Security, the Regulations for the Payment
Service Business of Non-financial Institutions and Standards for the
Data Security of Third Party Payment (PCI DSS). During the reporting
period, we prepared the Digital Asset Classification and Protection
Standard and conducted the categorization and grading of the digital
asset under our management, not to mention that we have even
imposed a range of relevant management requirements regarding
data owners, protective measures and data flow. Our information
security team conducts internal security audit regularly, with the
audit scope covering technical verifications of application services,
internet and server infrastructure, security facilities, as well as the
information security audit of the retention and flow of sensitive data.
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With our success in adding virtualized platforms for boosting our
operational efficiency of information security, we have leveraged
on our accumulated experiences and technologies to empower
our information security team to agilely respond to a bundle of
security incidents caused by the swift development of the enterprise,
which also gives rise to the launch of our ‘Security Information and
Event Management (SIEM) Platform’. The platform has undertaken
tasks such as the technical compliance audit, the security work
of normalized data, and the tracing and maintenance of security
incidents of the Company. Thanks to the numeric conversion
capabilities of the data on the platform, it has supported the
visualized presentation of the Company’s security trends, and
helped us to understand our current situation from a spectrum
of dimensions, including the performance of external supervision,
personnel management and technical risk-control. We have also
developed an application lifecycle management system ‘S-SDL’
(Secure Software Development Lifecycle), which is not only applicable
to develop scenarios expeditiously, but also to roll out risk-control
at key stages such as during the review of security requirement, the
launch of security development standards, the verification of security
configuration baseline and the security testing before release.

Digital Construction Benefits the Advancement of Risk-

Sensing Capability in Information Security

In 2019, our information security team has completed the
planning and implementation of ‘Honeynet’ and ‘Security Big Data
Platform’. These facilities are designed to sense any unknown
internal and external risks of the Company, then to locate the
problem types and sources in a timely manner. During the
reporting period, we successfully trouble-shot cases of computer
worms, ransomware virus and etc., and already executed the
emergency response and taken care of the issue prior to the wide
spread of the viruses, altogether bringing us to the success in
sensing and preventing all possible high-risk incidents of credential
stuffing attacks, data crawling and external attacks.

During the reporting period, Huifu Payment commenced the training
of information security awareness and the application of security
development standards. Through receiving training, all employees
and technical personnel have shown a prominent improvement in
their safety awareness, standard practice and technical skills.
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Intellectual Property Management

Huifu Payment acts in strict accordance with laws and regulations
on intellectual property including the Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, and Measures for
the Administration of Internet Domain Names. Apart from having
requested all of our employees to sign the Confidentiality and Non-
Competition Agreement for Employees, we have also incorporated
the requirements for the protection of intellectual property into
Huifu Payment’s Code of Business Conduct for Employees. We aim
to raise our staff’s legal awareness of intellectual property protection
through the composition of learning, training and examinations. In
regard to our business partners, we have not only asked them to
sign the Confidential Agreement, but also requested them to ensure
the integrity of the intellectual property of their products or services
as they provide them. During the reporting period, Huifu Payment
has invited experts to conduct seminars on the topic of intellectual
property, and even implemented its 3-year Action Plan of Intellectual
Property Strategy to propel the strategic development of the
Company on the matter of intellectual property.

During the reporting period, Huifu Payment has applied for 18
patents and 3 of them were granted. Moreover, the Company has
applied for and obtained 99 software copyrights and 188 registered
trademarks. During the reporting period, there was no material
dispute between Huifu Payment and any third party on intellectual
property rights nor any other pending legal proceeding.

DELIVERING TECH FOR THE CREATION OF
VALUE

In 2019, Huifu Payment clearly defined its corporate culture:
“Customers are our utmost priority. Serve with openness, agility
and accountability”, with its vision set on leading the upgrade of
the organization, so as the manpower development with its culture.
We hope that by means of our own digital transformation, we will
deliver our technology know-how to our customers and back our
customers’ developments, while safequarding their interests and
creating value for them.
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Quality Products and Services

When services are at the very core of digital transformation, Huifu
Payment has always been persisting to create prime products with
its tech and innovative mind.
chains has guaranteed the stability of payment and settlement
channels, which in turn ensured every product and service it delivers
to its customers is of supreme quality. During 2019, through our
critical tech-transformation, we not only realized the system support
for elastic expansion, but also entirely went down the Cloud-Native

Its stringent management of supply

route. By using digital R&D tools and methods, we implemented the
Quality Lifecycle Management, with our focus being on the launching
of DevOps® to improve our R&D efficiency.

During 2019, Huifu Payment has banked on Alicloud to complete
the construction of its big data platform, and provided data analysis
support for an exhaustive list of businesses by mastering a number
of real-time and near real-time computing techniques. Leveraging on
its self-designed data asset management system, Huifu Payment has
conducted management of data lineage and metadata to guarantee
and improve data quality. This act has also ensured the accuracy
of the massive volume of data being applied in the process of the
provision of products and services, thus improving product and
service quality.

Huifu Payment not only continuously optimizes its existing products
and services, but also proactively creates new products that are
ground-breaking and have been executed to meet all customer
needs. During the reporting period, we officially launched a new
digital payment service ‘Adapay’ to help merchants instantly access
to mainstream payment channels. Moreover, our launch of ‘Money
Keeper 2.0" also propelled the digital transformation of the aviation
industry. With our success in opening up the account system and
tearing down the data barriers, our ‘Zhihui Guanjia’ (Smart Butler)
was awarded with the Digital Innovation Achievement at the World
Artificial Intelligence Conference 2019, the 2019 Smart City Typical
Solution awarded by the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology, and the 4th Edition of Top 10 FinTech Innovation Cases.

A word formed by ‘Development’ and ‘Operation’, collectively referred
to a set of processes, methods and systems. It is used for promoting
the interaction, coordination and integration between Departments of

Development, Technical Operation and Quality Assurance.
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Adapay, the Digital Payment Service New-born

Riding the waves of tech innovation, Huifu Payment launched a
new digital payment service in Shanghai on 3 September 2019:
Adapay. Adhering to the concept of ‘developer-friendly’, Adapay
is a product that creates a state-of-art ‘plug-and-play’ aggregation
payment access and service model enabling a swift connection to
any system payment tools, which, on one hand helps merchants
quickly access to mainstream payment channels, and on the other
hand secures a convenient, safe and smooth payment process
with digital payment. Adapay does not only benefit small and
micro merchants to enjoy tailor-made services, but also allows the
direct dialogues between developers of merchant and payment
portals, creating open docking experience for these developers.

Upping User Journey Analysis with Optimal Workshop

We have piloted the use of the online usability testing tool,
Optimal Workshop, on our Adapay project. Through completing
all-rounded experiments online, both the dimension of results
coverage and the efficiency of data collection were upped by
nearly 20%, lifting the efficiency and precision of our user
behavior and journey analysis.

Furthermore, in order to better understand customer needs, Huifu
Payment advocates the servitization of design, and promotes upfront
user research. Our design team dives into the frontline of businesses,
whether to lead or participate in customer research, to ensure the
ongoing and in-depth understanding towards different markets and
customer needs. Also, after our efforts of digging deep on user
needs, we adopted an interactive system for data atomization during
the reporting period to ensure the consistency of user experience.
Meanwhile, we also created a new design language to meet a variety
of business needs.

As of 31 December 2019, the stability of Huifu Payment’s system for
the provision of products was as high as 99.995%.
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Supply Chain Management

Huifu Payment believes that quality assurance from our suppliers
is an important prerequisite for delivering quality products and
services. We conduct multi-dimensional evaluation of equipment,
IT and payment settlement channel suppliers every year. We also
impose purchasing strategies correspondingly based on the overall
performance of our suppliers, with the aim of motivating them
to achieve sustainable improvements in terms of quality, cost,
delivery and service. For protecting the privacy of our customers
and reinforcing the incorruptibility of our supply chains, we require
our suppliers to sign both the Letter of Commitment for the Lawful
Protection of Citizen’s Personal Information and the Anti-commercial
Bribery Agreement.

During the reporting period, we have extended our partnership with
a total of 9 equipment suppliers and 2 payment and settling channel
suppliers. We also put a great emphasis on looking out for our
partners’ development, where we would actively back our partner
suppliers to secure the reciprocal growth of all of us.
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Number of equipment suppliers by RiLEE D 2018 2019
geographical region RiEHEREE 20184
Eastern China FER MR 1 2
Southern China ErH R 4 5
Central China FER R 1 1
Northern China FEAL i [E 1 1

Customer Development Support

With its untiring spirit of exploration, Huifu Payment applies new
technology to actual application scenarios of different industries,
creating a smarter, more need-oriented user experience for
enterprises, which has brought each of them onto the ‘fast lane’ for
growth within the industry.

128 Huifu Payment Limited SCA A TARAF  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 iR

BEFBREXE
CRATRBTRES - A ENRATERR
BRSSEHT  ALEBRESE  FUARIOR
B - BT R R | BB ST -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B R REARE

During the reporting period, we have worked hand-in-hand with
customers from various industries including logistics, healthcare,
education and catering, and supported them to upgrade and
transform with the tech power in hand. Taking industry needs
as a starting point, we aim to provide support well suited for
different business landscapes, for instance, we helped YTO Express
to upgrade their services through FinTech. We also partnered
with LinkedCare e-dental to open up the flows of data and funds
in the healthcare industry scenario, which not only completed a
system for closed-loop transactions, but also helped this consumer
healthcare business and its customers to communicate smoothly by
creating allied consumption and products paid by instalments. We
also helped Xuebang Software Technology to open up the whole-
chain cooperation between SaaS services and payment accounts to
achieve a closed-loop operation and management of the education
institution, with the ultimate goal of promoting the digital upgrade
of Saa$S capability in the education industry. Apart from these, we,
together with Weimob Group, also launched the ‘Weimob Smart
Payment’ solution through resource and complementary advantage
sharing, which has opened up the whole-chain cooperation between
Weimob SaaS and Huifu Payment’'s payment service, empowering the
digital upgrade of SMEs in China.

Huifu Payment Extended Helping Hands to Assist SMEs and

Micro Enterprises in the Smooth and Orderly Resumption of
Work and Production by Use of Digitalization

With the backdrop of the COVID-19 epidemic in 2020, Huifu
Payment, in hope of helping more SMEs to gradually resume work
safely, has given full play to its tech advantages and customized
a digital gift package, ‘Ada’, for its customers. Created by our
Adapay product team, Ada includes free-for-life functions: ‘Ada
Survey’, ‘NCP Journey Matching’ (a mini program) and ‘Ada Mall’.
Ada enables a timely grasp of employees’ health information,
with its function of journey matching particularly designed for this
epidemic being totally free of charge. Employees can also have
their meal orders easily sorted by one simple hit on the app. Ada
can provide comprehensive solutions for enterprises in the aspects
of gathering employee data, trip inquiries and collecting statistics
of staff dining amid the epidemic, eventually helping enterprises
to resume work smoothly and orderly.
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Protection of Customer Rights and Benefits
While providing prime products and services for its customers and
backing their developments, Huifu Payment also emphasizes on the
protection of customer rights and benefits. The Company has been
actively promoting to the general public about their lawful rights as a
consumer, such as the promotion of the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests in order
to strengthen and improve consumers’ ability in managing risks
and their awareness of undertaking responsibilities. We listen to all
customer feedback through a variety of channels, including national
customer service hotline, online customer service, express mail and
e-mail.

During the reporting period, we have actively optimized the
management mechanism for categorizing complaints in order
to boost the efficiency of our complaint handling process. By
conducting exhaustive management of the entire complaint handling
process covering ways of management and statistics dimensions,
we have significantly improved the performance of our complaint
management system. For bettering our service response and
processing rate, we have transformed our 400 customer service
voice processes into ‘interactive voice response’, and at the same
time prioritized work orders by our customer service department to
axe our internal circulation nodes. We also make use of online mini
program for customer service to directly approach our end-users and
optimize the audit process of our online businesses.
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GROWING WITH OUR TALENTS

Over the past year, we sustainably improved our team by recruiting
high-caliber talents and continuously strengthening team building
under the strategy of digital transformation to foster digital talents
and develop our talent pool. In order to provide our employees
with a quality working environment where they can achieve a work-
life balance, we also continued to improve our policies and related
measures for human resource management.

Protection of Employment Rights

To safeguard the rights and interests of labor, Huifu Payment acts in
strict accordance with laws and regulations including the Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China, Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Protection of Minors Law of the People’s Republic
of China and Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor to
ensure legitimate recruitment process and system characterized by
transparency, fairness and equality that the rights and interests of
candidates and employees will not be prejudiced by a variety of
factors such as gender, territory, age, and marital status. Besides,
both hiring and use of child labor and forced labor are also strictly
prohibited. During the reporting period, we were not aware of any
breach of employment laws and regulations.

As of 31 December 2019, the total number of employees of Huifu
Payment was 1,080. During the reporting period, the employee
turnover rate of Huifu Payment was 9.21% per annum, indicating a
decline year by year. Details of our employee structure are as follows:
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY RANK
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Senior Management
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Middle Management
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General Staff

85% EHET

Adhering to the principle of equal pay for equal work, we pour
our passion into improving the remuneration system of employees
to maintain high standard of employee remuneration and welfare
on par with industry standards. Besides, we make full and timely
payment of social insurance contributions including retirement
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, work injury
insurance, and maternity insurance premiums as well as Housing
Provident Fund contributions for our employees in compliance with
laws and regulations including the Social Insurance Law of the
People’s Republic of China and Regulation on the Administration of
Housing Provident Fund. We also offer our employees competitive
compensation package that they are eligible for a wide range of
additional benefits such as commercial health insurance, employee
birthday and festive benefits.

Building an elite team

When transforming Huifu Payment into a digital enterprise, we
regard talent development and institutional reform as its most
basic endogenous growth factor and recognize unrelenting efforts
in nurturing talents as a requisite for effective implementation
of Huifu’s digital strategy. Apart from encouraging employee
innovation, we are committed to developing self-motivated talents
who master multiple areas of expertise and T-shaped skills with a
passion for continuous learning. In 2019, Huifu has provided training
to a total of 6,416 employees, with 13,672 training hours. Our
training covers all new employee training, leadership training and
position training, both online and offline.

During the reporting period, we expanded and optimized the existing
policies and programs on employee development by reference to the
employee training conducted and the feedback collected during the
prior year. During the reporting period, our “Elite Training Camp”
program won the “2018 CEIBS TOP20 Digital Learning: Best Online
Mini-MBA Projects. To keep up this momentum, we have rolled out
Phrase Il of the “Huicai Elite Training Camp” program after having
performed a far-reaching upgrade.
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Phase Il of the “Elite Training Camp” Program

During the reporting period, we have officially launched Phrase
Il of our “Huicai Elite Training Camp” program with 12 online
learning modules, face-to-face courses featuring 3 major topics,
and tutorial classes on AL (action learning). Leveraging on the
abundant course materials provided by the business school in
its online platform, the program contributes to construct the
underlying logic of business world through online teaching in
form of TED Talks by celebrities. We have played an active role
in guiding strategic and logical thinking in the digital age to
incorporate our development beliefs of reciprocal growth and
change and innovation into the digital leadership workshop.
Eventually, we will redesign the actual scenarios encountered
by the Company during its journey of digital transformation
into practical assignments of action learning, through which
our learners can cultivate and sharpen their thinking skills with
stronger mobility when resolving problems.

Caring for Our People

Huifu Payment is always committed to building a friendly and
harmonious working environment for our employees. In 2019, we
have organized a series of diversified employee activities, including
the Women’s Day, Programmer’s Day, Family Day and Annual
Meeting, with a view to enriching the lives of our employees.
Through these efforts, we seek to demonstrate our care for
employees, thereby enhancing the sense of corporate belonging of
each and every Huifu folks.

“Tech Play 2019” Event

On 23 March 2019, we launched the grand closing forum cum
awards ceremony of “Taike Play 2019”. With its overall media
efforts highlighting the keywords of “digitization, innovation,
technology, All-in, openness, and modernization”, the “Taike
Play 2019"” event smoothly went through every stage from pre-
event, event to post-event under its omni-channel coverage. The
event delivered 35 roadshows on technology and innovation fields
and launched 12 sharing sessions on digital topics, together with
nearly 10 internal and external sharing given by popular celebrities
and 13 grand awards, participated by more than 6,000 individuals
in total. Ultimately, we aim to further promote the implementation
of our Company’s digital strategy by communicating its
technological innovation ideas and digital strategy.
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“Women’s Day” Event

On 8 March 2019, Huifu Payment launched the “Modern
Women's Day”, a celebration event characterized by four
sessions: cartoon characters, latte art, leather handicrafts, and
gift distribution. On that day, not only did we invite comic master
for portrait drawing, but also did we invite barista to give a latte
art class. In addition to the delicate leather handicrafts made by
themselves, each female employee also received an exquisite gift
filled with love and care from the Company.

“Family Day” Event

On 12 July 2019, Huifu Payment launched the “Family Day” event,
which was divided into three major parts, namely the “Smart Kids
Drawing Competition”, product pop-up experience, and game
experience, together with four major experience areas featuring
the basic needs of clothing, food, shelter and transportation.
Huifu Payment showed its products and business to the families
of employees from a spectrum of dimensions by setting up
a number of exhibition areas, including digital presentation,
smart canteen, intelligent aesthetics, garbage sorting, overseas
procurement and Huiai Charity Bazaar. Apart from facilitating
a deeper understanding of the Company among the families of
our employees, the “Family Day Event” also served as a platform
allowing effective and bilateral communication between the
Company and the families of the employees.

Upholding the people-oriented principle, Huifu Payment keeps up
its unflagging efforts in reinforcing the policies and measures of
occupational health and safety management to create a healthy and
safe working environment for our employees. During the reporting
period, Huifu Payment did not have any work-related injuries.

During the reporting period, in pursuit of a better working
environment for our employee along with a continuously safe,
effective and cost-efficient operation of facilities and equipment in
the office building, Huifu Payment has carried out building inspection
and commissioned a professional team to have a thorough check on
the overall operation performance of its headquarters building to
assess and investigate if there is any potential safety hazard hidden in
the workplace. It has also repaired and replaced related facilities and
equipment to ensure a safe and comfortable working environment
for our employees. On top of these, we have proactively carried out
“11.9 Fire Safety Training” to help raise the fire safety awareness
among all employees, which in turn can strengthen their ability
to escape and self-rescue in emergency situations as well as their
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resilience and response to emergencies. Will all these efforts, we
are able to reduce hidden dangers to guarantee a safe and orderly
working environment.

During the reporting period, we have introduced face recognition
technology which allows senseless punch in/out and smart QR
code generation for visitors to further strengthen the intelligent
security management of our operating sites. While guaranteeing
a higher level of security, we have also created a stronger sense
of technology in the office building. Specifically, we have installed
a face recognition machine in the office space along with a facial
recognition gate set up in the lobby. These devices allow us to
ramp up the Company’s security management efficiency and
ensure public safety through the regulation of access authority
and effective identification of staff category with a standardized
system of attendance. Apart from these, we have formulated Huifu
Payment Headquarters Building Administrative System — Security
Management (Revised) in support of the use of facial recognition
assess control system to further optimize our security management
system.

MUTUAL GROWTH POWERED BY
INTELLIGENCE

Huifu Payment has continued to give full play to its competitive
edges as a leading industry player to promote cooperation between
upstream and downstream supply chains and thus to foster a healthy
development of the industry. In the meantime, adhering to the belief
of “social contribution, our top priority”, Huifu Payment has taken
the initiates to seek cooperation with the community and played an
active role in social construction and environmental protection to
fulfil its social responsibility as a corporate citizen.

Enabling by Digital Technology

In 2019, our continuous capitalization on the achievement from
digital transformation has helped deliver additional value-added
services and gains to more SME and micro enterprise clients in
support of their digital transformation and upgrade through our
quality digital technological products and technical. Under active
enabling of consumer healthcare, we opened up the flows of data
and funds in the healthcare industry scenario, which helped create a
channel between consumer healthcare institutions and customers for
smoother communication. We also supported industrial finance by
providing efficient settlement services upon receipt of funds to speed
up their capital turnover through the provision of comprehensive
payment and settlement solutions. Besides, we actively participated
in the technological enabling of the traditional education industry,

BREEREBESMHTAOEELRE
RERRBELR2HF o
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through which education institutions can accelerate their process
of informatization and swiftly and agilely achieve a closed-loop
management of funds driven by payment technology. We also
supported SMEs and micro enterprises to realize smart operation
with digital technology by tailoring smart retail solutions for them.

Honggiao Development Group Intelligent Terminal Project

On 19 July 2019, Huifu Payment announced that it had
formally reached strategic cooperation with Shanghai Honggiao
Development Group Investment Co., Ltd., under which Zhihui
Guanjia’ (Smart Butler), a comprehensive payment solution
developed by Huifu Payment, would enable the business partners
of Honggiao Development Group by introducing intelligence
cashier and management equipment to over 2,000 service stations
operated by Shandong Hi-Speed. It also offered a variety of
diversified and intelligent services to commuter vehicles including
aggregation payment and member marketing with an ultimate
goal to hasten the update of comprehensive services provided in
“Smart Service Station”.

Collaboration Drives Reciprocal Growth

Huifu Payment values cooperation with business partners, as
evidenced by its active engagement in industry associations and its
untiring support to these associations in promoting communication
and exchange and standards-based reform among industry peers to
drive the development and improvement of the industry standards.
At the same time, Huifu payment has proactively kicked off various
cooperation projects with education institutions in support of lifting
the R&D capability in the field of FinTech. In 2019, Huifu Payment
actively participated in industry events and took an active role in
fostering collaborative development of the industry through the
cooperation with a number of education institutions.

As of 31 December 2019, Huifu Payment has been principally
engaging in the following industry associations, industry events and
cooperation with education institutions.
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Industry Association

TXiHE

N
/A ¥

R &

Payment and Clearing Association of China

FEXEEGE

Internet Society of China

B

National Internet Finance Association of China
REEBECRITERS
Association of Shanghai Internet Financial Industry
EETMERBERITERE

Shanghai E-commerce Association

LEMEFEBITEHS

Shanghai Software Industry Association

LETEHTERE

Shanghai Information Service Association
EEmEERBITEGS

Shanghai Producer Services Promotion Association

August 2019

201948 A

September 2019

201949 A

‘E‘u;u}

T AEEMERBERE

Name of Event

EEEE

World Artificial Intelligence
Conference 2019

2019 F R AT HERE

The 21st session of China
International Industry Fair-
Quiality and Innovation Forum
21 ETHBERIXEEeES
Bl¥amig

ClO Meeting

CIO(ERERE)RE

Huifu Payment Limited SCS R T AR AT

Position held
EERL
Executive Director Unit
EIRE B
Director Unit
R
Director Unit
BESBA

Vice President Unit
BlgREM

Vice President Unit
BlgREM

Vice President Unit
BlgREM

Vice President Unit
BleREN

Vice President Unit

BleREBi

Event Summary

EBME

We participated in three major sessions, which
include releasing innovative achievements,
signing a strategic cooperation agreement with
School of Data Science, Fudan University and
delivering keynote address on Al TALK
HBIFKRER EERZERABBEZREKS
EEL R AI TALK =35 S 2 HEE)

Huifu Payment attended and gave a keynote
address

LR TR R EEEH
Huifu Payment was invited to join the CIO event

and announced its enhanced products

LR T R332 00 CI0 /& Bl 2810 1 AR E
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Name of Event

EE AR

Event Summary

EBHE

November 2019

20194 11 A

December 2019

2019412 A

138 Huifu Payment Limited ;L X TARAF

2019
for International Cooperation of

“Belt and Road” Forum

Information Industry

2019[ — & —
e g R IE

“17+1" Financial Technology

BIEEREXBRA

Conference (Fintech Inn)

[17+1] & B & & K & (Fintech

Inn)

The 3rd IAQ Quality Forum &
13th Shanghai International
Symposium on Quality
FEo-EHRAEEREEE =/
FERRE SRS

The 13th Shanghai Financial
Services Fair

BERRBEREE

Bk eERE

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 #Eik&E

Zhou Ye, Chairman of Huifu Payment, attended
the ceremony that marked the establishment
of “Belt and Road” Information Industry
Cooperative Development Alliance and gave a
keynote address
CRRTEAEEER2HE T —KIGEEES
TR R BER & - WEREEEH

Huifu Payment joined the round table discussion
centering on the theme of “Global Payments
2.0"

LR RT2m=EE ARN2 KX 2.0(Global
Payments 2.0) |[E| =515

Huifu Payment attended and gave a keynote
address

LR THELHERE B

Huifu Payment set up an exhibition booth to
demonstrate how to use payment technology
to promote the digital upgrade of the real
economy, supported government governance
and market supervision, enabled small
and micro enterprises and industry leading
enterprises to reduce their costs while improving
efficiency and quality

CRATHEZREZ  BRTRNAEERS AR - B
HEBLCHES (AR - B BT AR ET S
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Cooperating Details
BERE

The parties formally signed a memorandum of strategic cooperation
to jointly establish a new lab for FinTech innovation to deliver the

Cooperative Institutes

BERR

School of Data Science, Fudan University

results of scientific research and nurture financial talents who master
multiple areas of expertise

EHEARITEBEERTE BB e RaHERE - 85
AR &N - BRBESMESEAS

As the teaching site of Shanghai National Accounting Institute, we
have hosted a total of 11 groups with 510 representatives from the
National Accounting Institute in 2019. During their visits, we briefed
the representatives on the business development conditions of Huifu
Payment and showcased our achievements in the fields of technology
and innovation

R EBBERSFT 2R EEM - 2019F 25 118K - #£510
ARBREABHEAKRERG N THRLNRTOEBERER - &
A RIRHRBIRTAC R

Shanghai National Accounting Institute

LBBERE Bk

EREERRE
W2013FLHRTEE IHEETHEEMNE KX
TERG  BRA-EREAZ[ERE BT A2

SRR X

Radiating Our Love and Care
Our unswerving commitments to the charitable belief of “Know love,
gather love and empower dreams” can be traced back to the year

of 2013 when Huifu Payment made its first move under the social
responsibility project, “Huiai”. Adhering to this belief, our Huifu folks
have been devoting themselves to contributing to the society with
love and care to fulfill the social responsibities and obligations in our
own way.

Our Huiai Charity Action has been proactively launched under the
overarching theme of education support. In 2019, our volunteers
have followed the Company’s senior management and walked into
the rural regions in Jiangxi and Yunnan to visit left-behind children
and give love and help. During the reporting period, the total
volunteer hours of Huiai Charity Action reached 232 hours, and
the cumulative donations of charity actions amounted to RMB155
thousand.

Huifu Payment Limited SCS R T AR AT

BEEE INAFEER  HES2BLNANER G
g REHE BEMANSAERTLEMRMESE
BB EMER

HPRHABEDHERIH  BEAREE AR
20195 HMNEBREELRSENHTETH
HITIARER REMILENETRESSRERE
Bl MEAAN EELARTHNEREZDRARH
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o
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2019 Huiai Charity Action

In support of the Xuhui Government’s call for taking targeted
measures in poverty alleviation under the initiatives of ‘Hundred
Enterprises Help Hundred Villages’, our volunteers have walked
into the Dulubao Village Primary School in the Honghe Prefecture
of the Yuanyang County of the Yunnan Province and the
Chengyuan Primary School in Xiangxi in October and November
of 2019, and initiated heartwarming charity events, such as
donations, teaching support, and visiting poverty-stricken students
and their families. We also provided items such as campus radio
and sports equipment, teaching aids and tools, books, stationeries
and laptops for the local teachers. Walking into the classroom and
giving spectacular classes on English, fun Math and Physics DIY for
the local students, our volunteers were also dedicated to visit the
underprivileged students and their families, and provided them
with necessities such as food, oil, rice and portable wardrobes.
After this field visit, we have also mapped out the next stage
of our assistance plan in light of the plight of these students in
daily life and schooling, hoping to radiate all of our love to the
community.

Battling Coronavirus with Good Deeds and Endless Love

Following the outbreak of COVID-19 in China in 2020, Huifu
Payment cares about the frontline of battling coronavirus. Huifu
Payment has made a donation of RMB5.2 million in total to
Shanghai Charity Foundation as special funds for batting the
epidemic. The donation will be dedicated to help the government
and medical institutions to provide medical supplies and
financial support to the frontline, so as to help the community
to fight against, prevent and control the outbreak of COVID-19.
Leveraging on its advantages on payment tech, Huifu Payment has
also provided free and highly efficient eco-payment channels for
all kinds of charity organizations and bodies for raising donations,
which has helped charity and fundraising campaigns to be
launched conveniently in a simple, fast and efficient way.
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Green Workplace

Despite that the business activities of Huifu Payment do not have
any material impact on the environment and natural resources,
we remain in strict compliance with laws and regulations on
environment and energy including the Environmental Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China to advocate eco-friendly operation
in pursuit of environmental sustainability. Not only did we align
the design and construction of our office building with the LEED
standards, we also formulated Huifu Payment Headquarters Building
Administrative System and Property Management Handbook 1.0 to
guide and encourage all employee to conserve water and electricity
and minimize waste generation and emission. In 2019, we strictly
regulated the electricity consumption by ongoing implementation
of measures for energy conservation and emission reduction, for
examples, monitoring the use of air conditioning, switching over
to LED lights and controlling the duration of lighting. Meanwhile,
we actively promoted paperless office where we also intensified
the management of water consumption and the renovation woks
for water conservation purpose. During the reporting period, we
minimized the waste of water resources in the office building by
installing the latest model of water conservation equipment and
stepping up inspection and maintenance efforts. Alongside the
loop water system of landscape pool in our office building, we
reused water for landscape irrigation to reduce the use of piped
water. During the reporting period, the water consumption of Huifu
Payment decreased by approximately 21% compared to the prior
year, of which the water consumption of the Shanghai headquarters
building decreased by approximately 30%.

“One Hour Lights Out” Campaign

In 2019, we organized and launched “One Hour Lights Out”,
a campaign based on the theme of “Change the future world
by today’s energy conservation”. Accordingly, Huifu Payment
switched off the lights of its headquarters building for one hour
every afternoon from 12:00 to 13:00, to minimize unnecessary
use of electricity from lighting while engaging every employee to
carry out low-carbon environmental protection.

Huifu Payment Limited SCA X THR AR
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During the reporting period, to echo Shanghai Municipality's
for garbage sorting and support the development of environmental
business, we strictly adhered to relevant requirements such as
Shanghai Household Waste Management Regulation and actively
popularized the knowledge of garbage sorting with our garbage
sorting efforts in full swing in June 2019. Specifically, we made
use of offline and online channels to extend our publicity reach
and guidance to facilitate the effective implementation of garbage
sorting. At the same time, by setting up drop-off sites on each
floor and through various other means such as putting up posters,
distributing garbage sorting guideline, and holding stamp collecting
activities for proper waste disposal, we aimed to popularize garbage
sorting knowledge among employees and encourage them to carry
out garbage sorting. On top of these efforts, we also provided
online learning materials of garbage sorting and put our employees’
garbage sorting knowledge to the test. During the reporting period,
nearly a thousand employees in total have participated in the online
knowledge test on garbage sorting, with nearly 200 employees
participated in the offline stamp collecting activities for proper waste
disposal and full implementation of garbage sorting.
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2017-2019 Key Performance Indicators 2017-2019 FRAREM
Key Performance Indicator  Unit Data of 2017 Data of 2018 Data of 2019

HRENRER By 2017 F2iE 2018 FRUE 2019 F8iE

A Environmental

AIRIF
A1.1 Types of emissions and respective emissions data
A1 R EE R B REE
Sewage discharge Cubic meter 16,434 27,337 21,549
K E SR
Sulphur oxides (SO,) from Gram 47.54 65.18 72.31
gasoline
/‘L/EEE )\L%1t%(sox) F‘E
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
A2 RERBAHREREE
Direct emissions (Scope 1) Ton of carbon 7.14 9.78 1.2
dioxide
equivalent
- B (EE—) M-Stk =
A1 Emissions
A1EERY Indirect emissions (Scope 2) Ton of carbon 1,453.32 2,003.56 2,743.90
dioxide
equivalent
R (BE ) W LiREE
Total greenhouse gas Ton of carbon 1,460.45 2,013.34 2,755.12
emissions’ dioxide
equivalent
ERBBHN “EtiREE
Inten5|ty of greenhouse gas Ton of carbon 0.85 0.62 0.75
emissions dioxide
equivalent/
revenue in RMB
million
mERBHNTE M-Stk E
/S BBTRA
¢ Scope 1 greenhouse gas are mainly generated by the use of unleaded N HEAZER/BRFZRERENTHNER  @E R
gasoline and Scope 2 greenhouse gas are mainly generated by the use of EREEIZRARENNER  REREZEEREGHG
electricity. The accounting of greenhouse gas is conducted in accordance to Protocol CAEREZHEER)

The GHG Protocol (The Greenhouse Gas Protocol)
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Key Performance Indicator  Unit Data of 2017 Data of 2018 Data of 2019

BRENIEE B 2017 £ €& 2018 £ &1 2019 £
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity

A3 FIEERERERYBEREE

Waste ink Kg 125 156 163
% 22 Tr
Per capita waste ink Kg/person 0.13 0.14 0.15
. NIERRESE F=/A
A1 Emissions . .
A1 R A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity
AMAFTEEBEREYHRBREE
Domestic and office waste’ Ton 511 639 545
SR RPFASIR U7
Per capita domestic and office  Ton/person 0.54 0.56 0.50
waste
AEERMRAREES /A
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity
A2 I REREPNERR REEERAREREE
Direct energy — use of Liter 3,234.68 4,434.22 4,918.92
unleaded gasoline
BEERR — EimUmtRAE A
Indirect energy — power kWh 2,065,839 2,847,993 3,898,794
consumption
MR — HEE FRE
Total energy consumption Million kWh 2,093.92 2,886.48 3,941.49
B E BERK
Density of energy Million kWh/ 1.21 0.89 1.07
A2 Use of consumption revenue in RMB
Resources’ million
A2 R 6 A S - s
HREA AR E BERN/E8
THA
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity
A2.2 BEKEREE
Total water consumption’ Cubic meter 18,260 30,374 23,944
BRKE’ A
Per capita water consumption  Ton/person 19.36 26.60 22.17
ABFEKE W,/ A
Note: 2019 Environmental data covers all operational locations of Huifu Payment
i 2019 FRBABA DN R TMAEESE
° Domestic and office waste include dry waste (396 tons), wet waste (147 5 HE R A B3R B HE &y R (396 WA ) ~ R By k(147
tons) and recyclable waste (2 tons) WE) « A B Uy 3% (2 WE)
° The Company mainly provides intangible products and services, and does not 6 NFETERHEERESERYE - 5 REK GETE e
involve packaging materials used for finished products MR
’ All water used comes from municipal water and there is no issue in sourcing 7 KRR B TR AK - ESREUE A KRR E
water
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Key Performance Indicator  Unit Data of 2017 Data of 2018 Data of 2019
HRENEE Efy 2017 £H# 2018 £ &I 2019 £ €
B Social
Bit®
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region
B1.1 #&145 - EEEE FRANREEHINESLY
Total number of employees Person 943 1,142 1,080
ZEEE A A
By gender
gl o
Male Person 529 672 650
St A
Female Person 414 470 430
it A
By age
RERES
Below 30 years of age (30 Person 237 464 290
years of age exclusive)
30U T (RE305%) A
30-50 years of age Person 695 668 780
30-50 5% A
B1 Employment Above 50 years of age (50 Person "1 10 10
B1EE years of age exclusive)
5038 £ (T2 505%) A
By rank
BRERE S
Senior management Person 24 25 37
BRERAB A
Middle management Person 134 139 125
HREEAR A
General staff Person 785 978 918
TRET A
By function
RBEEERE S
R&D Person 347 479 582
e A
Sales and marketing Person 173 222 124
HEREH A
Management® Person 423 441 374
G A
8 Management includes operations, legal, compliance and risk management,  ® BEEBEEES EE AREKERERE  BERITH

finance and administration
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Key Performance Indicator  Unit Data of 2017 Data of 2018 Data of 2019

BRENIEE B 2017 £ €& 2018 £ &1 2019 £
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region
B1.2 #&it5 - EEEE  FRANREEHINEERKLE

Overall turnover rate of % 14.53 11.98 9.21
employees

BEITERBRAX

by gender

g eIk o

Male % 12.91 11.26 9.54
St

Female % 16.54 13.08 8.70
o

By age

RERED

Below 30 years of age (30 % 18.15 15.89 10.49
years of age exclusive)

30A T (T2 305%)

30-50 years of age % 13.43 10.37 8.85
30-50 5%

Above 50 years of age (50 % 0 0 0
years of age exclusive)

50N L (T E505%)

By rank

ZRRE D

Senior management % 11.11 11.11 10.80
BREBAR

Middle management % 3.85 0 6.30
RRERAE

General staff % 15.49 12.40 9.50
ERET
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Key Performance Indicator  Unit Data of 2017 Data of 2018 Data of 2019

BRENER By 2017 FEE 2018 FHE 2019 FHE

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities

B2 1EIEBEMETHABRLE

Number of work-related Person 0 0 0
fatalities
EAITEEEMBTHRIAR A
B2 Health and Rate of work-related fatalities % 0 0 0
Safety A TERIEMLTaL
B2 @EEZ2 B2.2 Lost days due to work injury
B22 RIEBEATIHEAH
Number of injury accidents Case 1 1 0
RCELS 6 1
Lost days due to work injury’  Day 44 93 10
RIGERTIERSE’ X

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category

B3.1 M FIREESERE I ZIREET I

Total number of employees Person-time 1,239 1,382 6,416
trained
BRIANR AR
by gender
R B D
Male Person-time 694 815 3,788
B3 Development s AR
and Training Female Person-time 545 567 2,628
B3 t/® S peq s AR
By rank
BRARE S
Senior management Person-time 15 13 1
BREBAER AR
Middle management Person-time 447 246 1,972
HREBAE AR
General staff Person-time 777 1,123 4,433
TEET AR
? In 2019, 10 lost days due to work injury were recorded because of the injury ~ ° 2019F M 10 KETHBIBRAIERHEAN2018FMT
accidents that took place in 2018 GEHES
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Key Performance Indicator  Unit Data of 2017 Data of 2018 Data of 2019

BRENIEE B 2017 £ €& 2018 £ &1 2019 £
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category

B3.2 ZMAIREESERNE D BEREERAZ N FHRHY

Total average training hours Hour/person-time ~ 15.68 19.36 2.13
BTN ANV NN
by gender
RER 8D
Male Hour/person-time  15.68 19.37 2.13
Bt AN VPN
B3 Deve:lo.pment Female Hour/person 15.68 19.34 2.12
and Training
B3 B¢ R gy it UNSYINA
By rank
BRRE S
Senior management Hour/person-time  18.00 51.00 101.18
BREEAE INSYONN
Middle management Hour/person-time ~ 25.88 15.03 4.78
HREEAE AN YPNN
General staff Hour/person-time  9.77 19.94 0.71
LmET B NIR
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region
B5.1 R ERI S HERHE
Number of equipment / 1 1 2
suppliers in Eastern China
ERRRBHERH 18
Number of equipment / 4 4 5
suppliers in Southern China
B5 Supply Chain EHiERBHRER &
Management Number of equipment / 1 1 1
B5 ftEMER suppliers in Central China
ZErhiE RiBHERH 1
Number of equipment / 0 1 1
suppliers in Northern China
bt R A R P 2K 1
Number of payment channel  / 28 29 2
suppliers
XRBHERE &
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE g kE8wE

Key Performance Indicator  Unit Data of 2017 Data of 2018 Data of 2019

BRENER By 2017 FEE 2018 FHE 2019 FHE

B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received

B6.2 HEBNERMBRENRFHRE

Number of products and Case 553 165 311
B6 Product service related complaints
Responsibility received'’
B6 EmETE REBRERNRED 1
&R
Complaint response rate % 100 100 100
RFREE %
B7.1 Number of concluded  Case 0 0 0

legal cases regarding

corrupt practices brought

against the issuer or its

employees during the

reporting period

B7.1 RERARHBTAR
HESRHIESEENESH

EAESL: ) 42

B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area

B8.2 EE X HBEAER

B7 Anti-corruption™
B7 REF"

. Donation under the Huiai RMBO0'000 19.20 14.68 15.50
B8 Community Charity Action
Investment S 4 B s —
B8 HERE EENRTIRESRE AREET
Volunteer hours under the Hour / / 232
Huiai Charity Action
EENm{TERRE N

" MR IRER AT ET AT — S B MR - 12017

Following the further improvement and standardization of the coverage of

complaint statistics, the data of 2017 and 2018 have been revised N 2018 FMERIEITTIEE
" Since anti-extortion is not a material issue of Huifu Payment, it was not " ARANRHRIFARLNRATHNEEZE  WARERSED
disclosed in the report HITHRE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

M % B A &

s

Ernst & Young ZXE RS AT
EY 22/F, CITIC Tower EBPRIR
ﬁj‘ 1 Tim Mei Avenue WEE 1
Central, Hong Kong RERE 22 18

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the shareholders of Huifu Payment Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Huifu
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 157 to 287, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
T8 N 1% BUEM

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that,
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated

in our professional

financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter

below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

section of our report, including in relation to these matters.

Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures

designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of

our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

REESEE
FRBAEFEEREESHERHE
ﬁ%ﬁ&m

BEBER - TXHMBHE
HHAA °

BECBUIARSEHAN I Tt 45 & HREK B &
%W“E—%% LINB S RZEEENEE - A

BENEFRRATREHESHE AR
BEENE

I

%Eﬁﬁa AR Rt [ B 7Y A 1 AR AT RO AR T o
FAEF(BEAEE T EEMATHER) N
EEMBEREMBHRROBABELER TRE -

YA
MEAMBREANETARTHRAESEE - ¥
YA B REEITES BRIV
ERBEAREER  BTSUTERZSEEEM
EWEHNAEES S

Key audit matter

RRETSHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEENENARERRETEAE

Provision for receivable on behalf of clients

REEFERF R E R

As at 31 December 2019, the balance of receivable on behalf
of clients amounted to RMB5,520 million and the provision for
impairment amounted to RMB249 million. The estimated amount
of expected credit losses on receivable on behalf of clients involved
management’s significant judgement and estimation, such as the
existence of disputes, historical payment record, forward-looking
factors and any other available information that may impact the
amount of expected credit losses. Therefore, we identified this as a
key audit matter.

The accounting policies and disclosures of receivable on behalf
of clients are included in notes 2.5, 3 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

M2019F 12 A31H - RREFEBMNFBEBAARESS208EBTK
BEBREBEAARE 24058 - REREFEPEKMZIENTBHEABX
TS ES R EEEBHNERAN G  AIMEEELAS - BAN
RELE - BIEA X R A e BRI EAIBAN S BN T EMA 5]
Bo Bt - BERZ BBARETEE -

REBFRINFES HEHERRERNGS
%24 -

s EmRME2.5 3

We checked the accuracy of the ageing and assessed
the appropriateness of assumptions used, including
the existence of disputes, historical payment record,
historical credit loss experience and forward-looking
factors. We obtained and re-tested the historical
observed default rates prepared by management.

In assessing the overall provision for impairment,
we considered the consistency of management’s
application of the policy for recognising provisions
with that of the prior year. We also assessed the
adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in the financial
statements.

EEREREELDEELRTEMARRELTAE £
BELRMY  BENKRELHE BEEHERERE
AIERE - BEEMEAFAHAEEENENBEERER
FR1SIEHE -

AHEBEBEREN  BEFEEEEERMABRRAE

go

REEELL—FEN IR
MEHROBEBELT R -

L EEER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
T N 1% BUEM

Key audit matter

BEETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBTNMEERREENSE

Fair value measurement of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

UAAEEFELGTARm )2 MEEZ AN EEE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss amounted to approximately RMB88 million.

The fair values of these financial assets were either within level
1, level 2 or level 3. Therefore, the adoption of the applicable
valuation methodology and the application of appropriate
assumptions in the valuation require significant management
judgements and estimates. Therefore, we identified this as a key
audit matter.

The accounting policies and disclosures of the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are included in notes 2.5, 18 and
38 to the consolidated financial statements.

MR20194F12 A318 -
ﬁ@ﬁﬁAE%%E%ﬁ

% /\/ ANVIN { {Eu‘l‘ijlu#)\%g E’] E

° /UHH

ZECREENAABEBRS 1M F2RHFE3IM - At - HFHE
RHEETDERNEETEREERRFEENEEEHEH RHER
FoE BEERZRERETEER -

UALBEFELTABENEREEZ @S
AN 2.5 18 %38 -

We obtained the agreements on these financial
assets and analysed their terms. We involved
our internal valuation experts to assess the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology and
assumptions used.

We evaluated the key assumptions including discount
rates, marketability interest information as well
as the underlying supporting documentation and
unobservable factors, such as comparable company
multiples, credit spread, the risk-free rate and
liquidity spread.

EEMEREEREENDERDITEGR - BFE
IEKAREESERF GG TDERTABRRELAE -

BEEFHEIERR  BRAEET HHEEERER
BRMEA B XEL N BRAR (A E LB AR
BE - FEEEZ  BARNEXEAPEREE) -

Share-based payments

BR7Z

The Group operates several employee stock ownership plans and
a share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. The share-based compensation costs
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
RMB60 million.

The accounting policies and disclosures of employee stock
ownership plans are included in notes 2.5, 3 and 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EEERLE LB THBRTE RO EETEURY B£ELEE
Fﬁ%sﬁmAQ%%ﬁ%kM@@ﬂéﬁ REZE 2019412 A 31
AIEFE  BRAUBRNDAEROFHXKAEARBK0EET -

BTHBRABZ @R R ESNGE M EIRKRME2.5 3K32 -

We evaluated the competence, capabilities,
objectivity and independence of the external valuer
and assessed the assumptions, methodologies
and parameters adopted in the valuation with the
assistance of our internal valuation specialists.

We tested the new share award scheme in the year
by checking that it was appropriately authorised,
consistent with scheme plans, classified correctly as
equity or cash settled and used the correct share
price.

FENEIMBEEMNER  £h TEBERBILE
B YEABEEERBE THEGEMARSR 7
ERBE

ERFRBBERTRD BB 2
%‘ﬁaﬁ%‘ﬁﬁ“ﬁﬁuhﬁiﬁ
FIEREH B IABR S A 2Z2E -

\ gLEEITX

mEA R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
T8 N 1% BUEM

Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the

consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
T N 1% BUEM

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
T8 N 1% BUEM

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent

consolidated financial statements,

the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

. E%%%Fﬁ%??&%@ﬁ% e E R 4
C WIRBFSHERRE RERSHFER
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BEEERBEEENRENBREREE - WRE
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings,
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence B8
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and X ({isfi#

where applicable, related safeguards.

including any significant deficiencies in internal

BEREAHRERR BREESFREHHREN G
A BB Bl O (L (T B AR
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VHNBEBERER  YRREEEMEARE
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BREBQERNEANS EFSECWHLE
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit BEBHAEGAMBBREANBAISRAETE  EMEK
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and [ EHETE - EEN KB RGP A ZES
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our I - BRIBERIER T AT H EH EBELE AMK
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 5 @ siERIGERMNBER T EEAEBHNRES
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we REFAEBESEMEXKNEEREESHBAHE
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report £HAZFZE  EZEF SIS BE R FEREH
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably  JE@:ZZE18 -
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent — A X H RSN ETER B A AMIKE -
auditor’s report is SIU FUNG TERENCE HO.

Ernst & Young ZXRETHAIEH R
Certified Public Accountants EEETED

Hong Kong e

25 March 2020 202043 A 25H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTH‘ER‘COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeEakAMEEBa R

Year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F 12 A31HILEE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A3MBHLLEE

2019 2018
2019 % 2018 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P 5 AR¥F T ARETTT
Revenue A 5 3,683,514 3,246,493
Cost of sales $H & AN (2,698,145) (2,357,014)
GROSS PROFIT EA 985,369 889,479
Other income and gains H g A R iz 5 29,734 32,513
Finance income [ E 3PN 30,646 33,355
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HRAX (200,591) (132,541)
Administrative expenses THRAX (260,288) (294,078)
Research and development expenses EE R X (305,366) (231,704)
Other expenses H 7 (15,347) (91,467)
Finance costs A& AN 8 (18,866) (24,451)
Share of profits of associates fﬁﬁﬂé‘ﬁ%’&ﬁf'ﬁfﬂ 17 239 3,051
Net gains on financial assets at fair thf‘ifﬁﬁzi[;ﬁr?\?é
value through profit or loss mHEmEE W TR 3,927 4,410
PROFIT BEFORE TAX Bl AT R 6 249,457 188,567
Income tax expense Fre i X 11 (6,902) (14,001)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REFEEFE 242,555 174,566
Attributable to: NEIETTREAE
Owners of the parent ISYNEIE ¥ PN 248,995 176,065
Non-controlling interests e (6,440) (1,499)
242,555 174,566
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BATEEER
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BEAELEBERER
THE PARENT 13
Basic oW
— For profit for the year — REEFEFH RMB AR#0.20;t RMBAR¥0.167T

Diluted
— For profit for the year

— REREHE

RMB AR¥0.19 T

RMB AR 0.16 70
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SeRaMEMEE NS X

Year ended 31 December 2019 #Z 20195 12 B3t HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31HLFE

2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AKEEFHE 242,555 174,566
Other comprehensive income that may R E & BRI AT L EH
be reclassified to profit or loss in DEEBmHM
subsequent periods: EHEE
Exchange differences on translation BREFINEBZ
of foreign operations EH =% 19,406 68,215
Net other comprehensive income that HEHIRATEEE
may be reclassified to profit or loss PEEBHEZHM
in subsequent periods 2HWRFE 19,406 68,215
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR HRHMEZEUWE
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX MNBRBIE 19,406 68,215
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR HRZMHWFHELEE -
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX HIBRBE 261,961 242,781
Attributable to: IO TT R
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZF PN 268,401 244,280
Non-controlling interests R (6,440) (1,499
261,961 242,781
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ma BRI R

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

31 December

128 31H
2019 2018
2019 % 20184
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
P 3T ARMT T AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB REE 14 672,859 864,716
Right-of-use assets ERAEERE 19 12,935 —
Goodwill mHa 15 — —
Other intangible assets EfhEpEE 16 32,586 33,830
Investments in associates B &R R E 17 54,880 24,641
Financial assets at fair value through AR EEFTELFT AR
profit or loss =S MEE 18 23,600 23,600
Deferred tax assets BEETIBEE 20 15,358 8,250
Total non-current assets FREBEEMLE 812,218 955,037
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 21 395 392
Contract assets BHEE 22 92,686 18,688
Factoring assets REEE 23 31,235 16,722
Due from related companies JIE Us BA B N B FROR 36 291 59
Prepayments, deposits and other TBITRIE « e R HAFE
receivables & 24 5,359,145 5,438,750
Tax recoverable GIRUEIRTR 3,661 11,469
Financial assets at fair value through AR BEFELFTAE
profit or loss =H & EE 18 63,940 219,410
Time deposits TEHITF K 25 219,749 —
Restricted cash REER 26 2,280,246 1,610,657
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEED 26 1,366,816 1,514,966
Total current assets MENEELE 9,418,164 8,831,113
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAEE
Trade payables B 5 e /I8 27 242,115 423,739
Contract liabilities EHaE 22 907 31,509
Other payables, deposits received and  EfERFHIE - B iL 4
accruals K FEETIEE 28 7,606,095 6,619,474
Advances from customers BEEK 29 4,543 3,165
Due to related companies JE <] B Bt A B 5RIR 36 11,538 6,282
Interest-bearing bank loans FTEBIRITER 30 168,547 535,141
Tax payable JE B 11 64 5
Lease liabilities within one year —FANHESE 19 6,985 —
Total current liabilities REBAERE 8,040,794 7,619,315
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
iR B BBk R

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

31 December

12A31H
2019 2018
2019 & 20184
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET T ARETF T
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,377,370 1,211,798
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEAEBERRBAR
LIABILITIES 2,189,588 2,166,835
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans FFEIRITER 30 120,591 182,138
Lease liabilities HERE 19 5,882 —
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 20 — 1,102
Total non-current liabilities kRBEBEERE 126,473 183,240
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,063,115 1,983,595
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the B AREA AEIG
parent =
Share capital N 31 101 101
Treasury shares EFRHD (220,627) (2,890)
Other reserves HE & 33 2,283,902 1,982,133
2,063,376 1,979,344
Non-controlling interests IR R (261) 4,251
TOTAL EQUITY R 2,063,115 1,983,595
Zhou Ye Jin Yuan
JE &R
Director Director
EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mE DR E R

Year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE 201912 B31 BIEEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SAREE ARG
Share  Statutory Non-
Share  Treasury  Capital  option  surplus Other  Retained controlling
capital  shares reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  profits* Total interests
EhE iEE&
ke EXRG ERER fifr  DRE* HfRE+ RENE it FEREE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR¥Tn ARMTL ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR AR¥TZ ARETR ARETR
Note 31 Note 33(a) Note 33(h)
B3t Bz 33(a) B 33(0)
As at 1 January 2019 R2019%1518 101 (2,890) 1459176 162,039 69,740 68,215 222,963 1,979,344 4,251 1,983,595
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FAZENELE - - - - — 19406 248995 268401  (6.440) 261,96
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W FFARIESR — - (358) = = = - (3582 (322)  (3.904)
Appropriations to statutory surplus reserve AT EFBRAES - - - - 40528 - (40528 = = =
Shares repurchased and cancelled ERRTERA - 2890 (29,641) - - - - (26751 - (26,751
Equity-settled share option arrangements  WEZEENBRERH = - - 19 - - - m19 - M1
Exercise of share options fIfERRE = — 12807 (2610) = = - 10197 - 10197
Share award scheme: RipErE
— value of employee services - EERKEE - - 39139 - - - - 39139 - 39139
— shares withheld for share award schemes — {3 B8t 8IR KA - (™) - - - - - (1) - ()
— exercising of awarded shares — fTfE Rk - 414 19 = = = = = = =
Capital contribution from a non-controlling ~ HEARFEARKE
shareholder of a subsidiary T - - (1,750) - - - - (1,750) 2,250 500
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F128318 101 (220,627) 1,474,025 180,558 110,268 87,621 431,430 2,063,376 (261) 2,063,115
Ambutab\e to owners of the parent
BAREE AR
Share Statutory Non-
Share  Treasury  Capital option ~ surplus Other  Retained controlling Total
capital shares  reserve”  reserve”  reserve’  reserve’  profits® Total  interests equity
BhE ks
B5  ERRD EAREE: R DER AbBRr REMEr Ait lER  EakE
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'0O0 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
Note 31 Note 33(a) Note 33(b)
31 F330) F330)
As at 1 January 2018 R018F1F1H — — 497074 91,256 42,881 — 73757 704,968 1259 706,227
Issuance of new shares Bt 101 — 1,369,568 - - - — 1,369,669 — 1,369,669
Total comprehensive income for the year EW%[&]W \iﬁﬁﬁ - - - - — B85 176065 244280 (1,499) 242781
Appropriations to statutory surplus reserve  HEZETRRLES - - - — 2689 — (26899 - - -
Shares repurchased and cancelled B RaE R - - (1408) - - - - (1408) - (1408)
Shares repurchased but not yet cancelled  EBIERZHR( - (289) - - - - (2,890) — (289
Equity-settled share option arrangements  WEAEENBRERH - - — 70800 - - — 70800 — 70800
Exercise of share options iR - - 70 (17) - - - 53 - 53
Dividends paid to the then shareholder X FEBREZRE - —  (404716) - - - (404 716) —  (404716)
Capital contribution from non-controlling ~ HBATEERRE
shareholders of a subsidiary hig - - (1412) - - - - (1412) 4,491 3,079
As at 31 December 2018 R018% 124318 101 (2890) 1459176 162,039 69,740 68,215 222963 1,979,344 4251 198359
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of — * ZERERERRZAVBHKARRABARE

RMB2,283,902,000 (2018: RMB1,982,133,000) in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

2,283,902,0007t(20184F : AR #1,982,133,000 7T )
RS HAb R -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEHTRER

Year ended 31 December 2019 EZE 2019412 A31 BILFE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018
20184
Notes RMB’000
s ARBF T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: LRI 249,457 188,567
Adjustments for RATRIERFE
Finance costs ELE=p %N 8 18,866 24,451
Share of profits of associates FE(REEE AR FE 17 (239) (3,051)
Finance income B RS URA (30,646) (33,355)
Investment income on financial BRIRE M EBA
investments 5 (16,672) (15,734)
Loss on disposal of items of property, EEBEWE - FE LR
plant and equipment HE 28 6,7 207 58,308
Depreciation of items of property, ME - BEREEER
plant and equipment e 6,14 228,109 249,128
Depreciation of right-of-use assets REEENE 6,19 6,425 —
Amortisation of other intangible E i A E
assets 6,16 8,535 8,451
Impairment of contract assets BHEERE 6,7,22 373 160
Impairment of factoring assets RIBEERE 6,7,23 75 84
Impairment of other receivables W SR IE RV E 6,7,24 8,798 17,784
Impairment of investments in REEE QAR 2R ERE
associates 6,7,17 = 12,709
Equity-settled share option expense LARE a1 45 ) BB IR
3 6 21,129 70,800
Share award scheme expense A& S B AT 81 R 2 6 39,139 —
Net gains on financial assets at fair AR BEGTELFA
value through profit or loss B SR E W
FEE (3,927) (4,410)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories HFEGEM R (3) 1,780
(Increase)/decrease in contract GHEEGEM), WD
assets (74,371) 2,440
Increase in factoring assets RIBE EE M (14,588) (16,806)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due JE U BA B N B RR
from related companies (Em),/E (155) 1,033
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERRIE - e R HEA
deposits and other receivables FEW R IER D
(3Zm) 73,847 (2,514,250)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash X HIZRE
($hn) SR (878,662) 1,827,966
(Decrease)/increase in trade B D ENFIA
payables CRid) /#En (146,391) 257,290
Decrease in contract liabilities aHaERL (30,602) (50,941)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due e R EE A 5] K08
to related companies #an, i) 5,256 (13,377)
Increase in other payables, deposits Hih e 3IE - B4R
received and accruals & R FERTIA R N 997,979 661,122
Increase/(decrease) in advances from B FEI, (D)
customers 1,378 (2,015)
Cash generated from operations EEMEERS 463,317 728,134
Interest received 2 IS 27,606 33,546
Interest paid ERHE (24,810) (18,718)
Tax paid [EENEEN (7,245) (23,513)
Net cash flows from operating RETHMBRERE
activities o] 458,868 719,449
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AR MNER

Year ended 31 December 2019 EZE 20194 12 A31 BHILEE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2018
20184
Notes RMB’000
P 5E ARBF T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Placement of time deposits with original FARZIHI HiB:B =187
maturity of over three months when H)E BRTE X
acquired (219,749) —
Investment income received HEWAFTSHRIE 21,058 16,357
Purchases of items of property, plant BEYYL  BERSE
and equipment 1HH (77,487) (617,463)
Purchases of other intangible assets BEEHEMEEEE (6,998) (2,756)
Investments in associates RN BI IR E (30,000) (30,494)
Acquisition of financial investments BEHBEE (1,911,708) (1,542,000)
Disposal of property, plant and BEMX  BE KRB
equipment 88 405
Disposal of financial investments BB BRE 2,066,719 1,385,200
Net cash flows used in investing REZEFTARERE
activities =] (158,077) (790,751)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEZHRL TR
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BTN TS RUA = 1,412,528
Exercise of share options 1TE e AR A 10,197 53
Share issue expenses B0 31T R 2 = (48,217)
Dividends paid to the then shareholder S FHERE 2K S = (404,716)
Capital contribution from non-controlling i & A & 3EIE AR T &
shareholders of a subsidiary 500 3,079
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Y& IF2 A 2 (3,904) —
Repayment of advances to management &2 A B{EE#K
personnel 36 — 332,618
Advances to a related company M—REEARELD
N 36 (77) —
Repayment of advances to related R A B EERN
companies 36 — 333,846
Repayment of advances to the then HEFRREBEARK
shareholder 36 — 605
Advances from related companies kNS EE 36 — 388,234
Repayment of advances from related etz NGIE BN
companies 36 — (879,923)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash ~ ZRHIB LR (3EMN) 209,073 (222,456)
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank FHERIT M EMERETE
and other borrowings A 132,000 1,471,918
Repayment of interest-bearing bank EEFTRRIT REAMERK
and other borrowings (560,141) (1,174,285)
Shares withheld for the share award B&An B2 @ ET B HAR 19
scheme (222,751) —
Payment on repurchase of shares EAE RN EN (26,751) (4,298)
Principal portion of lease payments HENT $%*B’ (6,493) —
Net cash flows (used in)/from BMEEE (FTA) B8
financing activities SRETFHE (468,347) 1,208,986
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER
Year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE 2019412 831 BIEEE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018
20184
Notes RMB’000
B 5T ARETIT
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH ReRBSEEWORD)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S EINEEE (167,556) 1,137,684
Cash and cash equivalents at FUBESRREZEY
beginning of year 1,514,966 304,736
Effect of foreign exchange rate ERF B FE
changes, net 19,406 72,546
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRBERBRLEEY
END OF YEAR 1,366,816 1,514,966
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReRBeEEWESR
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS DA
Cash and bank balances H& MIRTTA % 26 3,388,944 2,477,083
Non-pledged time deposits with original FAKRRZHE LR =&
maturity of less than three months AR R E BER
when acquired B 26 258,118 648,540
Less: Restricted cash B ZBRFIRE 26 (2,280,246) (1,610,657)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS HRABSRERMIES
STATED IN THE CONSOLIDATED LESEEY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 1,366,816 1,514,966
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % ¥R 3R M AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands. The registered address of the Company is
Cayman Corporate Centre, 27 Hospital Road, George Town,
Grand Cayman KY1-9008, Cayman Islands. The Company’s
shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) on 15

June 2018.

The Company is an investment holding company. During

the year, the subsidiaries now comprising the Group were

principally involved in payment services.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Name

&

PnR Network Technology
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.*

BRI ( L8 BERAR"

China PnR Co., Ltd.**
ENXTEROA

Shanghai Payment and Remittance
Data Service Co., Ltd.*
HEENSRREER AR

Nanjing Dechen Information
Technology Co., Ltd.**
BRERESEMERAR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

and business
FEMRYL/
RURERHH

People’s Republic
of China (“PRC")/
Mainland China
AR HFE
(TRELL), /R E R,

PRC/Mainland China
RERER

PRC/Mainland China
R/ R B,
PRC/Mainland China

P/ hE R

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
BERTLER/
H R A

USD79,500,000

79,500,000 %71

RMB100,100,000

AR% 100,100,000

RMB200,000,000

AR 200,000,0007T

RMB500,000

ARH500,0007T

NREHR
RRARR—FREREHETMAIHERA
7] o AR AIMEEM I & Cayman Corporate
Centre, 27 Hospital Road, George Town,
Grand Cayman KY1-9008, Cayman lIslands °
RARRHHR20184F 6 A 15 BEFBHE
SRAERAR(EBMRZM)ER LT -

RAFR—FIREZERAR - RAFE - R
HARAEENB AR E 22 B IR

FRMBLR2ER
ARFMEBMBATERIT -

Percentage of
equity attributable Principal
to the Company activities
ARH
EEEZED L TEXH
Direct Indirect
HiE iE
100% Investment holding
REER
100% Investment holding
REER
100% Third party payment
F=AxM
64.40% Technology development

Bipa %
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31 December 2019 2019412 8318

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
establishment registered equity attributable Principal
Name and business share capital to the Company activities
EmEL BERTLER ARH
8 EANES S E R EEEEI TEEH
Direct Indirect
¢ M
PnR JH Tech Co., Ltd.*** PRC/Mainland China RMB7,500,000 64.40% Technology development
LEEMRHERRMEERARF L/ hER ARH 7,500,000 7T LR
Shanghai Huihan Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100% Commercial factoring
Factoring Co., Ltd.**
LBEREERBERAR R/ RENE  AR¥%50,000,000 7 BERE
Shanghai Yifu Cloud Information PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100% Technology development
Technology Co., Ltd.**
LESNEESRRERRR R/ B AR 5,000,000 BipA g
Furen Network Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100%  Technology development
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.**
REBERH(LE)ERRA /B AR 5,000,0007 U
Huifu (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands USD50,000 100% Investment holding
RERBRES 50,0007 REER
Huifu (Hong Kong) Limited** Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% Investment holding
EE 10,000 % 7T REZR
Neway Fintech Global Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% Technology development
B 1AL SUITEE S
Winsor Technology Company Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% Technology development
Limited** Bk 10,0007 7T R pa g
Hadsund International Technology Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%  Technology development
Company Limited** 9 10,00057T Sk
Verde Fintech Limited™ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% Technology development
B 10,000 7T R
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Name

1

Shanghai Huihan Information
Technology Service Co., Ltd.**
FEEREERBERBEERAT

Shanghai Fuhui Network
Technology Co., Ltd.*
TEEBRRENERAR

Shanghai Huijin Network
Technology Co., Ltd.**
TERBRBRENBRAR

Shanghai Huilaimi Information
Technology Co., Ltd.***
HEERAEERMARAR
Shanghai Lingguan Information
Technology Co., Ltd.*
TEEREERIERAR

Haoran Co. Ltd

Wanzhi Co. Ltd

%

(CONTI

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

and business
HMmE,
B REHK i

PRC/Mainland China
HE/RER
PRC/Mainland China
hE/HEN
PRC/Mainland China
E/PEA
PRC/Mainland China
HE/ BRI
PRC/Mainland China
hE/ B

British Virgin Islands
RERBARES

British Virgin Islands
ABRRRES

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRITEER/
TR A

RMB10,000,000

AE# 10,000,000 7T

RMB 150,000,000

AR 150,000,000 7T

RMB1,000,000

AK% 1,000,000 70

RMB10,000,000

AR 10,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000

AR 10,000,000 7T

USD50,000
50,000% 7T

USD50,000
50,0003 T

* PnR Network Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. is registered as a

wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law.

i These companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company

and accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the

Company'’s control over them.

These companies are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of

the Company and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by

virtue of the Company’s control over them.
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* %

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
LN
EtRERI

Direct Indirect

Bi M

100%

100%

100%

70%

100%

100%

100%

Principal
activities

TEER

Technology development

BAZES

Technology development

A

Technology development

BAFH

Technology development

AUTEES

Technology development

BF %

Share Scheme Trust

inat Bl1EE

Share Scheme Trust
RipzrElfEsT

PE AR A 40 (L08) BIR A RIRBH BUA R M

ROIBBEDE -

ZERARARTNZENBAT - Bt - AA
REAHEFEHESIEMIERBRRALR -

HZERARARFZEMBRATNMELRR
it - AARREE BB ESEmIEHB AR

N



NQ 9 ! ANCIAL STATE
B R R M T

31 December 2019 2019412 8318

5 >

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED) ARER (&)
The English names of all group companies registered in the HRITEEFRNELE  EhRFMOmEE
PRC represent the best efforts made by the management of the BARREYEABEAARARAAEEBERAL N
Company to translate the Chinese names of these companies BMEEZS A RNR XL -

as they do not have official English names.

Due to the implementation of the share award scheme of the H A R 5= B E e BT 5 32(e) B i 9 PR 9 22 B =1
Group mentioned in Note 32(e), the Company has also set up a g ARRNMERI L AEEER(RHFEE
structured entity (“Share Scheme Trust”), and its particulars are ) BEEEHET
as follows:
Structured entity Principal activities EErER FEEK
Share Scheme Administering and holding the 1n st 25T BIE NG LRk (D B R 2
Trust Company’s shares acquired for share FrUBE AR AR D - A
award schemes which are set up for T EZETEAEBRATH
the benefits of eligible persons of the EDIEI VA
Schemes
As the Company has the power to govern the financial and HRARRAEEER M TEETENT S E
operating policies of the Share Scheme Trust and can derive B WA SEREEEROEEBA
benefits from the contributions of the eligible persons who THEE - AR RREBERMETEEEES
are awarded with the shares by the schemes, the directors of ABETVBBRE -

the Company consider that it is appropriate to consolidate the
Share Scheme Trust.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company HZE2019F 128318 ItEE - A FMH
contributed approximately RMB233 million (2018: Nil) to %10 st El{E 51 & 49 A R ¥ 233,000,000 7T
the Share Scheme Trust for financing its acquisition of the (20184 : 41) » DL AE UEE RN A D 124t
Company's shares. BE o

2.1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION 2.1 25 EE
Under the prevailing laws and regulations in the PRC, WEPEIRITEENRER  IINERTIRELET
companies with foreign ownership are prohibited from B IR Y A IRTS o ANEEAIBEEBIBER
providing payment services in Mainland China. The Group ATEBRAT(EMNRTREWB AR LS
historically operated its payment services business in Mainland B A E L H %7 o
China through China PnR Co., Ltd. (“China PnR"”) and its
subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

A series of contractual agreements (the “China PnR Structured
Contracts”) was effectuated among China PnR, PnR Network
Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (“PnR Network”) and Mr.
ZHOU Ye, Mr. LIU Gang, Ms. MU Hai Jie, Mr. ZHANG Ge, Ms.
XU Zhuo Min and Ms. CHEN Yan (collectively, the “Registered
Shareholders”) who are the legal shareholders of China PnR.

The China PnR Structured Contracts provide the Group
through PnR Network with effective control over China PnR.
In particular, PnR Network undertakes to provide China PnR
with certain technical services as required to support their
operations. In return, PnR Network is entitled to substantially
all of the operating profits and residual benefits generated
by China PnR through intercompany charges levied on these
services rendered. The Registered Shareholders are also
required to transfer their interests in China PnR to PnR Network
or PnR Network’s designee upon a request made by PnR
Network as permitted under PRC law. The ownership interests
in China PnR have also been pledged by the Registered
Shareholders to PnR Network in respect of the continuing
obligations of China PnR. PnR Network intends continuously
to provide or to assist China PnR in obtaining financial support
when deemed necessary. Accordingly, PnR Network has rights
to variable returns from its involvement with China PnR and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over China
PnR. As a result, China PnR was accounted for as a subsidiary
of the Company.

All intra-group transactions and balances have been eliminated
on consolidation.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
(which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations), and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

2.1

2.2

2EE (&)

BAET - ERBGRIN (L8 BRAR(E
A% D ERE L - Bk - BERK
T RREE  REHLTREBL T (RIE
[ERBE D HAENK T aEABRR) T
T-RIANTENRTABIEEH]) -

MR TSR A OEARRE SR BE NS
MABUEHEMNRT - ARME - EAEEE
FRMEN K TR SO A B &R M E TR
R7% - (ERE - ENEKEEEEMATREH
MZERBEDN R AEREZFENRTE
EHBAR D ELFBE RGN - BERR
TAREMNBENER  EPBRERAFER
RS E N R T e e e o T A kB
NBEHAEEAL - BRBRRTEAENRT
R EREREN R TR A RERE N TE
N - EN AR RESEVERAENXT
RS B E T R TR M R - Btk - &
T #4% A R DS R B 1 RS M ARG A 22 3 5 -
UHREVEEEBENRKTHENIZEZSE
| o Fit - BENRXTHRIMEAR BB AR
AR

FBEEARRBZR S MBBEDREE AR
R o

BREEE
ZEMBHRRTDIRBE(ERE B HEER)D
(KEBRBBREERD D (BhBREAE(EER
FEmERER)  (BEREHEIN(KEBRES
ER) D RRE) REB(ARGIERREZ
REMMREL o WEM B MR IDIRIBELKAE
Plame - AR ABEFELFABENER
BERSI  RRAR(EERE - FMHBEHEER
NARBE(TAREDZ%  AmBEEEHNRE
IAEREAT  EREERERI -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 5 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 2.2 BBEEXE(H)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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HERBEZEXE
BRAMBRRBEARRLENB AR (HTE
[AREE]EHZ2019F 12 A31BIEFEZH
B@wE - MEBARARRA R HE Nk MEIEHI
FR(BELEEER) EAEEHLHEKE
B EBHTHRMAERBR L ZEENINRL
REEBAHIEEHROEN (AR EEER TH
B A EBREHRABEHNELTER)
SEZEOIRE - BIEVS IR -

WARRIEZKEZERDREEHRKZH
RERSIRLEF MER - AARERFHEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.2

2.3

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative

IFRS 9 Compensation

IFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
IAS 19 Settlement

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates and
IAS 28 Joint Ventures

IFRIC Interpretation Uncertainty over Income Tax
23 Treatments

Annual Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS
Improvements to 12 and IAS 23

IFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

2.2

2.3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 5 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 23 € HBERBENEH (EF)

DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Except for the amendments to IFRS 9 and IAS 19, and Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which are not
relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial statements,
the nature and the impact of the new and revised IFRSs are
described below:

(a) IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC Interpretation 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
SIC Interpretation 15 Operating Leases — Incentives
and SIC Interpretation 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to account for all leases under a single
on-balance sheet model to recognise and measure right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain
recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors continue
to classify leases as either operating or finance leases
using similar principles as in I1AS 17. IFRS 16 did not have
any financial impact on leases where the Group is the
lessor.

The Group adopted IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial
application of 1 January 2019. Under this method, the
standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of initially adoption as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2019,
and the comparative information for 2018 was not
restated and continues to be reported under IAS 17 and
related interpretations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(Continued)

New definition of a lease

Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified asset and
the right to direct the use of the identified asset. The
Group elected to use the transition practical expedient
allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying IAS 17 and
IFRIC Interpretation 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under IAS 17
and IFRIC Interpretation 4 were not reassessed. Therefore,
the definition of a lease under IFRS 16 has been applied
only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1
January 2019.

As a lessee — Leases previously classified
as operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of IFRS
16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant
and machinery and other equipment. As a lessee, the
Group previously classified leases as either finance leases
or operating leases based on the assessment of whether
the lease transferred substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group. Under IFRS 16,
the Group applies a single approach to recognise and
measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all
leases, except for two elective exemptions for leases of
low-value assets (elected on a lease-by-lease basis) and
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less (“short-term
leases”) (elected by class of underlying asset). Instead
of recognising rental expenses under operating leases
on a straight-line basis over the lease term commencing
from 1 January 2019, the Group recognises depreciation
of the right-of-use assets and interest accrued on the
outstanding lease liabilities as finance costs.
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31 December 2019 20194 12 31 H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 23 EHEERBENSE(E)

) FINAN
R

IAL STATEN

DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(Continued)
As a lessee — Leases previously classified
as operating leases (Continued)

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised based
on the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1
January 2019 and included in interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings. The right-of-use assets were
measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to the lease recognised in the statement of
financial position immediately before 1 January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based
on IAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present the
right-of-use assets separately in the statement of financial
position.

The Group has used the following elective practical
expedients when applying IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

o Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases
with a lease term that ends within 12 months from
the date of initial application

o Using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend/
terminate the lease
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&M

31 December 2019 20194 12

23 BN BERBENED (R)

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICI
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(@) (Continued) (a) (&)
Financial impact at 1 January 2019 R2019F 1B 1HNHKTE
The impact arising from the adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 20191 A1 B 5 AR B B 15 3R 5
January 2019 was as follows: LERNE16HAMEENTZEBAT ¢
Increase/
(decrease)
i, CEA)
RMB’000
ARET T
(Unaudited)
(REER)
Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets FREEELM 192
Increase in total assets BEBEL 192
Liabilities a&
Increase in lease liabilities HEEFEEMN 192
Increase in total liabilities B BB 192
Decrease in retained earnings REBEFF D —
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DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(@)  (Continued) (a)
Financial impact at 1 January 2019
(Continued)
The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to the

operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018
are as follows:

(&)
R2019F1B1BEN M BLE
(%&)

R2019F 1 A1 BNHEBFEERK 2018
F12 A31 B LA EAEHROT ¢

RMB’000
AR¥T R
(Unaudited)
(REBER)
Operating lease commitments as at 31 72018 F 12 A 31 HMEEHERIE
December 2018 996
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as 7% 20194F 1 A 1 B8y iNiE Fi918 2 (£ 3%
at 1 January 2019 F = 5%
Discounted operating lease commitments at 1 R2019F 1 A1 HMNEBBRKLEHE
January 2019 A 871
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases & : Bi%8 HATH & R eA T EHR
and those leases with a remaining lease 2019 12 A 31 Ak Z Rl EH
term ended on or before 31 December 2019 B 7% EH SRR A AR (679)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R2019F1B1HNEEARE 192
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 23 € HBERBENESH ()
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(@

Amendments to IAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of IFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is applied and
does not include long-term interests that in substance
form part of the net investment in the associate or
joint venture, to which the equity method has not been
applied. Therefore, an entity applies IFRS 9, rather than
IAS 28, including the impairment requirements under
IFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term interests. IAS 28
is then applied to the net investment, which includes the
long-term interests, only in the context of recognising
losses of an associate or joint venture and impairment
of the net investment in the associate or joint venture.
The Group assessed its business model for its long-term
interests in associates and joint ventures upon adoption
of the amendments on 1 January 2019 and concluded
that the long-term interests in associates and joint
ventures continued to be measured at amortised cost in
accordance with IFRS 9. Accordingly, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

IFRIC Interpretation 23 addresses the accounting for
income taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application of IAS
12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The
interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside
the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated
with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation
specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers
uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the assumptions
an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments
by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity
considers changes in facts and circumstances. Upon
adoption of the interpretation, the Group considered
whether it has any uncertain tax positions arising from
the transfer pricing on its intergroup sales. Based on the
Group’s tax compliance and transfer pricing study, the
Group determined that it is probable that its transfer
pricing policy will be accepted by the tax authorities.
Accordingly, the interpretation did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 5 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS 2.4 E BB K E AR PR B %

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business’

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
10 and IAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture®
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material’

and IAS 8

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that
for an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without including
all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs.
The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration
test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020.
Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions or
other events that occur on or after the date of first application,
the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the
date of transition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS 2.4 E BB k£ RHCE PR B &

(CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address the effects
of interbank offered rate reform on financial reporting. The
amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge
accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty
before the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark.
In addition, the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020. Early application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS
28 (2011) was removed in January 2016 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of a
broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. A misstatement of information is material if it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 5 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FESHHEME

POLICIES

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but
is not control or joint control over those policies.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FES:HEME(EH)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less

REEQTNRE(E)
AREBENBE RANRERRAEBRIEEDS
SIDERGEEFEREMRERERES M
BRI - @t ERERMB A2 #

s

any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line SENARFEZ - - AEBREG—RBEAQ
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group's AIMKRBEEE R EM MRS AGZEEBS
share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive REMEEWZRERA © I R EFEEREE

income of an associate are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the
associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over
the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss
of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised
in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

NEERER-REY  AAKEENGEE
HEPHRERAELEBEEMESH(MER) - KN
SEEHBENRETIZIELNAREE NS
KR - AR EREE R R IR E BRI
i HERERBRAMEEREERENRER
BRobh o WHBHE 2 R B FTE A B BT ALREE
KL RBMIREN—FED -

ERBERRNREZERNAEARIMNIRER
HERBARER AT eEHAERERER - 18
- wEEBILEREARR - EFAAEMIBER
T REHBEARNERZENAHAER
AMHFEESIEER  ARERAABENER
BREMRERE - REEAFENHHARE
R - BEQRHAERRRMERRER
BERnBENEEMSHEZANEZENER

ERBERRNRERSBERFELE - AIE
R IECE B B 75 S 5 2B RN DR 5 SR 1R & AR
IHBENIERBEEAR °

Huifu Payment Limited SCAATAR2AF  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FE# &

181



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FES:HEME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.5 TEETBRME(H)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Business combinations and goodwill

(Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FES:HEME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as

a whole:

Level 1 = based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FES:HEME(EH)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets
and non-current assets), the asset’'s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTI
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties 2L b
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETHERT  BEAATEANRNERZEEA
+
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s (a) BABALA—BALHZATZBEER
family and that person TREKE - MZAL
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; ()  HAREEBEH LR E
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HEAEBBEZEATZESN 5k
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of iy AASEHESLAFTHTEERE
the Group or of a parent of the Group; AE
or st
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (by BEAALAFEEMULTMEENEE

conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEREASERBR —S£EKN
group; RERF]

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —EBEBASEBR(EHSE—EBEN
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow BAAE - WMEARSKRRWME R
subsidiary of the other entity); AW E N FIKEE QAR

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the iy ZEBEBRAEEER—F=ZHW
same third party; =X-WNCI

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and (ivy " EBAE-FEBENEGEDR
the other entity is an associate of the third entity; Al M —EBRAZE=ZTEE

ip): /NI

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for v) ZERAASESHEHAEEEFRA
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an BtEE BE kIR 8 25 5% 3L A0 BE IR
entity related to the Group; BREFIFE

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (Vi) ZEBX(FTRATATIESSE
person identified in (a); A

(viii a person identified in (a)(i) has significant Vi) @IOFTRTEATHZEREEEKR
influence over the entity or is a member of the key FENABZERB(KERBYQA)
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent NTFEEEBAE + K&
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is (viii) ZEBXEMBEB 2ERKE
a part, provides key management personnel services ARAMAEESIAEE TR AR
to Group or to the parent of the Group. HEBEEABRE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.5 TEETBRME(H)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment and

depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2.71%
Leasehold improvements 5%
Plant and machinery 19%-33.33%
Motor vehicles 19%
Office equipment 19%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 5 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FES:HEME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment and

depreciation (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life of 3 to 10 years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(Continued)

Research and development costs

All research and development costs are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease
term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated
useful life and the lease term.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
(Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-

value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.5 TEETBRME(H)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

(Continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the consolidated statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
are accounted for as finance leases.

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)
Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net
of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

HE(B2019F1 A1 BEEA) (&)

AEREER LA
AEEERHEAR - REERAS(RHR
BEEHE) S RASAERELRELRE

HE -

AEET BB AEMARMENEA DD
BREBNEHENBAKLEHE - RANER
HERIFEERD  AEERBAHBLIEER
ERENTHREIETEID - HEBAR
HEBANBEREAR  YRELEEEMR
RABERRETARA - S REETER R
RHBMEENTEERANAEEEEDN
RHEE - YREERNREREERRSHES
WA - ZAEERELRRERREA

AR B EPT A M S R B KRR D [ R B
fEBEAEANEEAREREAR -

HE(R2019F1B18AER)
HIAARBEEMERNBADD BRERRK
CHRMAESEESTELD - tiAEE AR
¥ REBLESREYLENEESAERD
BE  MBBELEHROKRNESIRABUE
ot NGABERT c MAEEARBEA -
BB MR NS (N & B AER
H A S ES 12 ) IR E A B R N R A 1828
RPHB -

Huifu Payment Limited LA KT AT ANNUAL REPORT 2019 #E#keE

191



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 5 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FES:HEME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’'s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.5 TESTEERME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement
(Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt

instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 5 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FES:HEME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (Continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is
either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through
profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.5 TEETBRME(H)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral
to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 5 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FES:HEME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.5 TEETBRME(H)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment, at the rates below:

Ageing Rates
Less than 3 months 5%
4 to 6 months 20%
7 to 12 months 50%
1 to 2 years 80%
Over 2 years 100%

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables, the
Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, an amount due to the ultimate holding company,
derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 5 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FES:HEME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and

borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FES:HEME(EH)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by
the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised
directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
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prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion o
and disposal.
Cash and cash equivalents BEERBESEZEY

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.5 TEETBRME(H)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FES:HEME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and released to profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.5 TEETBRME(H)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the
Group a significant financial benefit for more than one vyear,
revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

The Group provides comprehensive payment services and other
value added services to help clients accept, process and settle
payment transactions across POS, Internet and mobile payment
scenarios.

(a) Payment services
The Group earns revenues primarily from fees charged
to merchants and consumers on a transaction basis. The
Group has assessed that there is a single performance
obligation in the contract and revenue will continue to be
recognised at a point in time, upon delivery of rendering
of services.
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31 December 2019 20194 12 31 H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTI

) FINANCIAL STATEN
= M A

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Payment services (Continued)

The Group adopts gross revenue recognition methods
for the merchant payment services when the Group
is the principle in respect of completing a payment
transaction. The Group has determined that it is acting
as the principle in offering services wherever the Group
(i) is the primary obligor in the arrangement; (i) has
latitude in establishing the selling price; (iii) has discretion
in suppliers selection; and (iv) has involvement in the
determination of product or services specifications.
Revenue is recognised at gross amount and commission
fee charged by these participants and processing fee
charged by issuing banks or union pay are recorded in
cost of sales.

Other value added services

The Group also earns revenue from providing other value
added services, which is comprised of revenue earned
through ongoing updates of system and technical support
for the operation of the whole business of its clients.
The Group has assessed that there is single performance
obligation in the contract and revenue will continue to
be recognised over time, using and input method to
measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the
service.

204 Huifu Payment Limited SCH A TFARAR  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 &

LON 46 )
BEFEARA (&)

(a)

(b)

XIVIRTS (&)

HARERTRINRZHNESZA - A
R E B 57 P S A BR7G BR A WA M B
A o AEBHETE @ fWANKE () R%E
RHTFNEIBEHEA  (VARETEE
B (i REEEHER RvATE
EEMBIMBHRE - AARES BRH
REOEEAN - WARBERIBALR
MZzE2BERMOME RERITRHF
BRI R YRR T2 B RN SHEE A AR AR ©

A 12 EIRFF

7N SR B 75 B BE 4 H 3 (8 AR 5 B ER IR
A EREREEEBREPEREBNE
EREFENZRT R RN IHFAE
WA - AEEDHEENTEE—RY
BERWABERER FHEBIRIRACAF
BEBCERERRBEOEE TIARER -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.5 TEETBRME(H)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Factoring income mainly consists of factoring interest income
and other factoring related service income. Factoring income
from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably. Factoring interest income
together with fees that are an integral part of effective interest
rate of the factoring assets are accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition. Other factoring related service income
mainly consists of factoring related services without providing
factoring financing and is recognised when the service is
provided.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FES:HEME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration
that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a number of share-based compensation
plans (including share option schemes and share award
scheme) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 32 to the financial statements. For grant of
award shares, the total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the market price of the Company’s shares at
the grant date. The Group also adopts valuation techniques
to assess the fair value of other equity instruments of the
Group granted under the share-based compensation plans as
appropriate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.5 TEETBRME(H)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FES:HEME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain proportion
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FES:HEME(EH)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’'s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The functional currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). The Company’s
primary subsidiaries were incorporated in the PRC and these
subsidiaries considered RMB as their functional currency. As the
major operations of the Group during the reporting period are
within the PRC, the Group determined to present its financial
statements in RMB (unless otherwise stated).

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 5 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Further details are given in note 15.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC.
As a result of the fact that certain matters relating to the
income taxes have not been confirmed by the local tax bureau,
objective estimate and judgement based on currently enacted
tax laws, regulations and other related policies are required in
determining the provision for income taxes to be made. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact on
the income tax and tax provisions in the period in which the
differences realise.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”) (Continued)
Shanghai Payment and Remittance Data Service Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Group in Mainland China, was qualified as a
key software enterprise and was entitled to a reduced income
tax rate of 10% for 2018. The management of the Group
believes that Shanghai Payment and Remittance Data Service
Co., Ltd. is virtually certain to be renewed as a key software
enterprise again for 2019 and thus the Group continued
to apply a 10% preferential income tax rate on the taxable
income of Shanghai Payment and Remittance Data Service Co.,
Ltd. for 2019 in the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and carryforward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. Further details are included in note 20 to
the financial statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing

rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR"”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what
the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries
that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it needs
to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit rating).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 5 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based
on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at
arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs of disposing of the asset. The value in use
calculation is based on a discounted cash flow (“DCF") model.
The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five
years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group
is not yet committed to or significant future investments
that will enhance the performance of the assets of the cash-
generating units being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well
as the expected future cash inflows and the growth rate used
for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant
to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives
recognised by the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Share-based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions
requires the determination of the most appropriate valuation
model, which depends on the terms and conditions of the
grant. This estimate also requires the determination of the
most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including
the expected life of the share options or appreciation right,
volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about
them. For the measurement of the fair value of equity-settled
transactions with employees at the grant date, the Group
uses a binomial model for Employee Stock Ownership Plans
("ESOP"). The assumptions and models used for estimating the
fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in
Note 32.

Provision for expected credit losses on other

receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for other
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and
rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults
in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on
a market-based valuation technique. The valuation requires
the Group to determine the comparable public companies
and select the price multiple. In addition, the Group makes
estimates about the discount for illiquidity and size differences.
The Group classifies the fair value of these investments as
Level 3. The fair value of the unlisted equity investments at
31 December 2019 was RMB23,600,000 (31 December 2018:

RMB23,600,000).

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group has only one reportable
operating segment, which is the provision of payment solution
services. Since this is the only reportable operating segment
of the Group, no further operating segment analysis thereof is

presented.

Geographical information

No geographical segment information is presented as the
Group's revenue from the external customers is derived solely
from its operation in Mainland China and no non-current assets

of the Group are located outside Mainland China.

Information about major customers

No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under
common control accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s

revenue for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

WA~ Bt R WS
WABHIT -

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE

2019 2018
2019 F 2018 %
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® TR AREET T
Revenue from contracts with customers X /=4 A1 A 3,679,167 3,241,503
Revenue from other sources E M KR Z WA
Gross rental income el ALzE 542 4,692
Factoring income RIEBUTA 3,805 298
3,683,514 3,246,493
Revenue from contracts with customers EEEHWA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) DEUAZH
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®Tx AREEF T
Type of goods or services BmE R ER
Payment services AT BRTE 3,679,167 3,241,503
Geographical market & i
Mainland China el 3,679,167 3,241,503
Timing of revenue recognition N
Revenue recognised at a point in time R (AR EER Y
LN 3,630,697 3,024,782
Revenue recognised over time & B ] 52 2 UL A 48,470 216,721
Total revenue from contracts with BEREAKHRABE
customers 3,679,167 3,241,503
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information

(Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

5.

WA~ WA R W (F)

EFEHBA(E)
() ZEUAEH (&)

Revenue recognised that was included &t A& HIHIH)
in contract liabilities at the beginning &% & &
of the reporting period: BERREKA
Payment services ¥R

TRINTRAHERREERORAE
B HSARSHUNANAERE L
RIEAE B 2R B B (EFTRER -

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBFT
30,602 82,450

Performance obligations
Information about the Group's performance obligations is
summarised below:

The Group’s performance obligations are related to
payment services and other value-added services. For
payment services, the performance obligation is satisfied
at a point in time upon the transaction processed. The
majority of the transaction service contracts do not
have a fixed term. The Group has elected the practical
expedient for not to disclose the remaining performance
obligations for these types of contracts.

For other value-added services, the performance
obligation is satisfied over time as services are rendered
and advances are normally required before rendering the
services. Some service contracts are for periods of more
than one year.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA EMRARKE ()
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHWA(E)

(Continued)

(i) Performance obligations (Continued) (ii) BHIEF(E)
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the R1I2AMBSEEH TEHEECRE
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or K EDRER)NRSERSTENAT :

partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows:

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREF T

Amounts expected to be recognised as TEERIS#ER AU ALY

revenue: T

Within one year —F R 628 27,674

After one year —F1% 279 3,835

907 31,509

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the BN —FREIR/BAN D EEH
remaining performance obligations which are expected TROBEENRZERDE S KA MhIE
to be recognised as revenue after one year relate to BR®  HENEETHAMERNER -
other value-added services, of which the performance PEEHRTROEENAAEEMIZ(E
obligations are to be satisfied within two years. All the REBBHHN —FANERBEA - £
other amounts of transaction prices allocated to the MR ERN SRR BRG] # A
remaining performance obligations are expected to be =

recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts
disclosed above do not include variable consideration
which is constrained.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS WA > B A A R Wz ()
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEEESHWA(E)
(Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations (Continued)

(i) BAIEE (&)
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET R AREFT

Other income and gains, net HihWw AR FE

Investment income on financial SR ERNRERA

investments 16,672 15,734
Government grants AT R B 11,645 16,257
Others Eith 1,417 522
29,734 32,513
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BiATHHE

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

REBOTATAEDHEATSRESE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LLEE

2019 2018
2019 £ 20184
Notes RMB’000 RMB"000
s AR TR ARBF T
Cost of payment services A5 AR 7 89 A AR 2,697,164 2,354,324
Depreciation of property, plant mE - RERRETE 14
and equipment 228,109 249,128
Depreciation of right-of-use CHREEERE 19
assets 6,425 —
Amortisation of other intangible — Hith 2 & ZE #E45 16
assets 8,535 8,451
Impairment of contract assets BHEERE 7,22 373 160
Impairment of factoring assets RIEBEERE 7,23 75 84
Impairment of other receivables — Hth fE U FIER(E 7,24 8,798 17,784
Impairment of investments in REFE R BINIRERE 7,17
associates — 12,709
Loss on disposal of items of BREME  WFEREE 7
property, plant and equipment HEZEE 207 58,308
Lease payments not included AFEHEAERILTHA 19
in the measurement of lease HHEERR
liabilities 778 —
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 2B % A 2,400 2,400
Employee benefit expense EERAMRAZ(BEES
(including directors’ and chief RE&mITBA 8 Hr B
executive’s remuneration GELDE
(note 9)):
Wages and salaries HELT® 365,057 272,231
Equity-settled share option NEmEER 32
expense HERR R 2 21,129 70,800
Share award scheme expense B0 82 Eh T S 2 32 39,139 —
Pension scheme contributions BRRSEEIHRR
and social welfare ttEEF 82,504 63,971
Foreign exchange differences, ME 5, = R 7
net 3,844 1,128
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

7. OTHER EXPENSES

An analysis of other expenses is as follows:

Hpax
HAAZ AT -

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’'000 RMB"000
AR T ARET T
Impairment of contract assets EWEERE 373 160
Impairment of factoring assets RIEBEERE 75 84
Impairment of other receivables HoAth p R IBRUE 8,798 17,784
Impairment of investments in REFE R BINIRERE
associates — 12,709
Foreign exchange differences, net ME W, 2= R R 3,844 1,128
Loss on disposal of property, plant BEVE  BE
and equipment KR EE 207 58,308
Penalty and compensation B 20 K2 2 B 368 8
Donation Ighg 1,656 993
Others EAh 26 293
15,347 91,467
8. FINANCE COSTS BE A
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMEKR ARSI :
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE
2019 2018
2019 & 20184
RMB’000 RMB"000
AR T AR®ETT
Interest on bank borrowings AT A S 17,997 24,451
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEMNE 869 —
18,866 24,451
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERBETHRAEHMH
REMUNERATION
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARETTT
Fees we 798 420
Other emoluments: HEibie -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e R AREYEF
kind 2,889 2,906
Performance-related bonuses* TEIEAT * 1,165 1,190
Equity-settled share option expense LA A E MBI 11,532 40,752
Pension scheme contributions and BRIREFFEIH R R A2 @A
social welfare 243 236
Total A5t 16,627 45,504
* Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus * AATETFHITESHEREESIHAEEBE NS

payments which are determined as a percentage of the profit after

tax of the Group.

During the reporting period, certain directors were granted

share options, in respect of their services to the Group, under

the share option arrangements of the Company, further details

of which are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

The fair value of such options, which has been recognised

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the vesting period, was determined
as at the date of grant and the amounts included in the
financial statements for the reporting period are included in the
above directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BAFEHITES

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FERLZNBIIERTESENBRESOT
during the year were as follows:

Year ended 31 December
HBZE12A31HILLEE

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Mr. LIU Jun e 266 140
Mr. WANG Hengzhong FlasEE 266 140
Ms. ZHANG Qi RE T+ 266 140
798 420
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRITEREMTFZEBFBIIENITESEN
independent non-executive directors during the year Hih B (20184 : &)
(2018: Nil).

222 Huifu Payment Limited LA FARAR  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 &



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. EERBEITHAESEHM(E)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive (b) HMITEE - kHITEERESIT
directors and the chief executive BAE
Year ended 31 December 2019 HBZE2019F 12831 HILEFE

Pension

Salaries, Equity- scheme

allowances  Performance settled contributions
and benefits related  share option and social Total

in kind bonuses expense welfare  remuneration

e RER NWERLE BAREE
BNER BREAL  DBERERX HRRAERA FMeR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR ARBTR

Executive directors: HiTES:
— Mr. ZHOU Ye — AL 1,041 416 6,748 81 8,286
— Ms. MU Haijie —BEat 922 416 3,297 81 4,716
— Mr. JIN Yuan — SRAE 926 333 1,487 81 2,827
2,889 1,165 11,532 243 15,829
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
— Mr. JOE Zhou — JOE Zhou %t & - - - — =
— Mr. CHYE Chia Chow — BEgIkE - — — = =
— Ms. WANG Lihong — EERhat - - - = =
— Mr. CHEN Zhongjue —BRiEEE - — — — =
2,889 1,165 11,532 243 15,829
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31 December 2019 2019412 8318

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 5
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive (b) HITESE - IFHITEEREST
directors and the chief executive BAE (&)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE2018F12A31ALFE
Pension
Salaries, Equity- scheme
allowances  Performance settled  contributions
and benefits related  share option and social Total
in kind bonuses expense welfare  remuneration
e 28R INEREE Rikestal
EIER BUAA MERERX HERRHEET s
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Executive directors: HTEE:
— Mr. ZHOU Ye — RAELE 1,069 415 23,907 80 25,471
— Ms. MU Haijie —BERat 939 41 11,737 78 13,165
— Mr. JIN Yuan —eREE 898 364 5,108 78 6,448
2,906 1,190 40,752 236 45,084
Non-executive directors: EHTES:
— Mr. JOE Zhou — JOE Zhou b5 - - - - -
— Mr. CHYE Chia Chow — BEHEE - - - - -
— Mr. CHEN Zhongjue — Behigk s — — — — —
2,906 1,190 40,752 236 45,084

Mr. ZHOU Ye, Ms. MU Haijie and Mr. JIN Yuan were
appointed as executive directors of the Company on
21 December 2018, 2 March 2018 and 2 March 2018,
respectively. Details of their remuneration are listed above.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 75 ] &< B A

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9.
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive

directors and the chief executive

(Continued)

Mr. CHYE Chia Chow, Mr. JOE Zhou and Mr. CHEN
Zhongjue were appointed as non-executive directors of
the Company on 2 March 2018. Mr. CHEN Zhongjue has
ceased to be a non-executive director of the Company
since 1 November 2019. Ms. WANG Lihong was
appointed as a non-executive director of the Company on
1 November 2019.

Mr. ZHOU Ye was also appointed as chief executive
officer of the Company on 2 March 2018. Details of his
remuneration are listed above.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the reporting period.

EERRETRAESHME)

(b) BTES  FHUTESEREET

BAE(E)

£S5 A&  JOE Zhou St K BRI 5t
£R2018F3 A2 EZTAARRIGE
WITES - RPRELEEB2019F 11 A
THERTHARRAGIIENITES - TH
ShEZEMR2019F 1M ATHEZT AR
NAIFHITEE -

FEIEESL AN 2018FE3 2B EZR T A
AARMERRIITE - EHFHFBHRN
Exe

RBREBPIE|ITIVESTSIZESTHRAR
FRE SR B B 2 25 -

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included 3
directors (2018: 3 directors), details of whose remuneration are
set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the
year ended 31 December 2019 of the remaining 2 highest paid
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the

Company are as follows:

10. EEREFMES
FANNREELER T NMEERE3REE(2018
F3ZESE) HEMFBRHN EXHIF -
HE2019F 12 A31BIEFENBT 245D
HINEBRIEARRAREENIERZHITHAL -
HEMFBH BT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B831BLEE

2019 2018
2019 % 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARBEF T
Salaries, allowances and benefits e RMEREYMEF

in kind 1,441 1,986
Performance-related bonuses BRRAEAT 771 711
Equity-settled share option expense DA E R EREM X 1,334 3,275

Pension scheme contributions and BRARSFHEHR EEEER
social welfare 162 169
Total A&t 3,708 6,141
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10.

(CONTINUED)
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

hEsEHMES (&)
FEE B IRBTHA BN RS HIIE SR
T 515 8 P ) A B TR

Year ended 31 December

BZE128318LFE

2019 2018

2019 & 20184

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARETTT

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 # 7T ZE 2,000,000 7T 1 —
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 ¥ 7T % 2,500,000 7 7T 1 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7L % 5,000,000 78 7T — 1
Total A&t 2 2

During the reporting period, share options were granted to two
non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees
in respect of their services to the Group, further details of
which are included in the disclosures in note 32 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in
the financial statements for the reporting period are included
in the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

11. INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate. The Group's
subsidiaries incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands are not subject to any income tax. The Group’s
subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to the Hong
Kong profits tax rate of 16.5%.

Moreover, according to the announcement and circular issued
by the relevant government authorities, Shanghai Payment and
Remittance Data Service Co., Ltd. was certified a national key
software enterprise and was therefore subject to a preferential
tax rate of 10% for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2019.

Other subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China
are subject to the PRC corporate income tax rate of 25% for
the year.

1. FrB%H
AEEERAEER S A TEERELHER
KA EEERESZFFEOF HREBRLESY
MFFEH - AL 2B S % 5 4 B B
B 5 AR ST BB 2 R B R (BT S H -
A E BN B TR S M B 2 R AR E S
BRIBIE 16.5% BUNFIEEE -

AN - ARIBRARBATRAT SPT AP AN S K -
FHENBEREERARCRATEARREDY
M RELEREE2018F X 2019F
12 A3 HIEFER10% HEEREMAF -

REBNHEAME SN E M E QR FAEA
12 25% M) B RIS IR E AT -

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

2019 2018
2019 & 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®Tx ARETT

Current tax: BIEARIE -
PRC corporate income tax PRI ERTER 15,112 19,313
Deferred tax (note 20) BT (M5 20) (8,210) (5,312)
Total tax charge for the year FRB B L B%E 6,902 14,001
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

11. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which
the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income
tax expense at the effective income tax rate for both years is as
follows:

11.

Fri&®t (&)

MEFEEAN  BRARRREMBAREREME
AEEBRAEAER XA EOBATNENER
PRIS BRI X BIR BIR TS B AR R aT E R PIIS T
PR EIRRINTS

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB"000
AR TR AREF T
Profit before tax TRATFE 249,457 188,567
Tax calculated at the PRC statutory B BDE TSR (25%)
income tax rate of 25% STE/IE 62,364 47,142
Different income tax rates applicable  #ERRHEB QT TE
to subsidiaries FriS it = (2,755) 4,183
Preferential income tax rates BARWBRRNER
applicable to subsidiaries Fris B = (45,185) (42,263)
Profits attributable to associates kN ER IV (60) (763)
Additional deduction for research 3 S R REIMD R B
and development expense (22,274) (19,584)
Expenses not deductible for tax DRINFL R X 10,826 15,152
Tax losses utilised from previous BT AR E A MFIAEE
periods (2,552) —
Deductible temporary differences REERE ] K 0B 5 = 58
and tax losses not recognised WA = 6,538 10,134
Tax charge at the Group’s effective RAREERHE
rate STE /IS M 6,902 14,001
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

11. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position

1. FrE% (&)
BA BTSRRI MBIk

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A831HLEE
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE TR AREFTT

represents:
Tax payable MBI
PRC corporate income tax B PSR

64 5

12. DIVIDENDS

12. BE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® TR ARETT

Dividends declared to the then YR FERBREZRE

shareholder

— 404,716

On 20 January 2018, it is resolved by the directors of the
Company to make two special dividends in relation to the
Reorganization to PnR Holdings Limited in the amounts of
US$45,370,311.20 and US$17,700,000.00, respectively. The
dividends were paid by the Company on 24 January 2018 and
5 February 2018, respectively.

MR2018F 1 H20H  "RARIEERENE
@ PnR Holdings Limited 2 & 48 & 3% M & 45
AR E - &% DA A45370,311.20%E T &
17,700,000.003E 7T - ZEREEHARA D
B 72018415248 K2018%F2 A58 Ik
(N
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B 75 ] R Y A

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. FERBLAAEEEREAAN
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BRER
PARENT
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based SRERBFIIIEEANRD T L RBERES
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders AEEAEERFANAE,232,931,9200%(2018
of the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary £ :1,070,800,925 % ) B, 8 17 & i/ % A0 #E F
shares of 1,232,931,920 (2018: 1,070,800,925) in issue during HEEE o
the year.
The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts SAEERESEENDEERAAR S BEERES
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary }\Eﬁqrﬁ‘{gﬂﬁ 4o BRAE E’]f‘t BRA% ANFE
equity holders of the Company. The weighted average number ii@%ﬁ(}%iﬁq?ﬁfﬁa’] B E g JTﬁEJE/\
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of HEEREARRN  URRABEE S L E
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic E;J%% BATEYINME G 8 -
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are HESRERNREERTNTIER
based on:
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLFE
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’'000 RMB"000
ARE TR ARBF T
Earnings BF
Profit attributable to ordinary equity REIERTRRRFBAEAR
holders of the parent entity 5 8 248,995 176,065
Shares gy
Weighted average number of ordinary & &REARZEF &L @M
shares in the basic earnings per EFHE
share calculation 1,232,931,920 1,070,800,925
Effect of dilution BENEE
— weighted average number of — EEAR N THE
ordinary shares:
Share options HERR R 50,909,220 59,726,601
1,283,841,140 1,130,527,526
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y¥E - - BERRE

Leasehold Plant and Motor Office
Buildings  improvements machinery vehicles equipment Total
BF BENEEE BERAS RE AR fit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETTR AEETR AE®TT AEETTR AE®TR AEETTR
31 December 2019 219512431A
At 31 December 2018 R2018% 124318k
and 1 January 2019: 0191818
Cost B 379,328 100,501 676,478 2,437 9,905 1,168,649
Accumulated depreciation ZiiE (18,876) (20,965) (257,293) (1,867) (4,932) (303,933)
Net carrying amount KH¥E 360,452 79,536 419,185 570 4,973 864,716
At 1 January 2019, net of R2019%1818:
accumulated depreciation TR2itE 360,452 79,536 419,185 570 4,973 864,716
Additions RE 193 856 33,811 825 862 36,547
Disposals HE = - (270) (17) (8) (295)
Depreciation provided EmTERE
during the year (10,300) (437) (211,693) (225) (1,520) (228,109)
At 31 December 2019, netof 32019128318
accumulated depreciation Mk 25HE 350,345 76,021 241,033 1,153 4,307 672,859
At 31 December 2019: R2019% 127318
Cost A 379,521 101,357 707,041 2,915 10,600 1,201,434
Accumulated depreciation ZiiE (29,176) (25,336) (466,008) (1762) (6,293) (528,575)
Net carrying amount RERE 350,345 76,021 241,033 1,153 4,307 672,859
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31 December 2019 2019412 8318

INANCIAL STATEN
Bﬁ 5

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND ‘EQUIPME.NT
(CONTINUED)

14, W% - BERSE(E)

Leasehold Plant and Motor Office  Construction
Buildings  improvements machinery vehicles equipment in progress Total
BF  EEWERE BRERES g BOR RIE EEl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
31 December 2018 2018%12831H
At 31 December 2017 and ~ H2017E12A318%
1 January 2018; 1851818
Cost KA 367,178 94,889 511,544 3,145 12,013 1,066 989,835
Accumulated depreciation ~ £3HH7& (8,305) (16,355) (121,823) (1,842) (5,397) - (153,722)
Net carrying amount FETE 358,873 78,534 389,721 1,303 6,616 1,066 836,113
At1 January 2018, netof  R2018E1818 >
accumulated depreciation B ZFNE 358,873 78,534 389,721 1,303 6,616 1,066 836,113
Additions RE 12,150 5,612 319,524 10 214 — 337,510
Transfer g3 - - - - - (1,066) (1,066)
Disposals HE - - (58,173) (388) (152) - (58,713)
Depreciation provided FRAERE
during the year (10,571) (4,610) (231,887) (355) (1,705) — (249,128)
At 31 December 2018, net of H2018%E 12318
acoumulated depreciation B ZEHTE 360,452 79,536 419,185 570 4,973 - 864,716
At 31 December 2018; H2018F 128318
Cost KA 379,328 100,501 676,478 2437 9,905 — 1,168,649
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZitHE (18,876) (20,965) (257,293) (1,867) (4.932) — (303,933)
Net carrying amount FREE 360,452 79,536 419,185 570 4973 — 864,716

As at 31 December 2018, the application for the property
ownership certificates for certain buildings of the Group with
an aggregate net carrying value of RMB360,452,000 was still
in progress. The directors of the Company are of the view
that the aforesaid matter would not affect the rights of the
Group to these assets nor have any significant impact on the
business operations of the Group. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group obtained the property ownership certificates for
certain buildings with an aggregate net carrying value of
RMB350,345,000.

At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s buildings with
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB350,345,000 (31
December 2018: Nil) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 30).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

15.

16.

GOODWILL 15. B8
31 December
12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETTT
At the beginning and end of the year: FHIRER :
Cost DN 4,108 4,108
Accumulated impairment ZERE (4,108) (4,108)
Net carrying amount REEE = —
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. HtiEFEE
31 December
12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETTT
Software B
At the beginning of the year: FH)
Cost DN 67,942 64,120
Accumulated amortisation RETEEE (32,324) (23,873)
Accumulated impairment ZEHRIE (1,788) (1,788)
Net carrying amount REFE 33,830 38,459
Carrying amount at the beginning FHREE
of the year 33,830 38,459
Additions NE 7,291 2,756
Transfer HEiR = 1,066
Amortisation provided during the year R #EE (8,535) (8,451)
Carrying amount at the end of the year FREEEE 32,586 33,830
At the end of the year: FR:
Cost B AR 75,233 67,942
Accumulated amortisation RETEEE (40,859) (32,324)
Accumulated impairment 2EHRE (1,788) (1,788)
Net carrying amount BREFE 32,586 33,830

Huifu Payment Limited ;L KX T ARAR]

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F#E#% 233



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

17. REEE QTR E

31 December

12HA31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T
Share of net assets BEFEMNSE 32,325 26,509
Goodwill on acquisition g Teolr 35,264 10,841
67,589 37,350
Provision for impairment BIEEE (12,709) (12,709)
54,880 24,641

The Group’s trade receivable and payable balances with
associates are disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements.

(a) Particulars of the Group’s associates
31 December 2019

Place and year
Name of company of registration

A B
A &3

LEAHITRBERERDT Guizhou, PRC
(“Golden Union Technical Service Co., Ltd."”) 2016
SARRINRBERRLAR HEEM2016 F
LEEREENEERAT Shanghai, PRC
("Shanghai Xunhui Network Technology Co., Ltd.") 2016
LESERRNEERAR HE 52016 F
ERBAERTREERARA Hefei, PRC 2013
("Hefei Liantuofu Digital Technology Co., Ltd.”)
AEBRERFREARAT FEEE2013F
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(a) AEEBHERTNFHR
2019612 A318

Paid-in
capital

LT e
RMB'000
ARBT R

50,000

8,889

34,248

Percentage
of ownership
interest
attributable
to the Group
REEER
WiEERR
BAl

16%

40.0001%

10%

Principal activities

Information services

ekt

Software services

BHRB

Technology development
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 17. ABERARINIRE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Particulars of the Group's associates (a) AEEBE QATNFEEE)
(Continued)
31 December 2018 20184124318
Percentage
of ownership
interest
Place and year Paid-in attributable
Name of company of registration capital to the Group ~ Principal activities
AEEEN
Bk HFE RS
NSEAH REH EHER Aol FEXE
RMB'000
AEBTT
SRARMRBEREMLT Guizhou, PRC 50,000 16%  Information services
(R EMEEANBREARAT) 2016

(“Golden Union Technical Service Co., Ltd.” Originally
“Guizhou Golden Union Data Service Co., Ltd.")

SAARMBBERERALA REEM2016F EAR%
(RIEMe B8 BREARAR])

LEEERENEARAR Shanghai, PRC 8,000 40.0001%  Software services
(“Shanghai Xunhui Network Technology Co., Ltd.") 2016
TESEBERBERAA RELE20165 N
The Group's shareholdings in the associates all comprise NEEREE SN BRI B AN T
equity shares held by the wholly-owned subsidiaries of M2 EWB AT SR, o

the Company.

(b) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial (b) TRIFRAEEMHZEARNBEHBE
information of the Group’s associates that are not HtERmEYIEEE) :

individually material:

31 December
128318
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB"000
ARE TR ARBF T

Share of the associates’ profits for 4 A/ B & A 7

the year 239 3,051
Share of the associates’ total FREGEBEQAREZE

comprehensive income for the year U zi42%8 239 3,051
Aggregate carrying amount of AEBREBERRIREDN

the Group’s investments in the FREE

associates 54,880 24,641
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 18. LA RBEMEXFABENS
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS mEE
31 December
128318
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETT
Debt investments, at fair value BERIRE AR EER 8,011 219,410
Listed equity investments, at fair value EMRAEE @ AR EER 55,929 —
Unlisted equity investments, FLEMBRAKRE -
at fair value BRAREER 23,600 23,600
87,540 243,010
Less: Current A BDER (63,940) (219,410)
Non-current JEBNHA 23,600 23,600
The above debt investments at 31 December 2019 were wealth FiR2019F 12 A3MEHMEBIKE AT
management products issued by banks in Mainland China. AHRITEITHIEMEm - ZZBEMERRS
They were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value DERUAARBEFETF ABEGNSRE
through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not E HARZEEMNAYNEAESRETIITERE
solely payments of principal and interest. REeEMABEERSHFETRK
19. LEASES 19. &
The Group as a lessee FEBEEREBEA

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant and
machinery and other equipment used in its operations. Leases
of plant and machinery generally have lease terms between 3
and 5 years. Other equipment generally has lease terms of 12
months or less and/or is individually of low value. Generally, the
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased
assets outside the Group. There are several lease contracts that
include extension and termination options and variable lease
payments, which are further discussed below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

19. LEASES (CONTINUED)

19. HE (&)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBERABAE)

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EHEEZE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets AEBNFERAELEFMENLFRNES
and the movements during the year are as follows: m

Plant and

machinery

BB & # 38

RMB’000

AR®BT T

At 1 January 2019 M2019F1A1H 192
Additions NE 19,168
Depreciation charge TERX (6,425)
At 31 December 2019 M2019%12 A31H 12,935

Lease liabilities

(b)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

HERR
BEAENEAERFAEHMT -

(b)

2019

Lease liabilities

2019

HEAE

RMB’000

AR TR

Carrying amount at 1 January ®1 A1 HRNEREE 192

New leases s 19,168
Accretion of interest recognised during FRERF BEE

the year 869

Payments (BN (7,362)

Carrying amount at 31 December K12 A31 HREREE 12,867

Analysed into: DA
Current portion BVEREE 9 6,985
Non-current portion FEENHARE 7 5,882

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities (2018: Nil) is
disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements.

HEaENIHEDM(20184F « #)R
S RRMITE 39 E -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

19. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
leases are as follows:

19.

HE(E)
AEBEREBA(E)
() RIBZBEEHRHLEMT

2019
2019 F
RMB’000
ARET T
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 869
Depreciation charge of right-of-use ERAREETERX
assets 6,425
Expense relating to short-term leases FREPHERGTHAR
and other leases with remaining 20194 12 A 31 Ak Z AR IERY
lease terms ended on or before HthHERRX (FFATTERRASL)
31 December 2019 (included in
administrative expenses) 339
Expense relating to leases of low-value HAREEBELZERENHX
assets (included in administrative (FEAITERFAR)
expenses) 439
Total amount recognised in profit or RIEZERNBSE
loss 8,072

(d) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash
outflows relating to leases that have not yet commenced
are disclosed in notes 34(c) and 35, respectively, to the
financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases part of its buildings (note 14) in Shanghai
under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised by the
Group during the year was RMB542,000 (2018:RMB4,692,000),
details of which are included in note 5 to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2019, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

(d) HERSREABENBEBHRFABOE
ENRIRD RN BIR M B|REM T
34(c) & 35 %57 ©

AEBERAEBEA
AEBRBELEHETHHBEER S LSEF
(FIzE14) - MEKRK—RERBAEIMHRFE
& WIREERMRATHAZRES - A£ER
AFEEAESIWA AR 542,00070(2018
£ ANR#4,692,0007T) © BRFBESHNE
TEMRMEES ©

2019128310 - HEAREEREEE
TH P B9 N AT B A4S 2 1 B O B OR B IR AR IR AR
BB

2019 2018

2019 % 20184

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Within one year —F R 559 542
After one year but within two years —FREMFA 73 49
632 591
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 20. EEHEEERERE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the FRELEHRBEENBENESSWNOT -
year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets EEHREEE

Temporary

difference on

unrealised

Temporary profit of
difference  intercompany

on accruals transactions

ARER S

st A REIRHEF
TRERE FirE=8 #st
RMB*000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AR® TR ARE TR

At 1 January 2018 R2018F1R1H — 1,836 1,836

Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FRFF AR FHELRE

during the year 6,983 (569) 6,414
At 31 December 2018 and 201812 831HK
1 January 2019 2019F 1 A1H 6,983 1,267 8,250

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FREIABE/(BBRFNR)H
profit or loss during the year EREMIE 7,638 (530) 7,108

At 31 December 2019 R20194612 A31H 14,621 737 15,358
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 5 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 20. FEHEEEREE(E)

(CONTINUED)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the
year are as follows: (continued)

FREEHAEEENAGBNESOT : (B)

Deferred tax liabilities EEHREEE
Fair value
adjustments
of financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss
DA nEEFE
Wit AE=R B
SREEN
AREEAR
RMB’000
ARETR
At 1 January 2018 M2018F1A1H —
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FREERNBRAEERIE
during the year 1,102
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 20184 12 A31HX 201941 A 1H 1,102
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FREERMNBRAEERIE
during the year (1,102)

At 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China
in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

20. EEHRBEEREGA)

(CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

At 31 December 2018 and 2019, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes
of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group’s fund
will be retained in Mainland China for the expansion of the
Group's operation, so it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amounts of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately RMB586,396,000 and RMB315,881,000 as at 31
December 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible for deductible
temporary differences to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefits through future taxable profits is probable.
As of 31 December 2019, the Group did not recognise deferred
assets of RMB19,459,000 (2018: RMB15,473,000), in respect
of deductible temporary differences and cumulative tax losses
amounting RMB77,834,000 (2018: RMB61,890,000), which will
expire from 2020 to 2024.

EEHEEE(E)

R2018F & 2019F 12 A31H » YRAEH
FA AR B A A ST FO B S A Bl B B TB IR A R
FE H & N FERT RO TE 0B - WARMERIEERIR ©
RATESRRE  AKENESBEFRFTE
A LA R A S B X - B 18 R R 2RZ
EMBRABIFTAEDIRZEEF - 42019
FR2018F 12 A31H  WAERIELTRIEA
BEMNSRIEETRBRINIEARINEREEE
BEEF D BI# A ARYE 586,396,000 7T & A
K #:315,881,000 7T °

fisi 48 8 £ 7B Tl 25 5 ] RE 35 4B AR 2R FE ER i v A
I AR THREREZERESERELCHIE
B E- R2019F 128310 &% B I &
ROUTFHMRERHEZBRRFAHEBEBEBEARE
77,834,0007T(20184F : A R #61,890,000
JL) FERIE L & & A R 19,459,0007t(2018
F: ARW15,473,0007T) c BEEREER
2020 FE 2024 F2H -

21. INVENTORIES 21. 78
31 December
12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREF T
Payment terminals and others AT R R B 395 392
The directors of the Company are of the view that no provision RER AAFIEERABERFTE/ERR
for inventories is needed as at the end of the year. =
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

22. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 22. EHNEERAERE
Contract assets BHEE

31 December

128318
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Contract assets derived from: BRUATSENEGNEE :

Payment services S AT AR 93,153 18,782
Provision for impairment BB R (467) (94)
92,686 18,688

The movements in provision for impairment of contract assets AMEBEREBRENESHNT

are as follows:

31 December

12A31H

2019 2018

2019 F 20184

RMB’000 RMB"000

AR®T ARETTT

At beginning of the year REH 94 —

Impairment losses recognised ERRRAEEE 373 160

Amount written off ok = (66)

At end of the year RER 467 94
The Group has applied IFRS 9's simplified approach and has NEEE D FEFACBIRR BT IS S 2RI SR 9 SR A S
calculated ECLs based on lifetime expected credit losses. The b ERIBEBEZ BAERERBRNEERER
Group has established a provision ratio of 0.5% that is based BR o REBBWI05%MBELE - It
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted RBEASENBEEABERER  THEBA

for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the BEMRIE I E R RAEIRIR T A

economic environment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEME}NTS‘

8 75 ] &< B A

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

22. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 22.

(CONTINUED)

Contract assets (continued)

Contract assets are unsecured and non-interest-bearing. The

carrying amounts of contract assets approximate to their fair

values. An ageing analysis of the contract assets as at the

end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

BHREERAE(E)

BHREE(HE)

BHREERBHEMNELE - ANEENKRHE
HBEAABERESR - RREHREZAHNE
WEERRIITWOT

31 December

12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETTT
Within one year —FR 92,618 18,674
After one year —Fi& 68 14
92,686 18,688
Contract liabilities ==
31 December
12H31H
2019 2018
2019 & 20184
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARET T
Contract liabilities derived from: BERATEENEHNEE -
Payment services T AT AR5 907 31,509
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS *
B 765 5 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

23. FACTORING ASSETS

23. REBEEE

31 December

12HA31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBF T
Gross factoring assets RIBEERTE 31,394 16,806
Provision for impairment T ERE (159) (84)
31,235 16,722

The effective interest rates of the factoring assets ranged
mainly from 9% to 34% per annum as at 31 December 2019
(31 December 2018: 13% to 44%). Management reviews and
assesses the factoring assets for impairment on a collective
basis and continues to monitor any significant changes.

The movements in provision for impairment of factoring assets
are as follows:

MR2019F 12 A31H REZEENERFF
EETENF9%E34% (20184F 12 A31 8 :
13% £ 44%) - EREEERMRTERES
ERRE  WIHEESTMERES -

REBEMREREZESNT

31 December

12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETTT
At the beginning of the year REA 84 —
Impairment losses recognised EHERBEEE 75 84
At the end of the year RER 159 84

The above provision for impairment of factoring assets is a
provision for collectively impaired factoring assets. There were
no individually impaired factoring assets at the end of each
reporting period. At the end of each reporting period, the
factoring assets were neither past due nor impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. FANFIE - RERHMMEWRFIE
RECEIVABLES

31 December

12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Receivable on behalf of clients REEPEWH A 5,520,138 5,609,867
Interest receivable FEHFI B 4,286 1,246
Deposits i 19,239 18,969
Other tax recoverable H fih AT Y B 7 18 57,460 41,530
Prepaid expenses FEREX 5,469 5,804
Others Efh 1,117 1,109
5,607,709 5,678,525
Provision for impairment EREE (248,564) (239,775)
5,359,145 5,438,750
Other receivables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have E W IR EER - TEt B REE T ERE
no fixed terms of repayment. R -
The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables HAb R R EREZSHINT

are as follows:

31 December

12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4
RMB’000 RMB"000
ARETR ARETTT
At beginning of the year REA] 239,775 227,396
Impairment losses recognised EHERBEEE 8,798 17,784
Amount written off EMiEeEE 9) (5,405)
At end of the year RER 248,564 239,775
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

25. TIME DEPOSITS 25. ERER
An analysis of the Group’s time deposits by currencies are as RNEFIREENTEHERSHTOT -
follows:

31 December

12A31H

2019 2018

2019 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T ARETTT

USD time deposits ENTEHRER 219,749 —
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of over three JREEA B 838 = (F A /Y E 3 30 7w Bi 7 00 4 A
months were neither past due nor impaired. As at 31 December HASk M (E - A 201912 A31H @ EEHH
2019, the carrying amounts of the time deposits with original Be-FANTETHEFRNERERAALEE

maturity of over three months approximated their fair values. BE o

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 26. AERBCEBYRZIRHERE

RESTRICTED CASH

31 December

12A31H

2019 2018

2019 F 2018 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBF T

Cash and bank balances & MIRITA 3,388,944 2,477,083
Non-pledged time deposits with BFARRIEA DR

original maturity of less than three =& B /R

months when acquired TEAIFER 258,118 648,540

3,647,062 3,125,623

Less: Restricted cash B R EIIR S 2,280,246 1,610,657

Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 1,366,816 1,514,966
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B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

26. RERRESEYRZRFRE

RESTRICTED CASH (CONTINUED)

Restricted cash primarily consists of client reserve fund
received on behalf of clients and amounts pledged to banks
as collateral for issuance of letters of guarantee. As at 31
December 2019 and 2018, amounts held in designated bank
accounts associated with client reserve fund amounted to
RMB2,250,075,000 and RMB1,371,216,000, respectively. As
at 31 December 2019 and 2018, restricted cash pledged to
banks as collateral for issuance of letters of guarantee and
other specified use relating to the payment business amounted
to RMB30,171,000 and RMB29,153,000, respectively. As at 31
December 2019 and 2018, time deposits pledged for long term
loans amounted to Nil and HK$240,000,000, respectively.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the major cash and bank
balances of the Group were denominated in RMB. The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the
cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair values.

(&)
ZRFARSETEZVERREPRBNESE
& RERFS R ERBAERIEERZ CHF
Ko R2019F 2201812 A31H » REF#H
NeEBEERITREFIFENSEIAIAAR
#2,250,075,0007T 2 AR#1,371,216,000
JC 5 FR2019F K2018F12A31H » (REUFZ R
FIIReREFE REMINEFRRES DA AA
R#30,171,0007t X AR#29,153,0007T °
MR2019F &2018F 128310 » LREEFIK
Y E BIF RS 5 AZ 12 240,000,000% 7T ©

M20194 % 201812 A31H » "EEWE
S MIRITEBEZUARESE - AR
BH IR EMER - RSB R HNE
EIIEHOR(EE EERMNEEERE) -
AN G B iR IR T R IE E HMNE RS R IRIT S
AR H B EMEEE

RITRSLE ARITHERNERFBH X
B o RHIE R F R IR T AR S B 2 BN A
REFENF—RBE=EATE - LIRE@ERE
HATE BT SN R BRENA B, » SRITHEERTIE R
FERIIIHYEENCTHENRT - RER
ReEEMNEREENSNERAEE -
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31 8

27. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

5 RN RE
RI|BEHR - EHENFERER B RNRE
DI

X

31 December

Less than 1 year 1R
Over 1 year 1EBE

128318
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
415,125
8,614
423,739

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
repayable within the normal operating cycle or on demand.

The fair values of trade payables as at the end of the reporting

period approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts
due to their relatively short maturity terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 75 ] &< B A

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

28. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED

29.

AND ACCRUALS

28. EMENFIE - B WiIRE R EST

HH

31 December

12A31H

2019 2018

2019 F 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB T ARET T

Payable on behalf of clients REREPEMNBIE 7,388,419 6,407,039

Payable for acquisition of buildings W BB A FE A 3B 1,556 6,970

Payable to the third parties TS = k@ 691 5,378

Deposits Ze 58,238 55,169

Deferred government grants i SE LT 5 B 19,884 16,386

Payroll and welfare payable R TE REA 91,655 79,457

Other tax payable o & AR TR SR 4,763 13,981

Accruals JEETIE B 31,283 28,349
Purchase consideration payables for JERTEE S A RIMEENRE

an associate 3,451 3,451

Others Efh 6,155 3,294

7,606,095 6,619,474

The fair values of other payables at the end of the reporting RBEH RN EMENZEN AL BELE

period approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts.

ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS

Advances from customers mainly represented the sales
proceeds received from buyers in connection with the Group’s
pre-sale of payment terminals and service fees prepaid by
customers to which related services have not been rendered at
the end of the year.

Huifu Payment Limited ;L KX T ARAR]
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. ST ERITERRHAMER
BORROWINGS
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
20195128310 2018%12A318
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
ERFIE (%) A AR¥Tr ECRiESC) HBE ARETR
Current EﬂEﬁ
Bank loans — unsecured RTED — BER 3.92-4.31 2020 132,000 4.57-5.00 2019 301,896
Bank loans — secured FIER — BER - - — 2.32 2019 188,383
Current portion of long term bank E%ﬁﬂ%?mﬁ BH5 — BER
loans — unsecured — — — 5.23 2019 10,000
Current portion of long term bank ~ REFTERNERS — BER
loans — secured 4.75 2020 36,547 4.75 2019 34,862
168,547 535,141
Non-current Eik
Bank loans — unsecured BN — BER — - - 523 2020 25,000
Bank loans — secured RTED — BER 4.75 2021-23 120,591 4.75 2020-23 157,138
120,591 182,138
289,138 717,279
Bank and other borrowings BT REMER
31 December
12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥Tx ARETIT
Repayable within one year —FAEE 168,547 535,141
Repayable in the second year F_FEE 38,315 46,547
Repayable within two to five years “ERFAERE 82,276 135,591
289,138 717,279
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

30.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Bank and other borrowings (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, all the Group's borrowings were
denominated in RMB, except for borrowings amounting
to Nil (31 December 2018: RMB188,383,000) which were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group’'s borrowings of RMB60,000,000 and
RMB104,000,000, as at 31 December 2019 and 2018,
respectively, were borrowings with a floating interest rate.

Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings amounting to
RMB157,138,000 as at 31 December 2019 (31 December
2018: Nil) were pledged by buildings of RMB350,345,000 (31
December 2018: Nil).

Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings amounting to Nil as
at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: HK$215,000,000)
were pledged by financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of Nil (31 December 2018: RMB219,410,000). Certain
of the Group’s bank borrowings amounting to Nil as at 31
December 2019 (31 December 2018: RMB192,000,000)
were pledged by restricted cash of Nil (31 December 2018:
HK$240,000,000).

The management of the Company has assessed that the fair
values of interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the fact that such borrowings
were made between the Group and independent third party
financial institutions based on prevailing market interest rates.

30. ST EHRITEARR

Hitbfa = (&)

MITRHEMERE)

MR2019F 12 A31H - XEEFT B & RT U
ANRESTE WX EE (20184 12 A 31
H : AR 188,383,0007T) LA TTEHE o

ANEBEMR2019F K2018F12A31HHIE
HABABARE60,000,0007T R AR
104,000,0007T © B Falt #5528 FIREZK -

R2019F 12 A31H - AEEE TRITER
A R %157,138,0007C(2018F 12 A31H :
## ) 125 A R# 350,345,000 7T (2018 5 12
A318 : &)1EHRRE -

M2019F12A31H - AEEIT&E (2018
£12H318 : 215,000,000 7w) BTHE
FEHUAABEFETFTABZEHNESHE
EZT/EEIE (20185F12A31H : AR
219,410,0007T) ° PA2019F12H31H * K
EEWEBITER (2018F12A8318 AR
#192,000,0007T) AXBRHIREZT (2018
#£12A318 : 240,000,00057T) 1EHIM -

L
fﬁm\ \/\EEETE EIKFI%EZ%%%\@E
BRITMIGMERANEE MBI E =7 SR
BREED -
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. K&
Shares igni)
31 December
128318
2018
20184
HK$
BT
Authorised: JETE ¢
3,800,000,000 ordinary shares of 3,800,000,000 & &%
HK$0.0001 each 0.0001 B THy Eimix 380,000 380,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
1,250,336,326 ordinary shares of 1,250,336,326 I &%
HK$0.0001 each 0.0001 8 T & & 38 Ak 125,034 125,108

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21
December 2017 with authorised share capital of HK$380,000
divided into 3,800,000,000 shares of HK$0.0001 par value
each. On its date of incorporation, 1 ordinary share of
HK$0.0001 was allotted by the Company to a subscriber, and
was transferred to PnR Holdings Limited on the same date.

On 25 December 2017, 1 ordinary share of the Company
was allotted and issued to PnR Holdings Limited with a
consideration of RMB499,867,000.

On 29 January 2018, the Company issued 1,026,199,359
ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.0001 each to PnR
Holdings Limited for a consideration of US$4,500,000.

On 15 June 2018, upon its listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the Company issued 225,263,600 new ordinary
shares with par value of HK$0.0001 each at HK$7.5 each, and
raised gross proceeds of approximately HK$1,689,477,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,384,155,000). The
respective share capital amount was approximately
RMB18,455 and share premium arising from the issuance was
approximately RMB1,384,136,000.
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ARABIR2017F12 A2 B EMR S S
BXSL 0 R TE IR AN /380,000 7T+ DR E I
52 T & /4 0.0001 7% T & 3,800,000,000 f% A%
B REAMKZBE  NARARB SR
10%0.0001 BT AL @A - RZBRHEREHR
#8327 PnR Holdings Limited ©

R2017F 128258 ARal1REBRE
& AR ¥ 499,867,000 TTHI ¥ E D B R 31T T
PnR Holdings Limited °

M201841H298 © & A 7] LA4,500,000
% 7T & ¥f {8 [MPNR Holdings Limited % 77
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Shares (continued)

During the year 2018, 429,200 shares were repurchased and
cancelled and 1,244,000 shares were repurchased but not

yet cancelled and were recognised as treasury shares at 31
December 2018.

On 7 November 2018, 41,825 shares were issued pursuant to
the exercise of pre-IPO options.

On 25 January 2019, 1,244,000 shares repurchased in 2018
were cancelled. During the year 2019, 7,610,400 shares were
repurchased and cancelled.

During the year 2019, 8,115,140 shares were issued pursuant
to the exercise of pre-IPO options.

During the year 2019, the Share Scheme Trust withheld
80,204,800 ordinary shares (2018: Nil) of the Company for
an amount of approximately HK$248 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB223 million) (2018: Nil), which had been
deducted from the equity.

During the year 2019, the Share Scheme Trust transferred
767,600 ordinary shares of the Company (2018: Nil) to the
share awardees upon vesting of the awarded shares (Note
32(e)).

Huifu Payment Limited SCF X THR2AR  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 #E#E 253

B3 (4&)

720184 » 429,200 Ak fn E B B Mo 7% 88 -
1,244,000 A% D E B RIE RFEH - RN
20184 12 A 31 BERABEFRD °

MN20184E 11 A7H - 41,825 RIRMMEREE R
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7,610,400 8% 5 B BB B M 8N -

P20194 » 8,115,140 XN E A B X A
HER BRI TR M ET

o

MR2019F - WMt &l ELRIMAR A
80,204,800 1% & i@ A% (20184 : & ) & %8
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32. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS
(a) Share options under the PnR Series B ESOP

v\'ANIALSBNE;
== Mq.ﬁi _-A_.

Plan

On 16 September 2011, the Board of Directors of PnR
Holdings Limited approved the establishment of the
PnR Series B ESOP Plan with the purpose of providing
incentives to senior management, mid-level employees
and staff contributing to the Group. The PnR Series B
ESOP Plan is valid and effective for 10 years from the
grant date. The maximum number of shares that may be
issued by all awards under the PnR Series B ESOP Plan
shall be 95,271,885 shares.

The exercise price of all granted options to senior
management, mid-level employees and staff is US$0.18
per ordinary share. 10%, 15%, 20%, 25% and 30%
of the shares subject to the options shall vested at the
first, second, third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the
Vesting Commencement Date, respectively. The Vesting
Commencement Date should be determined by grantees
for each grant agreement. The granted options have a
contractual option term of ten years. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
options in cash. The options may not be exercised until
they vest. Once vested, the vested portion of the options
may be exercised in whole or in part, at any time.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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32. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(@) Share options under the PnR Series B ESOP

Plan (continued)
Movements in the number of the share options granted

32. EREZH(R)

(a) PnR BRI ETIHRKRFE TR
IR RE(4E)
BYaREEE HREREEMETHN
EIRESE S R EINEFTEE

and their weighted average exercise prices are as follows: PN

to senior management, mid-level employees and staff

Number of share options
BREHE

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A831BLEE

Exercise price 2019 2018
THEE 2019 % 20184

At the beginning of the — RF 1]

year 95,198,235 95,271,885
Granted BRI US$0.18 — —
Exercised 217 US$0.18 (8,115,140) (41,825)
Forfeited 281 US$0.18 (711,182) (31,825)
At the end of the year RER 86,371,913 95,198,235

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, 86,371,913 and
94,968,970 outstanding options were exercisable.

The directors have used the DCF method to determine the
underlying equity fair value of the Group and adopted
the equity allocation model to determine the fair value
of the underlying ordinary shares. Key assumptions, such
as discount rates and projections of future performance,
are required to be determined by the directors with best
estimate.

M20194 % 2018412 A31H - 86,371,913
1% % 94,968,970 (% R 1T MBS AR I ] T
17 -

EFERARSNEM AL T ARE
wIRMES AR EE - WRBEAHE
R0 B AR R 0 2 o B« B8R
ERARKABHASTIZRRARES
BB TR -
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32. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(a) Share options under the PnR Series B ESOP

32. IBREZH(E)

(a) PnR BRIIETFRTETHE

Plan (continued)

Based on the fair value of the underlying ordinary shares,
the directors have used the binomial model to determine
the fair value of the share options as at the grant date.
Key assumptions are set out below:

Risk-free interest rate A L B 1 2
Volatility IR
Dividend yield B B U R

The directors estimated the risk-free interest rate based
on the yield of United States Treasury Securities with
maturity close to the option life of the share options.
Volatility was estimated at the grant date based on
the average historical volatilities of the comparable
companies with length commensurable to the time to
maturity of the share options. Dividend yield is based
on management estimation at the grant date. The total
expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
share options granted to senior management, mid-level
employees and staff were RMB14,000 and RMB180,000
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

The Group has to estimate the expected yearly
percentage of grantees that will stay within the Group
at the end of the vesting periods of the share options
(the "Expected Retention Rate”) in order to determine
the amount of the share option expense charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. As at 31 December 2019
and 2018, the expected retention rates for senior
management were assessed to be 95% and 95%,
respectively; the expected retention rates for the mid-
level employees and staff were assessed to be 90% and
90%, respectively.
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32. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(b) Share options under the PnR Series C ESOP

Plan

On 12 December 2017, the Board of Directors of PnR
Holdings Limited approved the establishment of the
PnR Series C ESOP Plan with the purpose of providing
incentives to senior management, mid-level employees
and staff contributing to the Group. The PnR Series C
ESOP Plan is valid and effective for 10 years from the
grant date. The maximum number of shares that may be
issued by all awards under the PnR Series C ESOP Plan
shall be 90,320,084 shares.

The exercise price of all granted options to senior
management, mid-level employees and staff is US$0.55
per ordinary share. 25%, 25%, 25% and 25% of the
shares subject to the option shall vested at the first,
second, third and fourth anniversaries of the Vesting
Commencement Date, respectively. The Vesting
Commencement Date should be determined by grantees
for each grant agreement. The granted options have a
contractual option term of ten years. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
options in cash. The options may not be exercised until
they vest. Once vested, the vested portion of the options
may be exercised in whole or in part, at any time.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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32. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share options under the PnR Series C ESOP
Plan (continued)
Movements in the number of the share options granted
to senior management, mid-level employees and staff
and their weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

32. ERELZBE (&)

(b) PnR CRIETFRTETHE
PR RE(48)
BRYSREEE TEEEREIMNE
PREE B S E R EMNETHTEEN
—F R

Number of share options
BREHE

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A831BLEFE

Exercise price 2019 2018
TEE 2019 F 20184
At the beginning of REH)
the year 89,335,480 90,320,084
Granted [REs{is US$0.55 — —
0.55%7T
Forfeited BRI US$0.55 (8,947,603) (984,604)
0.55%7T
At the end of the year RER 80,387,877 89,335,480

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, 80,387,877 and
66,755,459 outstanding options were exercisable,
respectively.

The directors have used the DCF method to determine the
underlying equity fair value of the Group and adopted
the equity allocation model to determine the fair value
of the underlying ordinary shares. Key assumptions, such
as discount rates and projections of future performance,
are required to be determined by the directors with best
estimate.

258 Huifu Payment Limited SCAARTARAR  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FE#RE

20194 &2018F 12 A31H * % 7l
80,387,877 i . 66,755,459 f% & 1T
FRBEARER] T1T{E ©

EFCRAReRENREEEAEE
MWREERANEE  LRAESSE
HEETFERBETERNAAEE - MR
ERARRREANELIZHRREDES
RREMFTERE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

32. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Share options under the PnR Series C ESOP

Plan (continued)

Based on the fair value of the underlying ordinary shares,
the directors have used the binomial model to determine
the fair value of the share options as at the grant date.
Key assumptions are set out below:

Risk-free interest rate 42 B ) =K
Volatility S
Dividend yield % B 25 2=

The directors estimated the risk-free interest rate based
on the yield of United States Treasury Securities with
maturity close to the option life of the share options.
Volatility was estimated at the grant date based
on average historical volatilities of the comparable
companies with length commensurable to the time to
maturity of the share options. Dividend yield is based
on management estimation at the grant date. The total
expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
share options granted to senior management, mid-
level employees and staff were RMB8,816,000 and
RMB24,538,000 for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018.

The Group has to estimate the expected retention rate
in order to determine the amount of the share option
expense charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. As at 31
December 2019 and 2018, the expected retention rate
for senior management was assessed to be 95% and
95%, respectively; the expected retention rate for the
mid-level or below employees was assessed to be 90%
and 90%, respectively.

32. EREZH(R)

(b) PnR CRIIETHRFTEITHE

B ()
REEBEBRNDABE EFEE
FA = BB B R B AR A IR L B B
RAEE - EBBRAFMT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3108LEE

2019 2018
2019 & 20184
2.39% 2.39%

34% 34%

0% 0%

ERIREEEEE (L BT RERNIE
BRAE A ) My ek RAGFTER R F X o
IR BRIETELRA AN
FHBEREMAER - HEERENE
HERAE - REMERTIRERZEL
HEMEEENMTET - 822019
FN2018F 12 A31HILFE @ Bigd
BakEMEARERTERNE TS
HERE FERERERBEIMNEREDN
M H A AREER,816,0007T M AR
24,538,000 7 ©

REBEBGEFTIERBEER  LEBETRE
A i85 R H th 2 U 7 F0 bR /O BB AR 4
X & %8 - R20194F & 20184F 12 A
31H  SREEENEHETEMTS
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32. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(c) Share options under the PnR Series D (c) PnR DRIIETHRTETHE
ESOP Plan ]
On 20 January 2018, the Board of Directors of PnR #2018 1 A20H ' PnR Holdings
Holdings Limited approved the establishment of the LimtedEE SR/ EXNLETERNABARE
PnR Series D ESOP Plan with the purpose of providing EELERNESREREE  "EREER
incentives to senior management, mid-level employees B TIRMEAER PNR D RXF B THKET
and staff contributing to the Group. The PnR Series D Zl-PnR DRJIEIHKRTE GHER
ESOP Plan is valid and effective for 10 years from the HRREAERN - BER A+ - BIEPNR D
grant date. The maximum number of shares that may be RN E THMRETEI A 321TH 2 2P EEN AR
issued by all awards under the PnR Series D ESOP Plan HEEAEHE 5116,331,968 % ©

shall be 116,331,968 shares.

The exercise prices of 80% and 20% granted options to EYfefeErEE fEEENMEIN
senior management, mid-level employees and staff are 80% K 20% B ENITEREN AT
US$0.7846 and HK$7.50 per ordinary share, respectively. A% I3 A% 0.7846 3 T )2 7.508 T » BE
55%, 20%, 20% and 5% of the shares subject to the PEHETE N 55% ~ 20% ~ 20% [ 5% A%
options shall vest when certain vesting conditions are MERE TEHBIRITERIESRE - ER
met. The granted options have a contractual option term FHERENSNBRESRRAETF -
of ten years. The Group has no legal or constructive AREFETEAR S EO L EEREN
obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash. EERMEERT - BABEREEZINE
The options may not be exercised until they vest. BRITE - REE ERENEBID
Once vested, the vested portion of the options may be A RERE B 2R B D 1TIE ©

exercised in whole or in part, at any time.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to BBREY R FHAE AESRE SN
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. BAE HIEZRER -
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32. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS 32. IBRELZH(E)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Share options under the PnR Series D
ESOP Plan (continued)

Movements in the number of the share options granted
to senior management, mid-level employees and staff
and their weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

(c) PnR DRIETHFRTETHE

Bt (&)

RTaRERE TEEEREINE
BREHEEHRAMETFHITEEN
T

Number of share options
BREHE

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A831BLEE

Exercise price 2019 2018
THEE 2019 % 20184
At the beginning of R F 1)
the year 116,331,968 —
Granted [REsqsw US$0.7846 or
HK$7.50 = 116,331,968
0.7846 F T
7.50% 7T
Forfeited 281 US$0.7846 or
HK$7.50 (279,196) —
0.7846 FE L3
7.50% 7T
At the end of the year RER 116,052,772 116,331,968

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, 86,969,779 and
63,982,581 outstanding options were exercisable,
respectively.

The directors have used the DCF method to determine the
underlying equity fair value of the Group and adopted
the equity allocation model to determine the fair value
of the underlying ordinary shares. Key assumptions, such
as discount rates and projections of future performance,
are required to be determined by the directors with best
estimate.

MR20194F &2018F 12 A31H o Hl
86,969,779 % % 63,982,581 % K 1T
FRIEEARAER] F1T(E ©

ExCRARERENREEELAEE
MEBAEREAAEE TRAERSEK
BABTHARETBERNAAEBE - MR
ERARKRREAEFANELIZBRRAMES

R EMFTERE
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32. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Share options under the PnR Series D
ESOP Plan (continued)

Based on the fair value of the underlying ordinary shares,
the directors have used the binomial model to determine
the fair value of the share options as at the grant date.
Key assumptions are set out below:

Risk-free interest rate 1 3 ez A1) 2
Volatility 5&’@
Dividend yield SRS

The directors estimated the risk-free interest rate based
on the yield of United States Treasury Securities with
maturity close to the option life of the share options.
Volatility was estimated at the grant date based
on average historical volatilities of the comparable
companies with length commensurable to the time to
maturity of the share options. Dividend yield is based
on management estimation at the grant date. The total
expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
share options granted to senior management, mid-
level employees and staff were RMB12,300,000 and
RMB46,082,000 for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018.

The Group has to estimate the expected retention rate
in order to determine the amount of the share option
expense charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. As at 31
December 2019, the expected retention rate for senior
management was assessed to be 95%,; the expected
retention rate for the mid-level or below employees was
assessed to be 90%.
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32. IBREZH(E)

(c) PnR DRI ETHERFTETHE

R ()
REBEEREEBRNAAEE  EFC
ER-EABRAEEBRENR LA
O RAAEE - T2EREREIFIWT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

2019 2018
2019 & 20184
2.64% 2.64%
34% 34%
0% 0%

EEIREEEREE(H B G IR R IE AR 4
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B Th R B BRI AT B LA B/
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E%ﬁﬁﬁm%##m HE20194
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32. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(d) Replacement of the PnR ESOP Plans

(e)

The PnR Series B ESOP Plan, PnR Series C ESOP Plan and
PnR Series D ESOP Plan are collectively called the PnR
ESOP Plans.

On 20 January 2018, the Company’s board of directors
approved to adopt the Huifu ESOP Plans to substitute
the PnR ESOP Plans. The Huifu ESOP Plans will come into
effect upon the termination of the PnR ESOP Plans and,
together with the PnR ESOP Plans, are a total package
and arrangement for the employees and management
of PnR Holdings Limited. All key items in the Huifu ESOP
Plans are the same as those in the PnR ESOP Plans and
therefore such arrangement was accounted for as a share
option replacement.

Share award scheme

On 28 May 2019, the board of directors considered and
approved certain key terms of a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”). The objectives of the
Share Award Scheme are to recognize and motivate
the contributions by the employees and give incentives
thereto in order to retain them, as well as to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the Group.
The Scheme will be valid and effective for a term of
4 years commencing from the effective date, which is
subject to the finalization of the Share Award Scheme.
The shares in the share pool under the Scheme will be
purchased from the secondary market. The maximum
amount of the fund to be contributed by the Company
for purchasing the shares is set at RMB400,000,000. At
no time shall the trustees be holding more than 10%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue
under the Scheme.

32. EREZH(R)

(d) BMXPnREIER:TE

(e)

PnR B %I & THAR5TE] - PNR CRJIE
TR 21 PR D %5 B T2
SKIBAPNR E TR -

R20185F1H208 ARAEFTEH
R Huifu B TR ARET BB PR &
TH TS - HuifuB T#H R 8B 5
PnRE T ARFHEIR b8 E%k - BHE
[F PnR 8 TR 5t 2B 5 PnR Holdings
Limited /2 B R EEE K 2 R & =
BE o Huifu ETRREINMEEEIER
HEPNR B THARFTEIER - Btz
HrR R R BRI KT E -

B% 17 S R ot &l

MR2019F5H288 EF @ E Mt
R SEE R EI([ IR EE R 8 &
FEZER - ROEEFTENBEZ AR
] Rt E 8 FTiE R Bl R IR 52 E) LA 3
BHEE  URARSIEEAS NE—F
BEAREBERNERE - ZiTEBHERA
B TR0 BB AT 2 M & AR TE ) B AT
AFRNERREBSN - &gl T2 &
MEFRRNEE —ATMERE - AR
AREERODBLENGSEBEAA
R # 400,000,000 7T ° R#ZEFEIT > %
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32. SHARE OPTION ARRANGEMENTS 32 BRAETEE(

&)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Share award scheme (continued) (e) RiEEENFTEI(E)
Movements in the number of awarded shares for the year HZE2019F 12 A31HILEE - EEIKR

ended 31 December 2019 is as follows:

31 December

2019
20195
12HA31H

At beginning of the year REH] =
Granted and vested EREMERE 15,330,416
Vested and exercised ERBNMEITE (767,600)
At end of the year RER 14,562,816
Vested but not exercised as at the end ERFRBBERITE

of the year 14,562,816
The fair value of the awarded shares was calculated BEIRMD B AR BEIIEARNBRKRDRN
based on the market price of the Company’s shares at BEEHBENTHEE -

the respective grant date.

The weighted average fair value of awarded shares HZE2019F 12 A3 HFEER NS
granted during the year ended 31 December 2019 was B IEEH AR BEAETK2.8478
HK$2.84 per share (equivalent to approximately RMB2.55 T(EERLERARK2555T) o

per share).
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33. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents share premium of the
Company. Details of the movement in capital reserve
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the
articles of association of the subsidiaries established in
Mainland China, the Group is required to appropriate
10% of its net profits after tax, as determined under the
Chinese Accounting Standards, to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of its
registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of
association of the Group, the statutory surplus reserve
may be used either to offset losses, or to be converted
to increase share capital provided that the balance after
such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be used for
purposes other than those for which it is created and is
not distributable as cash dividends.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 5 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 8
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) FEFBERS
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to Eﬁq , Z]SE I?ﬁﬁ%&%& RS ﬁﬁ&
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB19,168,000
and RMB19,168,000, respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for plant and equipment (2018: Nil)

EREREBERME

=) E\J/\Eﬁ%m,mg,oow@&/\ﬁﬁ%
19,168,000 7T (2018 4F : &) o

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities

(b) BEFBFELRERD

Interest-
bearing
bank and Due to
other Lease related
borrowings liabilities companies
FEBRTR BE 1 RE B
H {th {5 5K HESE A BIFRIE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR%T T AR¥T T
At 1 January 2018 7R2018F 1 A1H 415,315 — 491,689
Changes from financing REEBMEENED
activities 301,964 — (491,689)
At 31 December 2018 72018412 A31H 717,279 — —
Effect of adoption of AN EIPR B 7 5 2 Al
IFRS 16 F16RONTE — 192 —
At 1 January 2019 720191 H1H
(restated) (&&EY)) 717,279 192 —
Changes from financing BB RBFTE £
activities oy (428,141) (6,493) —
New leases MEE = 19,168 =
Interest expense k=N — 869 —
Interest paid classified as  DHEAKEHEESREN
operating cash flows ERHE = (869) =
At 31 December 2019 720194 12 A31H 289,138 12,867 —
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 34. MEBRERERMWE(E)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERESARLHEEE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the HABRSREENMAER S REEEDN
statement of cash flows is as follows: T

2019

2019 £

RMB’000

AR¥T

Within operating activities KEEBN 1,647

Within financing activities BEEEA 6,493

8,140

35. COMMITMENTS 35. &IE

(a) At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not (a) RIREEIKR - ANEEY B EARE -

have any significant commitments.

(b) Operating lease commitments as at 31 (b) R2018F12A31MH KL=
December 2018 Ak
The Group leased certain of its office properties under AREBRBEEESHETHHAEETHA
operating lease arrangements, negotiated for terms W mTHBA1E5F AR
of 1 to 5 years with an option for renewal after the RIBBREBER  KEMEGERHBAE
end of lease terms, at which time all terms could be HEE -

renegotiated.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future R2018%F 12 A31 8 » AEERIEATA
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable B ZEHE AT N2 A KRBE L RIEE
operating leases falling due as follows: BT -

31 December
2018
20184
12H31H
RMB'000
AREFTT

Within one year —F R 864
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEERF(REEERERST) 132

996
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 765 5 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. B SR 5
(1) Name and relationship (1) BBKREBEE
Name of related party Relationship with the Group
BT BB HEAKEME R
PnR Holdings Limited The then shareholder
BRRR
Mr. ZHOU Ye Management personnel
&I 5 EREAE
Mr. LIU Gang Management personnel
2188 % 4 EEAE
Ms. MU Hai Jie Management personnel
BERRt EBAE
CARARMREEREEAF Associate
(“Golden Union Technical Service Co., Ltd.") EEA
PESERERBRERQA Associate
(“Shanghai Xunhui Network Technology Co., Ltd.”)  HZA
LESEABHRAERAT Company controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
(“Yisou Business Consulting Co., Ltd.”) influenced by management personnel
MERASES - HFREZEHRENSERZ B A
EHEMESHEERRAR Company controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
(“PnR Finance Ltd.”) influenced by management personnel
HEBASES - HFREHRENERZEHDF)
EEEMRHER AT Company controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
(“Shanghai PnR Technology Co., Ltd.”) influenced by management personnel
MERABES - HEEHSENERZEHD A
EXHERE (LE) BRAF Company controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
(“Hui Fu Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.”) influenced by management personnel
HERABES - HRZEHRENERZ BN A
EEEREEEEREBRAR Company controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
(*Shanghai Huateng Data Information Technology influenced by management personnel
Co., Ltd.”) HEBASES - HRZEHLEMNERZEHDF)
FBERSEERBRAF Company controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
(“Shanghai Huateng Intellect System Co., Ltd.”) influenced by management personnel
HERASES - KEEHRENERZEN AT
BRRE M (E8) BRAF Company controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
(“Huifu Network Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.”) influenced by management personnel
HERABES - HREHRENERZEH R A
HEEMEEEREARA A Company controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
(*Shanghai PnR Investment Management Co., Ltd.”) influenced by management personnel
HERASES - HREHIENERZEHD A
FBENREEERBARAT Company controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
(“Shanghai PnR Kangning Information Technology influenced by management personnel
Co., Ltd.") mEEABES - HEZEGIRENERFZEN DA
FEMNEET SRR ER AR Company controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
(“Bund Wealth Financial Services Co., Ltd.”) influenced by management personnel
HERABEY - HEEHSENERZEHN DA
EEEM B RMTERA A Company controlled, jointly controlled or significantly

(“Shanghai PnR Information Technology Co., Ltd.”) ~ influenced by management personnel
MERABES - REESIIENERFZEN QA
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BB A X5 ()
(CONTINUED)
(2) Significant related party transactions (2) EXBHAERXS
The following transactions were carried out with related AR EFEE RN T ETHRZNT ¢
parties during both years:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2019 2018
201945 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETFT
Advances to management personnel BEEASELHBR
Mr. LIU Gang bl ke = 42,210
Ms. MU Hai Jie BERat = 42,210
Repayment of advances to EBABEEBEN
management personnel
Mr. ZHOU Ye T e 5 A — 219,576
Mr. LIU Gang 285t & — 56,521
Ms. MU Hai Jie BERLt = 56,521
Advances to related companies BB A B ME B
Shanghai Xunhui Network LESERERBRERAR
Technology Co., Ltd. 77 —
Repayment of advances to related BHATEERR
companies
Shanghai PnR Investment Management FEENREERERAR
Co., Ltd. — 138,338
Hui Fu Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. EXREHEE(LB)AERAA = 102,936
Bund Wealth Financial Services Co., Ltd.  F/EINEZH ¢ RRBEER
NG| — 92,072
Shanghai PnR Kangning Information FEENEZEREERBER
Technology Co., Ltd. NG| — 500
Repayment of advances to the then HERREEZHN
shareholder
PnR Holdings Limited PnR Holdings Limited = 605
Advances from related companies BH LR BN
Huifu Network Technology (Shanghai) BEMEEM( L) BRAT
Co., Ltd. = 388,234
Repayments of advances from related BEEHARBR
companies
Huifu Network Technology (Shanghai) BEEEEN(E8)BRAR
Co., Ltd. — 879,423
Yisou Business Consulting Co., Ltd. B SEREEAAERAT — 500
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(2) Significant related party transactions (2)

(Continued)
The following transactions were carried out with related
parties during both years: (continued)

HEBRRRE
SEREARE(LB)ARAF
LEENESHERRRA
LBEMEERMARAR

Sales of goods or services
Hui Fu Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.
PnR Finance Ltd.
Shanghai PnR Information Technology
Co., Ltd.
Bund Wealth Financial Services Co., Ltd.  EEINEEE & RREAR
NG
FESEARBAABRAR
FEEREREERRAR

Yisou Business Consulting Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Huateng Data Information

Technology Co., Ltd. NG

Shanghai Huateng Intellect System Co.,  HBERZEZAERAF
Ltd

Shanghai PnR Investment Management FEENKREERERAR

Co., Ltd.
Shanghai PnR Technology Co., Ltd. LBEAREBERAR
Golden Union Technical Service Co., Ltd. ¢ BARMREEREETAF
Shanghai Xunhui Network Technology FESEMEMEAERAR
Co., Ltd.

Rental income HEWA
Hui Fu Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. SERBEHE(LB)ARAR
Shanghai Huateng Intellect System Co.,  b/BZEEEEZGAER LT

Ltd.

Shanghai Huateng Data Information FEERERESRBAR
Technology Co., Ltd. NG|

Shanghai PnR Investment Management FBENREERERAT
Co., Ltd.

PnR Finance Ltd. FEENESHERRAR

Golden Union Technical Service Co., Ltd. £ HARMBEERSEAR

Bund Wealth Financial Services Co., Lid.  E/EINBEHLRREER
NG

Purchases of goods or services BEERRRE
Golden Union Technical Service Co., Ltd. ¢ BHARMKREERETAA
Shanghai PnR Technology Co., Ltd. FEERREERAR
Hui Fu Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. EEREHE(LB)ARAR
Shanghai Xunhui Network Technology HESEREREERAR
Co., Ltd.

Note: These transactions were carried out in accordance with the

terms and conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved.
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36. BB AL X5 (&)

EXRBBMLRE (E)

R EFE BRI ETHORZIT

(#8)

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLFE

2019

2019 %

RMB’000
ARETR

63
108

14

181

122

31
281

55,125

6,585

266

Wik RERSRES

R ARIFHETT -

2018
20184
RMB'000
ARET T

1,025
923

591

326
235

232
232
164
101

56

50

2,202
707
707
536
200
121
111

99,817

2,466
280
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BB A X5 ()
(CONTINUED)
(3) Outstanding balances with related parties (3) EEEAEE TS BV RET AR
31 December
128318
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETTT
Due from related companies: PEWBEER A T FKIE ¢
Non trade-related: FESHEB :
Shanghai Xunhui Network S EMEERR
Technology Co., Ltd. BRAF] 77 —
77 —
Due from related companies: PEWBEEE A FIKIE ¢
Trade-related: B S MHE
Shanghai Xunhui Network TEESEMEEEEER
Technology Co., Ltd. A 191 59
Golden Union Technical Service ®AA KRG ER
Co., Ltd. BEERQA 23 —
214 59
Due to related companies: PETBAEE A RIFRIH ¢
Trade-related: EZHE
Golden Union Technical Service ® B8 A KR ER
Co., Ltd. HEAR 3,858 5,856
Shanghai PnR Technology Co., EBEMNBEAERAT
Ltd. 426 426
Hui Fu Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. ZZ2®&EHE( E)
BRAAE 6,980 —
Shanghai Xunhui Network FESERABRR
Technology Co., Ltd. AR AT 274 —
11,538 6,282
Balances with the above related parties were unsecured, Bt SR EEE T E R
non-interest-bearing and had no fixed repayment terms. & E S E o
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31 December 2019 2019412 831 H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS‘
(CONTINUED)

(4) Compensation of key management 4) AXEEFTEEEAEME :
personnel of the Group:

31 December

12A31H
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBT T
Short-term employee benefits REEERA 7,659 6,289
Equity-settled share option expense BAREZS 45 & ) B IR HERT 2 12,866 46,622
Pension scheme contributions RIKEET B 486 392
Total compensation paid to key MEZEREABLZNH
management personnel FEN 21,011 53,303
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in EHAEZHE— L BRRI R
note 9 to the financial statements. FIFE9 ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

37. ¢RiTHESE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

31 December 2019

RBEPR  SHEEHMTEANEREEAT :

2019 12A31H

Financial
assets at
amortised cost

BRERF
STENEREE
RMB'000
AR¥T R

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss
NAREER
AR ARE
HeMEE
RMB'000
ARETR

&%
RMB'000
ARBT R

Financial assets tREE
Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATERTFIE - 4 R E b Y UE

deposits and other receivables (note 24)  H14 BEE (i3 24) 5,296,216 — 5,296,216
Financial assets at fair value through profit IAR 4 BETEWTABRENEE

or loss (note 18) BE(HE18) = 87,540 87,540
Contract assets (note 22) BHERE (M 22) 92,686 — 92,686
Factoring assets (note 23) RIEBEE (M 23) 31,235 - 31,235
Due from related companies (note 36) JE Uk BB B A (P 5 36) 291 — 291
Time deposits (note 25) EEBER(ME25) 219,749 — 219,749
Restricted cash (note 26) X HIHEE (3T 26) 2,280,246 - 2,280,246
Cash and cash equivalents (note 26) Re kAL EEM(ME26) 1,366,816 = 1,366,816

9,287,239 87,540 9,374,779
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. €mTESE(E&)

(CONTINUED)
HLELTE]
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
Erg: £ )OS
FTENEREE &&t
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AR T
Financial liabilities sHmas
Trade payables (note 27) Z S e A (HEE27) 242,115 242,115
Contract liabilities (note 22) ahaE(E22) 907 907
Financial liabilities included in other FTAHMBENFIE - 2 HiES
payables, deposits received and LEFTIEENSREE
accruals (note 28) (Ft7E28) 7,455,059 7,455,059
Lease liabilities HEBE 12,867 12,867
Interest-bearing bank and other ETRRIT R EMER(FIEE30)
borrowings (note 30) 289,138 289,138
Due to related companies (note 36) JE A< BB~ B 3B (M FE 36) 11,538 11,538

8,011,624 8,011,624
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 TO FINANCIAL S°

B1 75 % 55 I 3

31 December 2019 20194 12

(CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RER SESRTANKREENT :
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
31 December 2018 2018% 12 A31H
Financial assets
Financial at fair value
assets at through
amortised cost profit or loss Total
WAREE
REHEKA  HETFARR
FREE HEeREE A&t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT ARBETT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets included in SABMRIE - ke REMER
prepayments, deposits and other HERSMEE (ME24)
receivables (note 24) 5,391,416 — 5,391,416
Financial assets at fair value through AR A EBEFT 2 ABZ
profit or loss (note 18) M& & E(ME18) — 243,010 243,010
Contract assets (note 22) BHEE(MF22) 18,688 — 18,688
Factoring assets (note 23) RIZEEE (fI5E 23) 16,722 — 16,722
Due from related companies (note 36) &Y EFRE X 715008 (P55 36) 59 — 59
Restricted cash (note 26) XEHIRS (K5 26) 1,610,657 — 1,610,657
Cash and cash equivalents (note 26) R4 RIREHEY (ML 26) 1,514,966 — 1,514,966

8,552,508 243,010 8,795,518
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

37. £ I ASE(E)

(CONTINUED)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
REER AL
SREE Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETF T AREF T
Financial liabilities tHaE
Trade payables (note 27) 2 S MEN BB (H3E27) 423,739 423,739
Contract liabilities (note 22) aHar‘E(HE22) 31,509 31,509
Financial liabilities included in other payables, s AHMEMZIE - YIRS L JE
deposits received and accruals (note 28) SHEEMSREE T 28) 6,477,850 6,477,850
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 588817 M E 4 (& 5 (K5 30)
(note 30) 717,279 717,279
Due to related companies (note 36) < B R /A ) 0A (B E 36) 6,282 6,282
7,656,659 7,656,659

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 38.
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

eSS

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: T

31 December 2019

20194 12A31H

EMIEAABERAIAEEE

BREMEEAAEESERAEZEMIA
Sh - AEBEERTANKREERAABEN

Carrying
amounts Fair values
REE AREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥TR
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at fair value through AR EBEFENETAEBRZD
profit or loss (note 18) CRVEE(MMEE18) 87,540 87,540
Financial liabilities cHmAas
Interest-bearing bank borrowings TRIRITER
(note 30) (B7E30) 289,138 289,588
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

38. M TAQMREBERAANEERE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
31 December 2018

R ()

20184 12A31H

Carrying
amounts Fair values
FREE ARfEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTT
Financial assets cREE
Financial assets at fair value through AR EBEFETFTABRZD
profit or loss (note 18) erEE M 18) 243,010 243,010
Financial liabilities A =R
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AT EIRTITHE R
(note 30) (K$3E30) 717,279 718,272
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and %E@EEEWEIE%&EEAﬁﬁm - Z PR &IIE
cash equivalents, restricted cash, financial assets included & EFABNRUE - & %&ﬁﬁ\mﬁ’iuﬁl KIEH) &

in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, amounts
due from related companies,
shareholder, amounts due from management personnel,
contract assets, factoring assets, financial liabilities included in
other payables, deposits received and accruals, amounts due

amounts due from the then

to related companies, trade payables and contract liabilities
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the chief
finance officer is responsible for determining the policies
and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly
to the chief financial officer and the board of directors. At
each reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with the
board of directors twice a year for annual financial reporting.

BMEE - F’ﬂﬂz%@ﬂﬁ%@ TR WU B IR R R
H FEH&A@/\,%E’( CAWMEBE REA
B T ARAMENFE EH&Z&i&Fg ERGEE!
MERAE  BNREBAR B S IER K
IE&/E'\?&"JEEHEEGEEWEE : E&EZ%I,&E’\]
AABEEEREEABES

AEECEBEBFRPHRERE AEE
EEMTAAABEMEZBREEF - b
MEEGEENMBAENREETSRE - RNE
BERH CEREEGOMERTIAZER
BPRETERANGEZ ZTERARIE - &
LM REEERILE - SERFEMBR
SHREZSUHERFRERETRANS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices. The fair values of unlisted equity
investments designated at fair value through profit or loss
have been estimated using a market-based valuation technique
based on assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the directors
to determine comparable public companies (peers) based
on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and to calculate an
appropriate price multiple, such as enterprise value to earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (“EV/
EBITDA”) multiple and price to earnings (“P/E”) multiple, for
each comparable company identified. The multiple is calculated
by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable company by
an earnings measure. The trading multiple is then discounted
for considerations such as illiquidity and size differences
between the comparable companies based on company-specific
facts and circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied
to the corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted equity
investments to measure the fair value. The directors believe that
the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation technique
are reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values
at the end of the reporting period.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent
wealth management products issued by banks in Mainland
China. The Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted
investments by using a discounted cash flow valuation model
based on the market interest rates of instruments with similar
terms and risks.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 38. M TAQMREBERAANEERE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy AREBEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRIRAEBEMTIEANDABENEE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: [
Assets measured at fair value: BRAnBEFENAE
As at 31 December 2019 R2019512A831H

Fair value measurement using
RAUTHENDABEENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(S R)) (=) (Level 3)

RIBBTE EATEE  EXFURE
ZHE BAE LN |
(F—B&) (E=B#&) (B=E®R)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT ARBTR

Financial assets at fair value through AR A EBEST 2 ABR
profit or loss HEeREE 55,929 8,011 23,600

As at 31 December 2018 7A2018F12A31H

Fair value measurement using

RRATEBENAABERE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

N R EWNGIE BERPAEHE
B BAE BAE
(B—ER) (BEZEHR) (B=EBH)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

Financial assets at fair value through AR BEETABREN

profit or loss TREE — 219,410 23,600
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair A2019Fs(2018%F 12 A31H » AEBE I &
value as at 31 December 2019 or 2018. TR BEFENEHEE -
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the reporting period, there were no transfers of fair
value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
liabilities.

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

As at 31 December 2019

38. TR TAARBERAABERE
HESAC Y

DREEER(E)

RBEEA - REREERAENS - AAME
BHAEIRTBRNE-—BRARE _EREE
o PEGAREHEZER -

N

ARBEESHENEE

M2019%12831H

Fair value measurement using
RRAUTHENAABEENE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

& BT 5 EXUER  EXFURE
ZHE BAE LN :|
(F—EBR) (F=FE#&) (F=ER)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AR®TR AR®TR

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRBRITER(EE30)
(note 30)

— 289,588 —

As at 31 December 2018

M2018F12831H

Fair value measurement using

REATEBNAAEEHE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

NE N ANE BERABE BEATAHE
2B BAE BAE

(F—EH) (BB (5=B#&)
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBETT ARBTT

Interest-bearing bank borrowings ETRSRITER(EE30)
(note 30)

— 718,272 —
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 2 P o

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include cash
and bank balances, restricted cash, contract assets, factoring
assets, other receivables, contract liabilities, trade payables and
other payables, which arise directly from its operations. The
Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, amounts due to related
companies and amounts due from related companies. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Generally,
the Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk
management. To keep the Group’s exposure to these risks at
a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The
board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to risk for changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-

(a)

bearing bank and other borrowings set out in note 30.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments
to hedge interest rate risk. The Group manages its
interest cost using variable rate bank borrowings and
other borrowings.

If the interest rate of bank and other borrowings had
increased/decreased by 1% and all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax of the Group, through
the impact on floating rate borrowings, would have
decreased/increased by approximately RMB600,000 and
RMB1,040,000 for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018, respectively.

39.

BEEEERERBEER

AEENIZEMTATEBERSNRITHE
# XBRHRE  AHNEE  REEE - Eft
FEURIR - AHAE  EFREMNKAREME

R DEEEBEREL - AEEEAHE
themEERBE W BRITREMER
FE AT B X B SRR B R W R B 8 )

/N

EMIATZANERTEBZEREEE

GIIE © % E

$E@%HQIEF$E’J£KH = VAESE
sERKRLADESRR - AEEBEHEAR
—?%ﬁﬁ%;&ﬁﬂ’*”fﬁ RTEAEEEERDOZ
SRR ERE - ANEE & ERTAITER
Hih TAAMES R AE - REEN I A
TTESRIAFEERS - EEEMKEA
BERBMERR 2 BE - Sam T

(a) FEEER
AEEEBNTISHEL @R EER

REEGSIRTT R E A& 57 A B8 (H KT
FE30) c AEEVEKATESRIEA
R KRR o REBKATSBRITHE
R H AR R IR E K BB ©

HE 20194 20185124318 IF F
o BRITREMEROFE EH T
1% MATBEMESRITTE - 8
BBRHZEMERELEFYE AEEH
FATFE & D RlE > mi ARE
600,000 7T &2 AR ¥ 1,040,000 7T °

Huifu Payment Limited SCAATAR2AF  ANNUAL REPORT 2019 FE# &

281



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the inability or

39. BIKEBEERBERBX(E)

(b) FERR
DAH@% 07 AR TR R

unwillingness of a counterparty to meet its contractual
obligations. The Group has no concentrations of credit
risk in view of its large number of customers.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which mainly comprise restricted cash, other receivables,

HA ?’JETEFEE’JEEETEHKW o ERAE
EHEAERERF  HIBEHEERR

FEENEMEREE(XE &%%BE%U
A EMFELI%AIE&FEH&@ - NE]

5 2 A)

and amounts due from related companies, arises from TB)H ;f‘f MEEREFTNHED @ &
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure KNEBRENRZETEMNERE -
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.
(c) Liquidity risk (c) RBELRK
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between REBREEZERF A BIRITREAE

continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. Cash flows

are closely monitored on an ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as

at the end of the reporting period, based on contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

On demand
REREER
RMB’000
AR%TR

31 December 2019

20195 12A31H

Less than

3 months
TEB3EA
RMB'000
AR%T R

o ERESTEETHEE R ZHNF
& REeREFD THEZTYIMET -

REREWRR - ARERBESHRMEA
Rz eaEzBMERwT

3 to 12
months
3Z128A
RMB‘000
AR®TR

Total
At

Over 1 year
BiB1F
RMB'000
ARBT T

RMB’000
ARBTR

Lease liabilities HEARE - 3,203 4,462 7,097 14,762
Interest-bearing bank and  FEHRITREMIER

other borrowings — 12,222 167,613 143,066 322,901
Trade payables BHENHE 242,115 — — — 242,115
Contract liabilities BHNEE 907 = = = 907
Financial liabilities included T AEMEMNFE - B

in other payables, Wize RIEFTIEE /)

deposits received and SRERE

accruals 7,455,059 — — — 7,455,059
Due to related companies  FEfT BB A BIFUE 11,538 = = = 11,538

7,709,619 15,425 172,075 150,163 8,047,282
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31 December 2019 20194 12 A

o G
39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REBELRER(E)
Less than 3to 12
On demand 3 months months  Over 1 year Total
REKER TEB3EA 3E12MA il F it

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT  ARBTT AR%TT ARBTT ARETR

31 December 2018 201812 A31A
Interest-bearing bank and #8817 R EMEH

other borrowings — 65,896 488,194 222,232 776,322
Trade payables BIENFTE 423,739 - - - 423,739
Contract liabilities A 31,509 - - — 31,509
Financial liabilities included T A EN FIE -

in other payables, Bz REFTRE

deposits received and okar=y=Vi

accruals 6,477,850 — — — 6,477,850
Due to related companies  [E{T BB A A1 ZUE 6,282 — — — 6,282

6,939,380 65,896 488,194 222,232 7,715,702
(d) Capital management (d) EXER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital AEEBEAEENTEERREELRSE
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to BEREEENEN  #IEEENERL
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy RS HEEELBEREEERAL

capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes AREFEEREHEEARRELW FEELEAMRT
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic HEMELFE - AEFIABREARAR
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the o AEETREgRARMRRELOR
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, BAFE - MREREERKBEITHR

return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The
Group includes, within net debt, interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, trade payables, contract liabilities,
other payables, deposits received and accruals and
amounts due to related companies less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital represents equity attributable to
owners of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of
the years were as follows:

(d)

39. BHEREEERRIK(E)

EXEE(E)
AEEBRBERNAGBH RERER &
AERERABFERAREARAN LS
BEFREZM - REFEN A BFRIER
BRITREMENR BHENFIE &
HaE - HMENFTIE - BBk KIE
AEAREMNEBARFIBERERER
ReFZEW EAXASHEYRARESRA
Gz MEFRNERABELEN
™

31 December

12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREFT
Trade payables B S FIA 242,115 423,739
Contract liabilities aHEE 907 31,509
Other payables, deposits received  EfERIE - BlkiLE
and accruals K EETIER 7,606,095 6,619,474
Interest-bearing bank and other TRRIT R EMER
borrowings 289,138 717,279
Due to related companies JEAST BE S N B FRA 11,538 6,282
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B REMREEEY (1,366,816) (1,514,966)
Net debt BEFR 6,782,977 6,283,317
Equity attributable to owners of the &R AEA AREEEZS
parent 2,063,376 1,979,344
Capital and net debt BEARARBEFE 8,846,353 8,262,661
Gearing ratio EXRBELE 77% 76%
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40.

41.

1 December 2019 2019412,

-To FINANCIAL S
% R R MY 5 b

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There are no material events subsequent to 31 December
2019 which would affect the Group’s operating and financial
performance as of the date of this annual report.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  41.

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

40, BEEE

HEAFHRBHY MN2019F12A318% T
EHRHAEENCE MV BRBEERERNY
ZENEE-

RRF BRI R

BREAKERRS HROHM B RAKRNEMT

£ NI

31 December

12831H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHT B A BRI E 703,097 643,245
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Due from subsidiaries FEUS P A B FUA 278,247 44
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFRIE « BE REMEK
receivables IE 2,258 954
Financial assets at fair value through AR BEFETFAEZ
profit or loss HeRmEE 13,509 —
Time deposits TEBATE R 219,749 —
Restricted cash 2R HI3E & — 210,288
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEFEY 470,486 998,477
Total current assets MENBEEBE 984,249 1,209,763
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Information about the statement of financial position of the

41. AR BB AR 3R (48)

BRAREERBEH RN BARRENER T
Hor o (8)

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
(continued)

31 December

12831H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables, deposits received and HiERZE - 2UIRE &
accruals fEEIEE 4,231 9,188
Interest-bearing bank loans and other st ERITER R EME K
borrowings — 188,383
Total current liabilities mEB R 4,231 197,571
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 980,018 1,012,192
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHABERABASE
LIABILITIES 1,683,115 1,655,437
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Total non-current liabilities ERBEBEEE = —
NET ASSETS EERE 1,683,115 1,655,437
EQUITY S
Share capital A% AR 101 101
Treasury shares BTG5 — (2,890)
Capital reserve N 1,443,754 1,460,588
Share option reserve IR 164,673 146,154
Other reserve (note) H G (M) 86,789 68,215
Retained profits (note) REFEET) (12,202) (16,731)
TOTAL EQUITY B 1,683,115 1,655,437
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a1. AR RF BRI R (E)

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Information about the statement of financial position of the BN EBENRE RN BRI R HE R
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: HE : (8)

(continued)

Note: Pt 5T
Information about the reserve movement of the Company is as follows: BERANGREESESHNER/INT
Other reserve Retained profits
Hbf#E RE R
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT ARETT
As 1 January 2018 2018F 1 A1 H — —
Total comprehensive income for the year FREmWEAZE 68,215 (16,731)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 M2018F 12 A31 A K
201941 A1H 68,215 (16,731)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREmMKEEEE 18,574 4,529
As 31 December 2019 #2019 12 A31H 86,789 (12,202)
42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 42. #EMBHER
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for SRR ER2020F3 A2 R EE S oAb f
issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2020. REERE -
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L :
BE

“AGM"
[RRBFAE]

“Audit Committee”

[E%ZEg )

“Board”

[E5g]

"BVI"
[REERRES]

“CG Code”
[feRERSTA

“China” or "PRC”

[ E

“China PnR"

[ERRT]

“Company”

[AR7]]

“Contractual
Arrangements”

[BHZ 5]

“Director(s)”

[E=%]

“Excluded Entity(ies)”

[PELTEee)

the forthcoming annual geh g of the Co pany to be held on 27 May
2020

AT 20205 A27 BRITHEERERAFEAS

the audit committee under the Board

EXERTNEXRZES

the board of Directors

R

the British Virgin Islands
REBERRHES

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

LR BB+ O P b E R ST RI

the People’s Republic of China, and for the purposes of this annual report for
geographical reference only (unless otherwise indicated), excluding Taiwan, Macau
and Hong Kong

PEAREMNE  SAFHMEEEMIELZ(BRIESHIER)  TRESE  BFIR
HE

China PnR Co., Ltd. ([Eft X THBRZAE]), a company incorporated under the laws of
the PRC on 23 June 2006 with limited liability, and one of the Operating Entities
ERRTHERRAG - —KK2006F 6 A23 BIREBEPEVEEIMKIZERAA - BE

EERC—

an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on
21 December 2017 under the names of “JLfF A TFERAA " and “Huifu Limited”,
and registered as a non-Hong Kong company under Part 16 of the Companies
Ordinance

2017412 A 21 BRANECARTER AR R Huifu Limited |8 & BER S B S5 MK
UHERRERAT  WERB(ARIEIDE 16 MBEMA—KIEEAERA

the series of contractual arrangements entered into by, among others, PnR Network,
China PnR and the Registered Shareholders
H(ERaE) EMNES  ENRTRERRR O —RIEH0%H

director(s) of the Company

ARRES

Subsidiary(ies) and operating entity(ies) excluded from the Group during the
Reorganization

REATAARBENBENNBRRELER
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"Excluded Group”
[FELTmEE ]
“Global Offering”
[2IREE ]
“Group” or "we"
[ el 24P

IIHK$II or IIHKDII
(%]

“Hong Kong”
[F&E ]

"IFRS”

[CEIBR B 75 s s 22 A1) |

“Latest Practicable Date”
[f & A 4T HH ]

“Listing”
=il

“Listing Date”
[ B H

“Listing Rules”
[ B Al

“Management Company”

[N EE]

PnR (Cayman), Paytech HoI'dirn'gs:’and/or theirli"e'spective subsidiaries or operating
entities (as the case may be)
PnR (Cayman) * Paytech Holdings &S E & BWEBARKEL BB (RBERME)

the offer of the Shares for subscription as described in the section headed
“Structure of the Global Offering” in the Prospectus
WIBRR I 2R E RS | —Ei ATl - S ER ) AR

the Company (any one or more of, as the context may require) and its subsidiaries
and operating entities

ARRIRE(HXEER - fHEM—HXZEIMBEBRARRELER

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency for the time being of Hong Kong

AL RERBEBEAEER

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REEBRRITTR R

the International Financial Reporting Standards, which include standards and
interpretations promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB),
and the International Accounting Standards (IAS) and interpretation issued by the
International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC)

(BEE S B HREER)  BEEE ST LR ESRANERNRBENEER ST ENEZE
aRhmr(EEReER)RRE

7 April 2020, being the latest practicable date for the purpose of ascertaining
certain information contained in this annual report prior to its publication

20204 A7 8 - IRAFRTEMSEEETAHETEENRRATER

listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
[ 193 OBk 22 P 3 i =T

15 June 2018, on which the Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange and from
which dealings in the Shares were permitted to commence on the Stock Exchange
201856 H15H » IR R RP E R ERKEEE R

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended
from time to time

B TR S R (TR EE])

ChinaPnR Management Ltd., a business company incorporated in the BVI with
limited liability on 24 August 2006, and one of the substantial shareholders of the
Company, which was held as to 60% by Mr. ZHOU Ye, 20% by Ms. MU Haijie and
20% by Mr. LIU Gang as at the Latest Practicable Date

ChinaPnR Management Ltd. * —R1 2006 8 824 At LB # M A B SR Iz
BERLT  ARARRFERR — BEREATHE - AAELE  BERZLLRK
B S5 £ RIFRFH 60% ~ 20% & 20% MR
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DEFINITIONS

“Memorandum and Articles
of Association”

[EEEREARMEEIZMA ] 38

"Model Code”
[T Al ¥

“Nomination Committee”

[R2ZEg EC

"Operating Entities”

TR

i
F

0l

ERE 18

\r

"Paytech Holdings”

[Paytech Holdings | |
"PBOC”

[ B ARRTT ¥
"PnR Data”

[0 1< B % 5
“PnR Holdings”

[PnR Holdings | i1

“PnR Network” or “WFOE"

[ EE IR EBE Ec
%]

"PnR (Cayman)”

[PnR (Cayman)] i}

the amended and restated memorandum of articles of association and articles of
association of the Company, conditionally adopted on 20 May 2018 with effect
from the Listing Date, and as amended from time to time

201845 A20 BEBRMHHME B L AHIREMN AR RLET REIMEMER
KR ER2 A (& TRFEE])

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
I RAI SR+ PrE BT AEFETES R HNIRETE

the nomination committee under the Board

EEeE TMREEZES

China PnR and PnR Data, the financial results of which have been consolidated
and accounted for as subsidiaries of the Company by virtue of the Contractual
Arrangements

EMRTREMNEE  EMBERACREBESOLHERE RARIERRRIMHE QR

Paytech Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands on 8 May 2015 with limited liability and a member of the Excluded
Group

Paytech Holdings Limited * —5R/® 201545 A 8 HIREM SRS XEFMA I MER R
BRAR - RIELMEEBNKE A

the People’s Bank of China (FRE AR §R7T7), the central bank of the PRC
PEARRIT - APEEFRRIRT

Shanghai Payment and Remittance Data Service Co., Ltd. ( H/EERNZBBEREER
‘A|]), a company incorporated under the laws of the PRC on 28 April 2007 with
limited liability and one of the Operating Entities

FHENSBBERBERADR - —RMA2007F4 A28 BIREBEFEEEZFMALHERA
Rl REZERZ—

PnR Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands on 7 July 2006 with limited liability

PnR Holdings Limited * —XK12006F 7 A7 BiRIEFA SRS @2 IMAKINEREE
R Q7]

PnR Network Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (B @E4&EM(EE)BEREAF), a
company incorporated under the laws of the PRC on 7 November 2006 with limited
liability and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

@S EM(EE)ERAR  —XKK20065F 11 A7 BREBEFBAEFIMALNER
NA - BRARBINZEN B QT

PnR (Cayman) Limited. an exempted company incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 21 December 2017, and a member of the
Excluded Group

PnR (Cayman) Limited » —FK20174F 12 21 BERRIEFASHEAEEMERINERR
BRAA - RIELTMEEKE LT
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"Pre-IPO Share Option the pre-IP share optién scheme of the Compé y as approved by the Board on 20

Scheme” January 2018 as set out in the section headed “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix IV of the Prospectus

R=P/NGEEES=p i | EEYN2018F 1 A20 BEN AR R ERAFMESHBRETE - SN BREEN

Bl B s BR R B E AT E R & | — 5P
"Prospectus” the prospectus of the Company dated 1 June 2018 in connection with the Global
Offering
[HAKR=ER ] 5 AARIHEA2018F6 A1 AEMEKBREBRER
"Registered Shareholders” the registered shareholders of China PnR as at the Latest Practicable Date, namely

Mr. ZHOU Ye as to 60%, Mr. LIU Gang as to 15%, Ms. MU Haijie as to 10%, Ms.
XU Zhuomin as to 5%, Mr. ZHANG Ge as to 5% and Ms. CHEN Yan as to 5% of
the shares of China PnR, respectively

[ &R 5 AR TR &EEATEBNELRE - A9 RIHEERNKTIRG 60% HE % £ - 7k
15% MR 5e 4 -~ FIR10% MRBIEREZ L -« FR5% MREHLZT - FR5% MR E
A KI5 % BBR Bt 20+

"Reporting Period” the year ended 31 December 2019

[ 3R & HIFE ] HZE2019F12A31BIEFE

“Remuneration Committee” the remuneration committee under the Board

[#FHEE S | 5 EEGETHFNEES

“Renminbi” or “RMB” the lawful currency of the PRC

[ARE ] i hEDEE R

“Reorganization” the offshore and onshore reorganization as set out in “History and Reorganization
— Our Reorganization” in the Prospectus

[E4] | BRERANEEL REH — S8 IFHIRIINIZANER

"RSU" a conditional right when the award of the Share Award Scheme vests whereby the

grantee of the Share Award Scheme shall be entitled to obtain either Shares or
an equivalent value in cash with reference to the market value of the Shares on
or about the date of vesting, as determined by the trust management committee
appointed by the Remuneration Committee in its absolute discretion

[ 52 PR I i 0 847 | ¥ BREFMEZESNEEERZEGNERBBRTE  RRHEEAENRBBEER KD
BEEEANZEAGRENER DB 2ZROTAERGHNROXEERSHE KT
TR

“SFO" the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

[(FEH KL EE D)) 5 FEREOIE ST B(EHEHBGN) (EARHEET ~ RS A E 77 S 20

“Share Award Scheme” the share award scheme of the Company as adopted by the Company on 16 August
2019

[ B fn B2 B =21 ¥ RARH 20194 8 A 16 AL AL Bl () BB 52
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holder(s)io?

“Shareholder(s)”

[R&ER ] ¥ [ESuESTEPN

“Share(s)” ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of
HK$0.0001 each

[ At | 5 RRAREAR G EER0.0001 ETTH E B

"Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

[ Bt 22 PRy | 5 ERMERHAAER QT

“Trixen” Trixen Enterprises Ltd., a company established under the laws of BVI and one of the
substantial Shareholders

[Trixen | 5 Trixen Enterprises Ltd. * —RIBBEEBHBARSEERIHAR  BTERFE 2 —

%" per cent

[% ] b Btk
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